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s the integrated one-stop LED energy

management services provider, we are
committed to providing reliable, efficient and
energy-saving LED backlights, LED lighting
products as well as comprehensive lighting
energy management solutions for sizeable
business corporations and public utilities
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CORPORATE PROFILE
NG M)y

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (“Wai Chi Holdings” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as
the “Group”) was established in Hong Kong over 30 years ago. The
Group is one of China’s manufacturers for high-quality Light-Emitting
Diode (“LED”) backlight and LED lighting products, with its operations
covering research and development (“R&D”), design, manufacturing,
sales, etc. It also offers comprehensive lighting energy management
solutions for sizeable business corporations and public utilities.
The Group recently expanded its business into the semiconductor
memory chips with a view to capturing the growing demand under
the rapid development of 5G connections and breakthroughs in
modern consumer products.

Since its listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014 (stock
code: 1305), the Group has been dedicated to upgrading its brand
value and becoming one of the leading producers in China’s high-end
LED backlights and lighting products.

Throughout the years, the Group has been monitoring the industry
trends closely and innovating technologies actively, achieving
significant R&D results. The Group has successfully developed over
1,000 new LED backlight products and over 100 new LED lighting
products in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and Japan, among which 209
patents were registered in the PRC.

The Group has comprehensive production facilities in Shenzhen
and Huizhou in the Guangdong province and Yichang in the Hubei
province. The Group’s products can be categorized into 2 main
groups under LED backlight products and LED lighting business.
LED backlight products are classified into 3 types, including: 1)
automobile on-board displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other
industrial equipment displays. LED lighting business is divided into 2
types, including commercial lighting and public lighting. The Group
will proactively develop its business of the packaging and testing of
small-storage semiconductor memory chips in the future. The new
production line has been launched recently.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Luk Fong

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu

Mr. Chen Wei Wu
Ms. Yong Jian Hui

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
Mr. Ho Chi Wai
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Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (Chairman)
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah
Mr. Ho Chi Wai

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung

2021 Annual Report | £ #§

CORPORATE INFORMATION
LAFEH

BITES

RS (ERRITBARR)
Tt

BEBLL

B RS

ERBLL

BAFBTES
ECES s
W 5
fal 5 B e A

DEMWE
N S

BEZEET
BRI R 2 S (/)
BREIE
fAIRELE

FMESE
AR ()
B K 2 4
RE R

REEST
BREIRE L (EE)
BB R S
fAIRELE

EMEHRESS
RS S A ()
SR 2 5 A

SR (B4 S A



CORPORATE INFORMATION
LTFEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

6th Floor, Liven House
63 King Yip Street
Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Guantao & Chow (as to Hong Kong law)

STOCK CODE
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

0O-Bank Co., Ltd.

Suites 3210-3214

32nd Floor, Gateway Tower 6
Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited
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83 Hoi Bun Road
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Kowloon, Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

Central

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal share registrar and

transfer office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square
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Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

e uphold pragmatic and prudent

business management, emphasize
the flexible use of resources, and
always strive at our optimal condition to
respond to market changes and explore
opportunities
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”), its
subsidiaries, and the board of directors of the Company (“Directors”
or the “Board”), | am pleased to present the audited annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

GRATITUDE AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

At the end of the year of the Ox, the sudden loss of our beloved
Chairman, Mr. Yiu Chi To (“Mr. Yiu”), to illness saddened everyone in
our Group. During such a challenging time, | was appointed Chairman
with the trust of the Board.

In my first statement as the Chairman of the Board, | would like to
express my deepest gratitude to Mr. Yiu for founding the Group
and leading it through the ups and downs in the market. It was my
greatest honour to be the CEO and a member of the Board under
Mr. Yiu’s guidance in the past 9 years. Since founding the Group
in 1984, Mr. Yiu dedicated himself to the Group and the industry,
growing a humble regional LED manufacturer to an HKEX main
board listed company with multiple booming business lines and client
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base worldwide. It was with comprehensive market insights and
tremendous business sense that Mr. Yiu made the decision to exit the
cellphone backlight market at its seemingly prime time, which spared
the Group from the fierce price war that emerged in the market
afterwards, and gave the Group capacity to focus on the more
profitable automobile onboard displays, and now the semiconductor
segment also.

Bearing the legacy of Mr. Yiu’s excellent leadership and support
from our trusting business partners and investors and our dedicated
employees, | will lead the Group with confidence and prudence. |
would also like to thank members of our management team, the
majority of whom had been working with the Group for about 10
years. Each management team member had devoted his or her time
and effort under Mr. Yiu's leadership and now becomes the essential
drive of our day-to-day operation.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Driven by strong consumer spending and some uptake in investment,
together with robust trade in goods, the world economy saw a
rapid recovery in 2021, despite the ongoing Novel Coronavirus (the
“COVID-19”) pandemic and its waves of new variants. Against the
backdrop of fragile and uneven recovery, the global output expanded
5.5% in 2021, bringing hopes of returning to pre-pandemic dynamics.
After paying the price of enormous death tolls and medical care
system breakdown, many countries are back to business as usual,
with the combination of a high vaccination rate and natural immunity
gained from recovered COVID-19 infections.

In China, a GDP growth target of above 6% was set at the beginning
of 2021, but the actual results beat this modest goal by 2.1
percentage points, bringing the full-year growth rate to a stunning
8.1%. In fact, despite it being the country that suffered from the first
large-scale COVID-19 outbreak, China brought the situation under
control in only a few months. In 2021, business activities were back
to pre-pandemic levels, and industrial production was indeed robust.

China also remained the world’s biggest market for new cars in 2021.
According to the China Association of Automobile Manufacturers,
in 2021, sales of passenger vehicles in China went up 6.5% year on
year to 21.48 million units, including 3.52 million new energy vehicles,
which rose approximately 160% year on year. The car sales boom
became the driving force, giving the LED display manufacturers
substantial profits. As for the lighting markets, the environmental
targets pushed governments and businesses to upgrade their lighting
systems to LED modals with higher energy efficiency to catch up with
the progress that COVID-19 halted in the previous year. Overall, the
LED industry enjoyed a good year in 2021.

Thanks to the stringent and effective COVID-19 containment
measures, China was the world’s stablest production house in
2021, strengthening its traditional strong suit of consumer goods
and earning itself a vital position in the world’s semiconductor race.
Chinese companies producing memory chips to be used in areas like
power management, microcontrollers, sensors and other consumer-
related segments are now contributing factors in easing the global
chip shortage.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Recovering from a highly disrupted year, the Group’s revenue in 2021
recorded a growth of approximately 37.7%, from approximately
HK$1,395,888,000 in 2020 to approximately HK$1,922,595,000
during the year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the
considerable increase in sales from all core product lines, despite the
continued drop in the sourcing of high-tech electronic components as
the Group’s plan of entering the semiconductor memory chips market
matures and the need for a temporary income stream subsides. As
the Group allocated resources to upgrade its production facilities
further and optimise business strategies and product mix, its gross
profit also increased. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$282,197,000 during the year, representing an increase of 42.2%
compared to the approximate HK$198,417,000 from the year ended
31 December 2020. The gross profit margin was 14.7% (2020:
14.2%) during the year.

By segments, backlights for automobile onboard displays achieved
record-high revenue of approximately HK$1,158,602,000 during
the year, up about 64.0% from approximately HK$706,600,000 in
the previous year. Though profit margin lagged slightly behind, this
segment was still the biggest growth driver for 2021. All the other
core business segments received considerable revenue growth under
robust market conditions. Sales of backlights for televisions and
other equipment displays increased approximately 7.9% and 4.1%,
respectively, amounting to HK$65,728,000 and HK$229,685,000,
respectively. Revenue from the lighting segment more than doubled,
growing from about HK$74,360,000 in the previous year to about
HK$149,435,000 for the year, as overseas clients, especially
those located in Europe, significantly increased their orders from
their trusted manufacturer to stay ahead of possible supply chain
disruptions. Sale from public lighting grew nearly 2.4 times to
approximately HK$6,101,000, while that of commercial lighting
almost doubled, amounting to approximately HK$143,334,000.

Following a strategic shift to optimising product mix and grasping
emerging opportunities from the semiconductor chip market, the
Group’s sourcing business segment ceased all other product types
and focused only on the memory chips. Though a drop of about
4.3% in revenue from this segment was recorded during the year, it
is in line with the Group’s plans as the semiconductor memory chip
packaging and testing facilities launched in October 2021. When the
new product mix reaches its full capacity, the segment of electronic
components sourcing shall finish its mission as a temporary income
compensation and may come to an end shortly.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

PROSPECTS

After an impressive rebound in 2021 for China and many of the
world’s strongest economies, the momentum for growth weakened
considerably by the end of the year. The devastating Russian-
Ukraine war that broke out in the early months of 2022 had created
turbulence across industries and regions, and it continues to
whipsaw through markets after the cease-fire talks failed to produce
concrete results. The war could also add more pressure to the global
chip shortage as Ukraine produced half of the world’s neon gas, a
substance that is critical for manufacturing semiconductor chips. But
chip manufacturers are reassuring their material supply and catching
up on production volume, giving high hopes of easing the shortage.

As a relatively newer player in the semiconductor market, the
Group’s memory chip packaging and testing line commenced in
the last quarter of 2021, though the amount of profit generated was
still insignificant due to the short period of operation. Riding on the
robust chip demand, the Group will focus on developing production
techniques, strengthening risk control measures, and growing this
business line to become a significant growth driver in the future.

As for the Group’s traditional lines of LED backlights and LED lighting
products, the recent comeback of the industry is expected to last in
the foreseeable future. Especially in the automobile onboard display
backlight market, besides the growing demand, gradual changes to
the business models benefit the Group as an experienced upstream
manufacturer. The Group will fully utilise its capacity in this segment
while ensuring high product quality with its state-of-the-art facilities
and seasoned experience to maintain a sound reputation and a stable
income stream.

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Executive Director and Chairman

27 April 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

COVID-19 disease was declared a pandemic in the second year since
its onset, its far-reaching impacts still dominated all aspects of the
world in 2021. But with the vaccine rates reaching high levels in many
countries and policymakers learning from past years’ experience, the
world achieved a remarkable recovery during the year. The global
economy expanded 5.6% in 2021, an impressive turnaround from the
3.1% decline that the total GDP suffered in 2020, also the strongest
post-recession pace in 80 years.

As with the case of vaccination rates, the economic recovery speed
was not even. In low-income countries, just over 7% of the population
is receiving a vaccine dose, and the social-economic scene is still
chaotic. On the contrary, for the world’s biggest economy, the US,
the economy grew 5.7% in 2021, a reversal from a 3.4% decline in
2020. The Eurozone GDP also advanced at a record 5.2% in 2021,
following a 6.4% contraction in 2020. China’s 8.1% GDP growth in
2021 made it the only major economy to register two consecutive
years of expansion since the pandemic hit.

According to the World Bank and WTO report, trade played a crucial
role in economic recovery during the year. After the pandemic
severely disrupted global trade, 2021 witnessed a robust rebound,
with China leading the way in trade recovery for its largely undisrupted
supply chains and production operations throughout the year.

THEZWLE S

T B E
COVID-19BE MM IBRENE_FHEM AKX
MIT  BRENTERE—FNEBERIR
EMAE- BEHETFZERNEEEERE
HREKE  URARENRBELFONER
FIREH  RRREE—FRE THEENE
P o 2021 F 2 IRACE L K5.6% + 820204
CDP#XE TP 3.1% 2R BERNPE - JFA80
FREFEZIRBRASIAIGR o

HEEEEERNEL— & KEERRET
- FRRABRR  BEEZEHADME
BB7% HEEERIEAER - B
P AFANEERERMS - 2021 FLLE
#E5.7%  HEL20204F Bl B T F£3.4% - #
2020 Z 45 6.4% 1% BT [& GDP 1A 2021 5
71 Bll 42 8% 18 £ 5.2% ° 2021 F 1 Bl GDP 1% &
81% K AEBRBEBEEURE —BEMFE
RIBRH T BLERE -

BREHRBTLEBEAZNRE  EHRAE
FENKEERTREZHFESZNEMR -8
RIEBRERIZIRE 5K 2021 FHIRBY
RE - PEEFHERREEELENKRS
B Sl REHEHE -

2021 Annual Report | £

11




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRZWLE S Hh

Along with the economic expansion, China’s automobile sales rose
3.8% year-on-year in 2021, boosted partly by a jump of about
1.6 times in sales of new energy vehicles. It was the first growth
registered in China’s car market since it started contracting in 2018.
Driven by the domestic automobile market boom and China’s unique
role in world trade, its LED displays market enjoyed robust growth
in 2021, with export reaching record highs and domestic demands
remaining strong. In fact, China’s LED lighting market also benefited
from the post-pandemic demand. According to the China Association
of Lighting Industry, the country’s LED lighting product export was
valued at US$47.45 billion, an increase of 33.3% year on year.

As the pandemic boosted demand for electronic appliances but
disturbed the supply of essential materials and logistic arrangements,
the global semiconductor chip shortage had been the bottleneck
limiting the development of multiple industries. During the year,
business activities started to stabilise, and end-product manufacturers
increased their chip stockpiles ahead of production expansions,
prompting a rise in semiconductor prices. The semiconductor market
as a whole grew 25.1% in 2021 to $583.5 billion, according to a US
research firm Gartner. Samsung Electronics also published record
yearly revenue with a 31.6% surge from the semiconductor segment.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021, demand for all of the
Group’s core products surged. As a seasoned player in the market
with top-notch production techniques and a sound reputation, the
Group fully grasped the opportunities and achieved a year of growth
in sales, successfully recovering from the disrupted year of 2020.

The enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system implemented by
the Group was especially effective in cost control through timely
monitoring of its operation process to promote information exchange
between functions, storing and managing operational data. It has
enhanced financial and work efficiency with a higher level of process
automation during the manufacturing process.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THRZWLER S Hh
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The total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$1,922,595,000, representing an increase of 37.7%
compared to approximately HK$1,395,888,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020. Disregarding the high-tech electronic components
and product sourcing business, which was intended to fund the
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Group’s transitional period temporarily, revenue from the core business
sectors was approximately HK$1,603,450,000, representing an
increase of 50.9% as compared to approximately HK$1,062,451,000
of the year ended 31 December 2020. Revenue from the sales of
LED backlight products was approximately HK$1,454,015,000 (2020:
approximately HK$988,091,000), representing an increase of 47.2%.
Such increase was mainly contributed by the record-high sales of
the automobile onboard display backlights and the steady increase
from television and other industrial equipment displays, which grew
7.9% and 4.1%, respectively. Revenue from the sales of LED lighting
products was approximately HK$149,435,000 (2020: approximately
HK$74,360,000), representing an increase of 101.0%, attributable
to an increase in revenue from both public and commercial lighting
segments, which amounted to approximately HK$6,101,000
(2020: approximately HK$2,559,000) and HK$143,334,000 (2020:
approximately HK$71,801,000), respectively. For the year ended
31 December 2021, along with the increase in revenue, the Group’s
gross profit also increased to approximately HK$282,197,000 (2020:
approximately HK$198,417,000).

LED Backlight Business

The three types of the Group’s LED backlight products are: 1)
automobile onboard displays; 2) television displays; and 3) other
industrial equipment displays. For the year ended 31 December
2021, revenue derived from LED backlight products in automobile
onboard displays, television displays and industrial equipment
displays were approximately HK$1,158,602,000, HK$65,728,000
and HK$229,685,000, respectively.

Amid a surge in car sales in China, the demand for automobile
displays was high during the year, and the Group’s automobile
onboard displays recorded a 64.0% increase in sales for the year
ended 31 December 2021. It continued to be the largest contributor
to the Group’s LED backlight business during the year ended 31
December 2021, representing approximately 79.7% of total LED
backlight products sales (2020: approximately 71.5%).
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The LED television market also enjoyed a comeback, reversing
from the unfavorable market conditions in the previous years. As a
result, the Group’s LED backlight for television displays recorded an
7.9% increase in sales, amounting to approximately HK$65,728,000
(2020: approximately HK$60,911,000). Equipment displays backlight
products recorded an increase of 4.1% in revenue for the year ended
31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December

HBZEZ12H31BLLEE

2021 2020
20214 2020 4
LED Backlight LEDE 3% HK$°000 HK$’000 %
Revenue Breakdown I A BR4H FiBxT FBT %
Automobile Displays BT 1,158,602 79.7 706,600 71.5
Televisions FIR 65,728 4.5 60,911 6.2
Equipment Displays BN 229,685 15.8 220,580 22.3
1,454,015 100.0 988,091 100.0
Lighting Service Business RIARE X

The Group’s LED lighting service business is classified into two
categories, namely public lighting and commercial lighting. The
Group provides various services including products, lighting
solutions design, installation, and maintenance etc. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, revenues from public lighting
and commercial lighting were approximately HK$6,101,000 and
HK$143,334,000, respectively (2020: approximately HK$2,559,000
and HK$71,801,000), observing the increase of 138.4% and 99.6%,
respectively.
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The increase in the Group’s public lighting business was mainly due
to an increase in the education lighting projects during the year. At
the same time, the commercial lighting segment was driven primarily
by orders from overseas, especially European clients, who increased
order volume to strengthen their stockpile to be fully prepared for any
possible supply disruptions.

AEBERAKRAXEBGEREITIEHNFAR
B IRAAIE B 1L N ER - Bt R - 7 A AR AR
DR EER BN ERED - EEEEMH%}E
WEIRMATEEAMBETF - BEMRATEE
I R i o e 0 24

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
LED Lighting Service LED B2 BA BR % HK$°000 HK$ 000 %
Revenue Breakdown L ON::E: T FHET %
Public Lighting NARRA 6,101 4.1 2,569 3.4
Commercial Lighting 725 A3 AR AR 143,334 95.9 71,801 96.6
149,435 100.0 74,360 100.0
Sourcing Business REEK
The group engaged in sourcing high-tech electronic components and AEBNESRFETFEHNHERERFEZE

products as a temporary source of income to fund the transitional
period when it focused on optimising its product mix. As part of the
Group’s plan to enter the semiconductor market, starting from the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group added semiconductor
memory chips to this segment. As the Group’s semiconductor
packaging and testing facility launched in late 2021, the sourcing
business started to phase out, and memory chips were the only
remaining products in this segment during the year.

% T"Fﬁﬁ&ﬁ/\‘\fgftﬁi\ﬁuuﬁﬂé\E@i@/ﬁﬁﬂﬁuu
A RIE - EARNEEET L ERMG
2 —2H c AEE2020F12 A31 B IE5F
BB ANEERZD G N EEF LS
oo BEEAREE R 2021 F KRR E) 2 E gL 8
B RBEFFARELERL  MEHESA
BEOBFRNEFENESR -

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12H31HLEE

2021 2020
2021 £ 20205
Sourcing Business REBER HK$’000 HK$'000 %
Revenue Breakdown YT A BA 48 T8 FHE T %
High-tech electronic components = RHY & FZ &+ & N/A N/A
and products sourcing EmRE T iE A ~iEHA 88,987 26.7
Memory chips related products FRES A HEERRE
sourcing 319,145 100.0 244 450 73.3
319,145 100.0 333,437 100.0
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QUALITY CONTROL

At the Group, a high level of quality control has proven to garner
customer loyalty. The Group has established stringent quality
control procedures to ensure the quality of its products. From the
very beginning of designing a product to each stage throughout the
manufacturing process, until the product is completed and stored,
the Group’s quality control staff ensures excellence in every aspect.
There is a set of established procedures in selecting and approving
new suppliers and raw materials, and thorough testing of product
samples is carried out before mass production of the products.

The Group owns a series of advanced production and testing
equipment for improving quality control. The Group has been awarded
various certifications, including ISO 9001:2008 and ISO 14001:2004
for quality and environmental management systems, which serve as
an important assurance of product quality and reliability.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognises the immense value of Research and
Development (‘R&D”) capabilities and has become an agile and sharp
industry player for its R&D efforts. As today’s consumers consider
not only quality but also diversity in many tech-related products,
market research is vital to understand the needs and preferences of
consumers. Moreover, amid the fast-changing consumer market, the
R&D department is resourceful in supporting the Group’s production
and operation with well-informed research, which enables the Group
to identify niche markets that offer profitable opportunities. By flexibly
targeting market trends and technological advances, the Group
endeavours to be always prepared for emerging possibilities so as to
capture optimal business deals.

The Group’s R&D centre is located in its production plant in Huizhou.
The Group engages in various R&D activities, including (i) concurrent
development of new product designs with our customers; (ii)
improvement of product quality, efficiency and functionality of existing
products; (iii) in-project calibration and optimization of the production
processes and capability of the equipment; (iv) introduction and
promotion of the use of new production technologies and new
production materials; and (v) assessment of the future prospect and
development trend of the LED industry. The Group has achieved a
number of technological advancements and breakthroughs over the
years, and, as of 31 December 2021, the Group held 209 patents
registered in the PRC. Looking forward, the Group will continue to
enhance its R&D capabilities and prepare itself for the up-and-coming
opportunities.
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AWARDS FOR CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Wai Chi Opto Technology
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, has received the Green Office
Label awarded under the Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme
(“GOALS”) organised by the World Green Organization (“WGO”) for
the sixth year, in recognition of the Group’s continued efforts in aiding
environmental protection.

WGO launched GOALS in 2013 with the objectives of raising
awareness of global environmental issues and encouraging
corporations to implement the best green practices in their offices
in 9 stipulated aspects of operations, including energy savings,
water savings, waste reduction, paper and printing reduction,
green procurement, IT use and disposal, transportation, education
and awareness, and finally green innovation. Companies have to
undergo a process of stringent green audit, during which the Group
has demonstrated its commitment in corporate social responsibility
by incorporating its green mission into daily practice and corporate
culture.

PROSPECTS

Despite the tremendous full-year performances, China, the world’s
second-largest economy grew by just 4% in the last three months
of 2021, at a much slower pace than the previous quarters, showing
the underlying slowdown that is to be expected in the coming year.
As the effects of monetary and fiscal stimuli began to subside and
major supply-chain disruptions emerged amid new COVID-19 waves,
inflationary pressures in many economies, including China, are rising,
posing headwinds against further recovery. In view of the fierce
Russian-Ukraine war in an already uncertain global environment, the
US and European stock indexes tumbled, with investors unsure of
what will be happening next in the capital markets. Oil prices rose so
much that the US and the International Energy Agency had to release
barrels from their stockpiles to ease the worries over the ripple effects
the price surge might have on the global economy.
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The macroeconomic trends are unpredictable, but China’s
automobile industry demand is undoubtedly lasting. Production and
sales are expected to be better in 2022 on the prospect that issues
such as chip shortage and high prices of raw materials may ease,
according to a statement from the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers. This provides an opportunity for the LED display
makers. In fact, shifts in business models in the market also gave
the Group more bargaining power and a chance to broaden its client
base.

After the loss of Mr. Yiu Chi To, former chairman of the Company, the
management team of the Group grew stronger together and vowed
to continue the path towards a profitable future. Given the bolstered
market demand, the Group is determined to leverage its technological
advantages fully and utilise its LED backlight production capacities to
benefit from the demand arising from the automobile onboard display
market, which is the direction foreseen by (the late) Mr. Yiu Chi To.
The Group shall strengthen its cooperation with various brands and
create more value-added products with its advanced techniques.

Apart from the backlight segment, the Group’s lighting segment is
also receiving an increasing amount of orders from trusting clients
worldwide amid the uncertainties in the international supply chains.
This trend is expected to last and boost the Group’s income in the
coming year. The Group shall prioritise the education lighting projects
and reinforce its brand image in the specialised markets.

As for the newly set up semiconductor memory chip lines, the
Group grasped the opportunity in the semiconductor market and
started laying the foundations for this business line a few years
ago, before the chip demand became an international hit topic.
With the undoubtedly strong demand for semiconductor chips,
the Group actively optimises risk control and production capacity.
The production commencement has been successful, picking up
momentum currently. The management team and the Board are
confident that this line of business will grow into a significant income
stream shortly.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the sources of revenue
for the Group were the sales of LED backlight, providing LED lighting
services and the business of high-tech electronic components
and products sourcing. The Group’s LED backlight products sales
were approximately HK$1,454,015,000, representing an increase
of approximately 47.2% from 2020, which was mainly attributable
to the increase of sales of all products lines, especially the record-
high amount of automotive display LED backlight products. The
sales of the Group’s LED lighting products were approximately
HK$149,435,000, representing an increase of 101.0%, attributable
to an increase in revenue from both public and commercial lighting
segments. The revenue from the high-tech electronic components
and products sourcing segment was approximately HK$319,145,000
(2020: HK$333,437,000), which further declined as the Group phases
out this temporary income stream.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2021, gross profit from the sales
of LED backlight and LED lighting products was approximately
HK$275,166,000, representing an increase of 52.2% from
approximately HK$180,835,000 in 2020. Gross profit margin for
these two segments increased by 0.2 percentage points from 17.0%
in 2020 to 17.2% in 2021. Gross profit and gross profit margin
from high-tech electronic components and products sourcing
were HK$7,031,000 and 2.2% (2020: HK$17,582,000 and 5.3%),
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
overall gross profit was approximately HK$282,197,000, representing
an increase of 42.2% from approximately HK$198,417,000 in 2020.
Overall gross profit margin was 14.7% in 2021, representing an
increase of 0.5 percentage points from 14.2% in 2020.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Labour costs, sales commissions and transportation costs were the
Group’s major selling and distribution expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
was approximately HK$36,437,000, representing an increase of
43.7% from approximately HK$25,356,000 in 2020, which was in line
with the increase in the overall revenue.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses refer to the general expenses incurred in
offices and factories. The Group focuses on effective management
by means of resource consolidation in the Shenzhen and Huizhou
factories. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
administrative expenses was approximately HK$98,748,000, which
has increased by 16.3% compared to approximately HK$84,934,000
for the year 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to the
expansion in business scale.

Other Income

During the year ended 31 December 2021, other income was
approximately HK$23,239,000, representing an increase of 12.2%
in comparison with approximately HK$20,707,000 for the year 2020,
mainly due to an increase in bank interest income.

Taxation

Taxation consisted of current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Two of the Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Shenzhen Wai Chi”) and Huizhou
Wai Chi Electronics Company Limited, are qualified as “High-Tech
Enterprises” in the PRC and granted certain tax benefits, including a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% instead of the statutory
rate of 25%. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
tax credit was approximately HK$69,000 (2020: HK$329,000), as a
result of the rise in sales.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s inventories was approximately
HK$312,029,000, representing an increase of 41.4% as compared
to approximately HK$220,710,000 as at 31 December 2020. The
increase in inventory was part of the Group’s strategies to offset the
current and anticipated increase in raw material prices by purchasing
more materials at a relatively low rate. The newly launched memory
chip testing and packaging business also contributed to the Group’s
inventory strategies.
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Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounted to approximately HK$672,316,000, which increased by
18.6% as compared to approximately HK$566,740,000 as at 31
December 2020. This was attributable to the increase in sales.

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade payables amounted
to approximately HK$400,649,000, which increased by 35.7% as
compared to approximately HK$295,154,000 as at 31 December
2020. The increase was attributable to the increase in purchase of
raw materials.

Placing of New Shares and Full Use of the Net
Proceeds from the Placing

On 6 May 2016, the Company completed a placing of new shares
(the “Placing”), allotted and issued 16,825,000 new shares of
the Company to not less than six individuals who are independent
third parties at the price of HK$2.00 per share. Net proceeds from
the Placing amounted to approximately HK$31,134,000, which
are intended to be used for financing any potential investment
opportunities such as mergers and acquisition that may arise from
time to time.

On 11 November 2020, Wai Chi Huizhou had entered into an
agreement with Victoria Ultra Business Co., Ltd. to acquire the
equipment at a cash consideration of approximately USD5.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$45.9 million) (as set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2020).
Completion of the said acquisition took place after the fulfilment of
the conditions precedent set out in the agreement on 31 March
2021. Wai Chi Huizhou paid the cash consideration in full to Victoria
Ultra Business Co., Ltd., and the equipment was delivered to Wai
Chi Huizhou in March 2021 and is currently being used for the
semiconductor memory chips testing and packing business of the
Group. With the completion of this acquisition, 100% of the net
proceeds from the Placing had been used for the funding of the
acquisition.
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Major Acquisition

On 11 November 2021, Techwide Management Company Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as Purchaser,
and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu (being an executive Director), Mr. Yiu Kwan
Lok (being brother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and an associate thereof)
and Ms. Yiu Oi Tung (being sister of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and an
associate thereof), as the Vendors, entered into an agreement for
the acquisition of the entire equity interest held by the Vendors in
Maxtone Electronics Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, being the Target Company, at the consideration
of HK$91.0 million which shall be settled by way of cash. The Target
Company held three units of industrial premises in Hong Kong, one
being leased to the Company as office and warehouse, one being
leased to a third party, and the other vacant. On 10 January 2022,
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the said agreement,
the said acquisition was completed and the Target Company became
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The acquisition
was financed by internal resources of the Group.

For details regarding the acquisition, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 11 November 2021 and 10 January 2022.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

EF  RBRTEEARRER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Chung Po, age 44, was appointed as executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of our Company on 16 August 2013
and appointed as Chairman of our Company on 28 January 2022.
He is responsible for the day-to-day management of our Group
including administration, procurement, production as well as financial
management. Mr. Chen received his Bachelor of Arts in Business
Studies degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2000. He has more than 10 years of working experience in banking
and finance fields. After graduation, he joined Bank of China (Hong
Kong) as a credit analyst and was gradually promoted to Branch
Manager from 2000 to 2006. From 2006 to 2010, he worked with
the Sun Hung Kai Group of companies serving as the Vice President
of Sales Division in Wealth Management when he resigned in 2011,
From 2011 to 2012, he was a person licensed to carry on Type 2
regulated activity. Prior to joining our Group, he was the sales director
in GF Securities (Hong Kong) Brokerage Limited from 2011 to 2013.
Mr. Chen is the husband of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, son-in-law of Mr. Yiu
Chi To and Ms. Luk Fong, and brother in law of Mr. Yiu Kwan Lok.

Ms. Luk Fong, aged 59, was appointed as executive Director of the
Company on 22 March 2022. Prior to the appointment as executive
Director, Ms. Luk has been the assistant head of backlight overseas
business department of Shenzhen Wai Chi since March 2003. Ms.
Luk joined the Group in 1984 as she served as marketing and sales
representative of Wai Chi Electronics Co. from then until 1991 and
was then appointed as director from June 1991 to February 2008.
Ms. Luk graduated from Jiangsu Wuxi Fifth High School in 1981. Ms.
Luk is the wife of Mr. Yiu Chi To, mother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and Mr.
Yiu Kwan Lok and the mother-in-law of Mr. Chen Chung Po.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, age 37, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 16 August 2013. She is also the Sales and
Marketing Manager of Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited since
2009. Ms. Yiu joined us in 2008 and served as Sales and Marketing
Executive initially. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED lighting division and she is also in charge of the research
and development department of our LED lighting division. Currently
she is also in charge of monitoring the production line of semi
conductor memory chips. Ms. Yiu received her Bachelor’s degree
of Applied Science in Electrical Engineering from The University of
British Columbia in May 2008 and her Master of Lighting degree
from the Queensland University of Technology in May 2012. Ms. Yiu
was admitted as Engineer by the Corporation of Seven Wardens
Inc. in 2008. She also held the Directorship of Hong Kong Critical
Component Manufacturing Association from 2009 to 2012 and the
Directorship of Hong Kong Opto Mechatronics Industry Association
from 2012 to 2018. Ms. Yiu is the elder daughter of Mr. Yiu Chi To
and Ms. Luk Fong, wife of Mr. Chen Chung Po and sister of Mr. Yiu
Kwan Lok.

Mr. Chen Wei Wu, age 58, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. He is the Financial Controller
of Shenzhen Wai Chi since 2010. He is responsible for the financial
management and day-to-day financial operation in the PRC region.
He has 30 years of experience in commercial and finance fields.
From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Chen served as Accounting Officer in Jinan
Chemicals Factory at Hengyang City of Hunan. From 1992 to 1997,
he served as Financial Controller in Shenzhen Zhonggiao Group at
Shenzhen. From 1997 to 2001, he served as Vice General Manager
and Chief Financial Controller in Shenzhen Shennan Merchants
Group. From 2001 to 2006, he served as the Assistant to the
General Manager and head of the Capital Department in Shenzhen
Saigedasheng Joint-stock Company Limited. From 2006 to 2008,
he served as the General Manager of the Audit Planning Department
in GD Hengfeng Investment Group Co., Ltd. From 2008 to 2010,
he served as the General Manager of Group Finance Division in
Shenzhen Shangtianran Investment Company Limited.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

Mr. Chen studied and graduated from the correspondence course
in industrial accountancy and received the professional certificate
in industrial accountancy from the Hunan College of Finance and
Economics (merged with Hunan University in April 2020) in July
1987. In October 1994, Mr. Chen was conferred by the Ministry of
Finance in the PRC the qualification of an accountant specializing
in corporate accounting. In April 2011, Mr. Chen was admitted as
Senior International Finance Manager by the International Financial
Management Association. In December 2017, Mr. Chen was admitted
as Senior Accountant by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Guangdong Province and Mr. Chen was admitted
as International Certified Public Accountant by the International
Association of Accounting Professionals in August 2020. In June
2012, Mr. Chen obtained his Master of Business Administration
degree from the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
In November 2014, Mr. Chen obtained his Doctor of Business
Administration degree from the Victoria University of Switzerland.

Ms. Yong Jian Hui, age 45, was appointed as executive Director
of our Company on 11 March 2014. She joined our Company
since 2003. She is currently the Deputy General Manager and the
Head of Sales Department of Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited. She is responsible for the sales and marketing of
our LED backlight products. She has more than 10 years of working
experience in sales and marketing of backlight products. Prior to
her joining our Company, Ms. Yong served as the head of Sales
Department at Wah Mei Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited
from 2000 to 2002. Ms. Yong graduated from the Hunan Radio & TV
University of Financial Accounting Profession in 1999 and obtained
her Master of Business Administration degree from the Southwest
Jiaotong University in June 2012.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, age 58, was appointed as independent
non-executive Director (“INED”) of our Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Au Yeung obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1987. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung had worked for a number of years for
Price Waterhouse (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers), had
acted as a financial manager of a listed company and a major private
company respectively in Hong Kong. He has been a certified public
accountant since 1994 and has over thirty years’ experience in
auditing, finance and administration. He is now the director of Lau &
Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited.

Mr. Au Yeung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Amvig Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2300, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and delisted since
19 April 2021) during the period from May 2006 to April 2021. Mr.
Au Yeung was also appointed on 12 August 2016 and is currently
acting as an independent non-executive director of Man Shing Global
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8309, a company listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chen Kwok Wang, age 59, was appointed as INED of our
Company on 11 March 2014.

Mr. Chen is currently a Partner at Messrs. Fairbairn, Catley, Low &
Kong. He has been admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court since
2005. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton in February 2002 and his Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in June 2003. Mr. Chen
obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering in November
1986 and also a Master of Business Administration degree in
December 1997 from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chen was a
Member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in 1990.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

Prior to establishing his career in the legal field, Mr. Chen worked
in an international accounting firm from 1986 to 1991 as a Staff
Accountant and was eventually promoted to the position of Audit
Supervisor. In 1992 to 1993, Mr. Chen became an Internal Auditor at
the Hong Kong branch of a bank. In 1993 to 2000, Mr. Chen worked
at The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in the capacity as
a Manager and was eventually promoted to the position of Senior
Manager. In 2001 to 2002, Mr. Chen worked at the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong as a Manager where he was
responsible for day-to-day supervision of financial intermediaries.
Mr. Chen was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Fujian Start Group Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600734), on 20 May 2014 and PPS
International (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code 8201, a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange), during the period from 19 November 2014 to 30
December 2015. Mr. Chen was also appointed on 9 December 2021
and is currently acting as an independent non-executive director
of Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1808, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange).

Mr. Ho Chi Wai, age 47, was appointed as INED of our Company on
11 March 2014.

Mr. Ho is currently a partner of SRF Partners & Co., CPAs. He
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
Lingnan University in November 1997 and a Master’s degree in
Finance from Jinan University in December 2012. He is currently a
practicing certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a chartered tax adviser and fellow member
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member of the
Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Ho has over 24 years of experience in audit assurance and
business consulting. Prior to his own practice in 2012, Mr. Ho worked
as an Audit Senior in a local accounting firm from 1997 to 2000. From
2000 to 2010, Mr. Ho was the audit manager in a sizable accounting
firm and from 2010 to 2011 he became the Principal of the group to
which the said accountancy firm belonged.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

Mr. Ho acted as an independent non-executive director of Capital
Finance Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8239, a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, formerly known as Ming Kei Holdings
Limited) from June 2012 to October 2013.

Mr. Ho was appointed on 13 May 2018 and is currently acting as an
independent non-executive director of Affluent Foundation Holdings
Limited (Stock Code 1757, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). Mr. Ho was also appointed on 23 June 2018
and is currently acting as an independent non-executive director of
Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8512, a company listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yiu Kwan Lok, age 28, joined our Company in February 2022
and is currently the General Manager of Shenzhen Wai Chi and
Huizhou Wai Chi. Mr. Yiu is responsible for supervising the daily
operation of LED backlight and lighting production lines. Mr. Yiu
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts (Honors) from the University
of Toronto, Canada in June 2016 with double major in Political
Science and History. Before joining our Company, Mr. Yiu worked in
Diageo (Shanghai) Limited and his last position was Assistant Brand
Manager. He is responsible for the brand promotion and management
in the relevant region(s) in the PRC. Mr. Yiu is the youngest son of Mr.
Yiu Chi To and Ms. Luk Fong, brother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and the
brother-in-law of Mr. Chen Chung Po.

Mr. Luo Zeng Chang, age 40, joined our Company since 2003 and
is currently the General Manager of our Project Design Department
of Shenzhen Wai Chi. Mr. Luo is responsible for supervising the
designs of our products. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Luo was
a research development engineer with a small to medium size LED
backlight module manufacturing company from 2002 to 2003. Mr.
Luo was then employed as a senior technician at Shenzhen Wai Chi
in 2003 and was the leader of our Design Project Department from
2004 to 2007. He was then appointed as the Vice General Manager
of our Design Project Department at Shenzhen Wai Chi in 2008. Mr.
Luo obtained a graduation certificate specializing in Mechatronics
from Jiaying University in July 2001.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
EF SREEREARRRER

COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, age 41, was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer of our Company on 11 March 2014 and appointed
as the Company Secretary of our Company on 12 November 2015.

Mr. Cheung is responsible for our financial management other
than the PRC. Mr. Cheung has over 9 years of experience in audit
assurance. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung worked as audit
trainee in Eric Ng & Co. from June 2003 to July 2004 and as audit
manager in Jonten Hopkins CPA Limited from July 2004 to March
2014. Mr. Cheung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with an honors degree in Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy
in November 2003. He is currently a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a chartered tax
adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Grand T G Gold Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8299, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange) on 27 August 2018. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1941, a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange) on 17 February 2020.
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its principal place of business at
6th Floor, Liven House, Nos. 61-63 King Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
(the “Reporting Period”) are set out in the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 84 to 202 of this annual report. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a dividend and resolve not to
declare any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) to be held on 22 June
2022 (Wednesday), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 17 June 2022 (Friday) to 22 June 2022 (Wednesday),
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 16 June 2022 (Thursday). The record date for the
entitlement to attend the AGM will be on 16 June 2022 (Thursday).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 88 to 89 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders is approximately HK$332,147,000
(2020: approximately HK$332,147,000), representing the balance of
share premium account which can be authorised for this purpose in
accordance with the Company Law of Cayman Islands.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2021 are set out in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group, based on
total borrowings (including bank and other borrowing, corporate
bonds and lease liabilities) to the equity (including all capital and
reserves) of the Company, was 41.9% (2020: 49.7%).
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,887 employees. The
Group recognized the importance of maintaining good relationship
with its employees and retaining competent staff to ensure operational
efficiency and effectiveness. In the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group had not encountered any significant problems with its
employees, and there had not been any dispute between the Group
and its employees that might have caused any disruption to the
Group’s business or operation. The Group has had no difficulty
in recruiting and retaining experienced staff. The remuneration of
each employee of the Group is determined on the basis of his or
her performance and responsibility. The Group provides training to
employees.

The total staff costs incurred by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$279,008,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the percentage of public float
as prescribed in the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the
Reporting Period and at any time before and up to the date of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to and including the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Luk Fong (Appointed on 22 March 2022)
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
Mr. Chen Wei Wu
Ms. Yong Jian Hui
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Former Chairman, passed away on
28 January 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang
Mr. Ho Chi Wai

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Luk Fong was appointed as executive director on
22 March 2022, and is subject to being re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles of
association, each of Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, both
of whom were appointed as executive directors on 16 August 2013
will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and
they, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

In accordance with article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Chen Kwok Wang, appointed as independent
non-executive directors on 11 March 2014 will retire as Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 24 to 30 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for three years from 16 August
2019, and each of the service agreements may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Ms. Luk Fong has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for three years from 22 March 2022, the service agreement
may be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Chen Wei Wu and Ms. Yong Jian Hui has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for three years from 11 March
2020, and each of the service agreements may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice.

Each of Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, Mr. Chen Kwok Wang and Mr. Ho
Chi Wai has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of two years commencing from 11 March 2022 and each
of the letters of appointment may be terminated by either party by
giving not less than two months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a contract of
service with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (except for statutory compensation).

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference
to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence and the
prevailing market conditions. None of the Directors waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration of the Group as at the date of
this annual report are set out in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children (under 18 years of age), or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement whose objectives are to enable a Director of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to and
including the date of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS AND
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sub-section headed “Connected
Transaction” below and “Related Party Transactions and Balances”
in Note 34 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2021
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive personnel of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:

Name of Director

Capacity/nature of interest

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEEREE
EERTETBASHER AR
REBBEERG - HERG
RiEFzsEEmRxKE

MR2021F12A31H  ARBIEEREBIT
BABRARRREEEZE (TERESF R
HEKRA ((BHERAE®RG) EXVI) B
M HERDREESY BEBEARFEAR
TJ§'ﬂ%?&ﬁﬁffﬂﬂﬁﬂ%352f|*u5)\}5ﬁﬁﬁ4uE
Ak ZERIE ET AR BB EX 10 Fr sk _E T 81T
AEFETEFR ZREESTR ([1EEE])
BSITMERAG MR ERABENT

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number and
class of securities

EENA 513 #ExHE EEHERER BESLST DL
(Note 2)
(Mt3E2)
Mr Yiu Chi To (deceased) (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 (L) 59.09%
sk Bl S A (B B ) (B sE1) EnBAEA
Ms. Luk Fong (Note 3) Interest of spouse 128,120,000 (L) 59.09%
B 22+ (M 7E3) B (5 4 2
Notes: B &

1. Mr. Yiu Chi To holds 100% of the issued share capital of Rexell Technology
Company Limited, which is the controlling shareholder holding approximately
59.09% of the issued share capital of the Company.

2. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company or the relevant associated corporation.

3. Ms. Luk Fong, as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Rexell Technology Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive personnel of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest
or short positions which they had taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PARTIES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the directors and chief executive
officer of the Company were aware, the following persons and
corporations (excluding the directors and chief executive officer of
the Company) had interests or short positions in any of the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or
who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares

FERREEMALIRADTR
B RHERARGFNESRAR

R2021F 12 A31H AR A EFE MITH
BEFTE - LA REE (KARESRT
BB ELASN) R A B D sk BB (D P A
BEFSHRBEKMNEXVIE2XIH B
&SR BB AN S 2NN &) N B 22 BT B 4 2 0%
B REZBHFRIBEKRAEI(HEAERETR
AGFEMECMASENEEAR  E
B EERA RGN PR 5%k A R

Nz
= o

T
of the Company.
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares held capital
BRITREAZ
REREE 51 #xstE FrishRia 88 BHERT
Rexell Technology Company Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 128,120,000 59.09%
HEREARA R (FEE1) En#B A
Mr Yiu Chi To (deceased) (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 128,120,000 59.09%
kAR E % A (BB (Fi5E2) R EBE B S
Ms. Luk Fong (Note 3) Interest of spouse 128,120,000 59.09%
B 75 22+ (B EE3) Ao B
Notes: MI5E -

1. Rexell Technology Company Limited directly holds 128,120,000 shares
representing approximately 59.09% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

2. Mr. Yiu Chi To is the legal and beneficial owner of all the issued shares of
Rexell Technology Company Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company held by Rexell Technology Company Limited
under the SFO.

8, Ms. Luk Fong, as the spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Rexell Technology Company Limited by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company, a director
of the Company may be indemnified out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which the director shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of his or her duty as a director of the Company,
to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted indemnity provision
has been in force since the adoption of the articles of association of
the Company on 27 October 2014 and is currently in force at the time
of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its directors
and officers.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of its/his compliance with the terms and undertakings of the deed
of non-competition provided to the Company under the Deed of
Non-competition (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated
4 November 2014). The INEDs of the Company have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the terms and
undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition have been complied
with by the controlling shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 204 of this
annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has had
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, which are exempt from the connected transaction
requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Details of the
significant transactions with related parties are set out in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the largest supplier
accounted for 11% of the Group’s purchases and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 34% of the Group’s total purchases. The
largest customer accounted for 36% of the Group’s revenue and
the five largest customers accounted for 65% of the Group’s total
revenue.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$64,000 (2020: approximately HK$27,000).

CORPORATE BOND

Details of movement in corporate bond issued by the Company
during the year are set out in Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased or redeemed any of the listed
shares of the Company.

40

FEHEERER
REZE2021F12A31BIEFE  AEE K
AEERRESAREN D IMERNE B AR
BRE11% N34% - AEBRARTFPREHSK
BEPEDRMEAEE B EETE306% K65% °

RARBBESAA BECNARFSE
T BBATRBEEMAEEARFRAE%
AESZ EARRBEESHA MRS
EESAEEHAEP 2

EERX

ANEBERFRNE T 2 ZE185464,0007 7T
(20204 : #927,0007T) °

PEMEFH
KABAEEBRITRARELSZEISHFHEBIHRN
RE TSR FE29 o

B
ARTEEERBIRRATEERELTR
AIES ISR ENFEBIHRRE TR
AREBYERTESHABUAL

BBl - HESEEAQRRKRG

HE2021F12A31BIEFEAN » XA a5
E AT ART BT BB A &) 4% 4 B [ sk B 0] AR A R (]
EHEE -

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited | E&ZKR AR A 7



DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders to be one of
the main objectives. Stable dividend payment to shareholders is the
primary objective of the Company. The basic policy is to pay interim
and final dividends in each financial year.

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association of the Company, all of the shareholders have equal
rights to dividends and distributions. The Board determines the
interim dividend and recommends the final dividend which requires
the approval of shareholders. In addition to cash, dividends may
be distributed in the form of shares. Any distribution of shares also
requires the approval of shareholders.

Retained surplus is used to achieve further gains in corporate value.
For this purpose, the Board makes effective use of retained surplus
to strengthen the operating base and fund growth of established
businesses and the development of new businesses. The Board takes
into account the following factors when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

° liquidity position of the Company;

e financial results;

e  shareholders’ interests;

e  general business conditions and strategies;

e  capital requirements;

e  contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Company to the shareholders or by the subsidiaries to the
Company, if any;

e  taxation considerations;

e possible effects on the creditworthiness;

e  statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

e any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Company will not declare any dividend(s) where:

e there are reasonable grounds for believing that the Company is
or would be, after a dividend payment, unable to pay its liabilities
or discharge its obligations as and when they become due;

° pursuant to dividend decision date, the Company is insolvent or
bankrupt or where, as a result of paying dividends, the Company
would be rendered insolvent or bankrupt; or

e there is any other case set forth by any law.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company and its management are committed to maintaining
good corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles of
transparency, accountability and independence to all shareholders.
The Company believes that good corporate governance is essential
for continual growth and enhancement of shareholder’s value. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has applied the
code provisions stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 (the “CG
Code”) to the Listing Rules. Section C.2.1. of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of the chairman and the chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Former Chairman of the Company, Mr. Yiu Chi To, passed away on
28 January 2022, currently the role of the chairman of the Company
is performed by Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Chen Chung Po. Besides
the above, the Company has complied with all the other applicable
code provisions of the CG Code. The Company periodically
reviews its corporate governance practices with reference to the
latest development in corporate governance. The Group’s principal
corporate governance practices and compliance with code provisions
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 44 to 63 of
this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group is committed to promoting
the long-term, steady and sustainable development of employees,
environmental protection and social responsibilities on a continuous
basis.

The Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 64 to 76
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed with the management the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021, the accounting principles and practices adopted and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters.
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AUDITOR

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”). We have not
changed auditor in the past three years. A resolution to re-appoint
SHINEWING as our auditor will be submitted for shareholders’
approval at our forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Chen Chung Po
Executive Director and Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 April 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREIRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance (“CG”). The Board believes that adherence
to CG practices will definitely be beneficial to the Company’s
shareholders in the long term. For the year ended 31 December
2021 (“FY2021”), the Company has applied all the other applicable
code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules in force at that time. CG Code Provision C.2.1 of the
Code stipulates that the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Former Chairman of the Company, Mr. Yiu Chi To, passed
away on 28 January 2022, currently the role of the chairman of the
Company is performed by Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Chen Chung
Po. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Board
from time to time and should suitable candidate with the requisite
knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the Company will make
appointment to fill the post of the chief executive as appropriate.

The Board considers that good CG is central to safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of
the Group. The Board will continuously review and improve the CG
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

With a view to further improving the Company’s CG practices, the
following actions were taken in 2021:

e Appointment of INEDs with appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management experience with
regulatory entities to further broaden the collective knowledge,
perspectives and skills of the Board.

e All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs and all of them
have appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
financial management experience.

e  Provision of internal training to the Board through implementing
a continuous professional development programme.

e To adopt Board diversity policy in order to diversify the
composition of the Board so as to recognize and embrace the
benefits of having a diverse Board and to enhance the quality
of its performance. In designing the Board’s composition with
regard to Board diversity, the Board has taken into account
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

The Board currently comprises five males and three females, and also
encompasses a wide range of age levels and different professional
skills, including professional experience in the Group’s related
industries, legal and financial fields. The Board considers that the
current composition of the Board is in line with the diversity policy.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Pursuant to specific
enquiry by the Company, all the Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct during the FY2021.

THE BOARD

The Board is mainly responsible for the overall strategic development
of and is also responsible for monitoring the financial performance,
risk management and the internal controls of the Group. With a
wide range of expertise and a balance of skills, the INEDs bring
independent judgment on issues of strategic direction, development,
performance and risk management through their contribution at
Board meetings and committee work.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

The Board has the collective responsibility for leadership and
control of, and for promoting the success of, the Group by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board is responsible for
determining the overall strategy and corporate development and
ensuring the business operations are properly monitored. The Board
reserves the right to decide all policy matters of the Group and
material transactions.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

i) the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. Each
committee’s constitution, powers and duties are clearly defined
by its terms of reference, and the committees are accountable
to the Board;

i) the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day

management of the businesses of the Group, is accountable to
the Board; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

THE BOARD (continued)

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management
(continued)

i) the senior management team of the Group, being delegated
with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions,
is answerable to the Board.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of
authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the
Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting
systems are in place.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

All of the Directors have entered into service agreements or letters of
appointment and the details of their terms are set out in the Report
of the Directors on pages 31 to 43 of this annual report. At each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires. Retiring Directors
are eligible for re-election and re-election of retiring Directors at
the annual general meeting is dealt with by separate resolutions
for each individual Director. Where vacancies arise at the Board,
candidates will be proposed and put forward to the Board by the
Nomination Committee as more fully explained below in the section
on Nomination Committee. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of five executive
Directors and three INEDs, as shown on page 3 of this annual report.
Biographies of the Company’s Directors are shown on pages 24 to
30 of this annual report.

INEDs ensure the Board accounts for the interests of all shareholders
and considers major issues objectively. The Board has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the INEDs
to be independent. INEDs represent 37.5% of the full Board.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board except that Ms.
Luk Fong is the mother of Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu and mother-in-law of Mr.
Chen Chung Po and that Mr. Chen Chung Po and Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
are a married couple.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chen Chung Po acts as the Chairman (“Chairman”) and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEOQ”) of the Board.

Induction, Information and ongoing Development

All Directors have been kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may have affected the Group’s businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations. In addition, the Group has implemented
a continuing development programme to update the Directors (in
particular INEDs) on the macro-economic conditions and business
environment relevant to the Group’s major operations.

In addition to the above, each newly-appointed Director has received
a tailored induction programme, which covered briefing on the
Company’s overview by the CEO, meeting with the management
and the Company’s external legal adviser on directors’ legal role and
responsibilities. To further maximize the contribution from INEDs,
separate meeting between the Chairman and INEDs was held in
December 2021 to address business and related issues. Written
procedures are also in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense. No request was made by any Director for such independent
professional advice during the FY2021.

During the FY2021, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in accordance with code provision A.6.5 contained in the CG
Code. Each of the Directors has received a series of training locally or
overseas. Relevant trainings and briefings included, among others:

e  development of national and global economy;

° national policy outlook;

e  corporate governance;

° regulatory updates; and

e |ED backlight and lighting industry development trend, etc.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, Information and ongoing Development
(continued)

All Directors have also provided to the Company their records of
training attended or fulfilment of ongoing development requirements
for the FY2021, the information of which has been entered in the
register of directors’ training records maintained and updated by
the Company from time to time. The following table summarises the
compliance status of all Directors of the Company in respect of code
provision A.6.5 during the FY2021:

EEE ()
Bl - EAMBEERE (R

PIBEESEHARNRRHEMH T 2021 MR FE
e B FERIEII AT A FEREREZROL
B HPNESRELTHERARABERET
FEHMMNEFRHIICHELMA - TEERR
AT IR ST RIS AB.5 1R 2021 FF B I 5
BEARRZRBEZNETER:

In compliance
with Code A.6.5

Name of Directors EEnE BFFRIEA65MF
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Former Chairman, passed away on EE A (FTTEEE

28 January 2022) R20224F 1 A28 Hi#tt) v
Mr. Chen Chung Po PREEFL L& (EEFETHAEER)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) v
Ms. Luk Fong (Appointed on 22 March 2022) P77+ (R 202243 A 22 H

1) N/A 7~ i FA
Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu kEmMZ L v
Mr. Chen Wei Wu R 48 I 5T A& v
Ms. Yong Jian Hui HERIBL + v
Independent non-executive Directors BAEPMITES
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah BRS REL 4 v
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang R B 7R S A 4
Mr. Ho Chi Wai fa] B S A v
Role and Responsibilities of the Board EEgZAGNKEEE

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management. It also gives clear
directions as to the powers of the management, in particular, with
respect to the matters that the management must report back and
obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board
determines on a regular basis which functions are reserved to the
Board and which are delegated to the management.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Role and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The Board exercises a number of duties and powers which include:
e formulating the Group’s long-term strategy;

e approving major acquisitions, disposals and capital investment;
° reviewing operational and financial performance;

e approving financial results and public announcements;

e reviewing the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control;

e authorizing material borrowings;
e setting dividend policy;

e approving appointment of members to the Board and senior
management; and

e  setting the Group’s remuneration policy and human resources
deployment.

To assist in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities, the Board has
established four committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee, and the risk
management committee.

Board Processes

All Directors have been regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There is an established procedure for Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has also
taken out appropriate director and officer liability insurance against
liabilities that may be incurred as a result of potential legal actions that
might be taken against the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board Processes (continued)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and monitor the operations as well as the financial
performance of the Group. The Chairman mainly focuses on Group
strategies and is responsible for chairing and managing the efficient
operation of the Board and ensuring that all key issues are considered
by the Board in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days has been
given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and the Directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda whenever they
consider appropriate and necessary. Agenda and accompanying
Board papers in respect of regular Board meetings are despatched
in full to all Directors within a reasonable time before the meeting. and
in any case, at least 3 days before the intended date of the meeting
or such other period as agreed before the meeting. Directors have
to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any proposals
or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings
and abstain from voting as appropriate. Draft minutes of all Board
meetings are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time prior to finalisation of the same. Final versions of the minutes are
also circulated to Directors for record within a reasonable time after
the Board meeting is held.

Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are
kept by the Company Secretary. All Directors have free access to
Board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate
information in a timely manner, enabling the Board to make informed
decision on matters placed before it. In FY2021, four Board meetings
were held and the attendance details are shown as follows:

EEE (&)

EEEERF (@)

EZeNFATHRE  RITBBRBLE
RAKENEERRMBRAE - TFEETEA
BEAKEZRE YAERARAERERE
Ee MREFSLFEMMEEHEE -
NEZEMATHER E2REFHELR
DHORBEN WRERR/AEXBEFTE
ExA R mEEMABHEEZRE -EFEE
HeznaElMMErETeXHearle
A—BREEREANKETHEES - ERm 0
2PN EZFTE B HAT3 KK S A E
MAEBEMHE EFEARERERESFS
ERLHEFEERZEMNRRAZTARSF
FMEAzEZKAEED (WA YHERE
BONFE) FAEFSSACHERS
BEBRAREREN REZEETSH
AR ER SR BREERTENE
EEERRTEANCEREAARESRCE -

EZShEEZESNSRLHARRNWE
RFE 2REFHERSHESSHNHRK
EHEER YeRBERERHEEMER F2
ESARRESHENZTEHELANBRE - R
CO1FHHMFERN BEESLRITTURES
TR SRLEFBOT :

Board Meetings
attended in FY2021
2021 FHBEFEE

Name of Directors BEEHA HEEESEERE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Yiu Chi To (Former Chairman, passed away on hEB LA (BIEEE -

28 January 2022) R20224 1 A28 A#tt) 4/4
Mr. Chen Chung Po PR §2 5L S A

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EERITHAEZ) 4/4
Ms. Luk Fong (Appointed on 22 March 2022) b5+ (R 20229F 3 A 22 H

Z1E) N/ATE A

Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu B 2+ 4/4
Mr. Chen Wei Wu BRAZE T4 4/4
Ms. Yong Jian Hui ZEFEIE & 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BAEHMITES
Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah 5 R 2E S 4/4
Mr. Chen Kwok Wang R B 7 5T A 4/4
Mr. Ho Chi Wai &R E 4/4
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely audit committee,
remuneration committee, nomination committee and risk management
committee. Each of them has specific terms of reference and is
responsible for reviewing matters relating to specific areas and which
are published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company for advising the Board on such matters. INEDs play a
significant role in these committees to ensure that independent and
objective views are taken. The list of the chairman and members of
each Board committee is set out on page 3 of this annual report. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

(a) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls.

The Audit Committee comprises all three Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Au Yeung Tin Wah, was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the senior management
and external auditors the Group’s significant internal controls
and financial matters (as set out in the Audit Committee’s terms
of reference), including:

° the Group’s interim and annual financial statements with
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

e the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and risk
management;

e formulating the working plan of the internal control audit
department, discussing the review result of internal control
system on a regular basis and reporting to the Board;

e  discussing with the external auditors the nature and scope
of the audit, significant accounting policies and other audit-
related issues;

° connected transactions; and

*  managing and overseeing the external auditors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE REPORT
tEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(a)

(b)

92

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee is entitled to conduct investigations into
any matter within its terms of reference and is authorised to
obtain independent professional advice if it deems necessary in
discharging its responsibilities.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the audit scope, process
and effectiveness and independence of the audit conducted
by SHINEWING and has thus recommended the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to the Board for its approval.

In FY2021, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee with
100% attendance rate of all members of the Audit Committee.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the meetings were sent
to all members of the Audit Committee for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time after the meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company comprises all
three INEDs. Mr. Ho Chi Wai, was appointed as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management, and ensures
that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also
reviews and approves (i) compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that such compensation
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive; and (i) compensation arrangement(s) relating to
dismissal or removal of Director(s) for misconduct to ensure that
such compensation arrangements is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The Company has delegated the determination of the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management to the Remuneration Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(b) Remuneration Committee (continued)

(c)

In determining the remuneration of Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors and the suitability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meets to determine the policy
for the remuneration of Directors, assess the performance
of executive Directors and approve the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts. In FY2021, two meetings were held
by the Remuneration Committee with 100% attendance rate of
all members of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises all three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Kwok Wang,
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the candidates’ qualification and competence, and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors, so
as to ensure that all nominations are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(c)

94

Nomination Committee (continued)

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are:

e to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually;

e  to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

e to establish a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment or reappointment of Directors;

e to make recommendations to the Board for new
appointments or reappointments of executive and non-
executive Directors;

e to evaluate the performance of Directors and determine if
they should be reappointed; and

e to be responsible for significant issues concerning the
nomination of Directors during the year.

The Nomination Committee meets to discuss the procedures
and criteria which should be adopted by them in nominating
candidates for directorship and has agreed that such criteria
should include the candidates’ professional background,
their experience and their past track record with other listed
companies (if any). In FY2021, two meetings were held by
the Nomination Committee with 100% attendance rate of all
members of the Nomination Committee.

Board Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy and the
Nomination Committee considers and makes recommendations
to shareholders for the election of appropriate candidates as
Directors at general meetings or appointment of such Directors
to fill casual vacancies.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
(c) Nomination Committee (continued)

Board Nomination Policy (continued)

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

1. reputation for integrity;

2. accomplishment and experience in the business in which
the Group is engaged in;

3.  commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest in the business;

4. diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

5. qualifications which include professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

6. the number of existing directors and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

7. requirement for the Board to have Independent
Non-executive Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidates would be considered as
independent with reference to the Independence guidelines
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

8. Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any policies
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board; and

9. such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE REPORT
tEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

(d) Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises three members
which include the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), Chief
Financial Officer (“CFO”) and one INED of the Company. The
Board has appointed Mr. Chen Chung Po (Chairman and CEO),
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (CFO) and Mr. Chen Kwok Wang (INED)
as members of the Risk Management Committee. Mr. Chen
Chung Po has also been appointed as the Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s corporate risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for
risk assessment and risk management and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management function.

In FY2021, two meetings with attendance of all Risk
Management Committee members were held.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditor, SHINEWING, and its affiliated firms, in respect of their audit
and non-audit services for FY2021 are set out below:
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HK$

BT

Audit service Ei AR 1,097,000
Non-audit services* JEE AT RIS 353,200
1,450,200

*

Included in non-audit services were HK$23,200 in relation to services
performed by SHINEWING's affiliated firms.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the
CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems. The management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the
Board oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing
basis. The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following aspects:

° Identification: Identify occurrence and changes in the nature and
extent of risks; identify business objectives and risks that could
affect the achievement of those objectives.

e  Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; assess the Group’s ability
to manage risks.

° Management: Consider the risk response plan, ensure effective
communication with the Board and monitor risks on an ongoing

basis.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2021, no significant risk
was identified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Internal Control System

The

Company has in place an internal control system which is

compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follows:

58

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for the Group’s implementation
of internal control.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

Control Activities: Development of policies and procedures to
facilitate risk reduction and effective management.

Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day management.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control exists and functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s inside information processing
system and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. A series of
appropriate measures have been taken from time to time to prevent
any breach of the Group’s disclosure requirements, which include:

e  The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Non-disclosure agreements are in place when the Group
conducts significant negotiations.

e The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in FY2021, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is performed
by professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operational effectiveness.

An |IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted semi-annually and the results are reported to
the Board via the Audit Committee afterwards.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE REPORT
tEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring that a review of the effectiveness
of these systems which covers a period of 6 months since the last
review has been conducted semi-annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but are not
limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks
since the last review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes
in its business and the external environment; (ii) the scope and
quality of the management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the
internal control systems and the work of IA function; (i) the extent
and frequency of communication with the Board in relation to the
result of risk and internal control review; (iv) significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; (v) and the status
of compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews conducted by
IA function and the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources,
the qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate, and
the training programs and budget provided were sufficient to carry
out such work.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and comply with the requirement of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (‘Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”) and the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. The auditors are responsible for forming an
independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial statements
prepared by the Directors and reporting the opinion solely to the
Company’s shareholders. The Independent Auditor’s Report is set out
on pages 77 to 83 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung is the Company Secretary of the Company. Al
members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The appointment and removal of the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board’s approval. In FY2021, Mr. Cheung
has taken the required number of hours of relevant professional
training.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATION

The Company endeavors to continue maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and the investment
community at large. Briefings and meetings with institutional investors
and analysts are conducted regularly. The Company is committed to
maintaining an open and effective investor communication policy and
to update investors on relevant information on its business on a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications
with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications are
arranged and handled by the CFO of the Company in accordance
with the established practice and procedures.

Financial information and all shareholder corporate communications
of the Company are made available on the Company’s website at
http://www.waichiholdings.com and updated regularly on a timely
basis.

The Board and the management shall ensure shareholders’ right
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. The Company
has announced and published its interim and annual results and
despatched them to the shareholders in a timely manner, which
is well before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules. Separate
resolutions will be proposed at the general meetings on each major
issue, including the re-election of individual Directors, if any.

The annual general meeting will provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and the Company’s shareholders.
The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important
event in which the Chairman and all Directors will make an effort to
attend. External auditors shall also be invited to attend the Company’s
annual general meeting and are also available to assist the Directors
in addressing queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of
the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’ report. All
shareholders will be given prior notice on a timely basis together with
a detailed agenda. The Board, according to the Listing Rules, will
conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company will be declared at the meeting, and announced timely on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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ERELWE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary
general meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Any shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more
of the Company’s total issued share capital shall be entitled to
request the Board in writing to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. Upon receiving such request, the Board shall issue a
notice of extraordinary general meeting within 21 days and hold an
extraordinary general meeting within two months from the receipt
of such request. If within 21 days of the receipt of such request the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s)
proposing to convene an extraordinary general meeting in writing may
himself/herself (themselves) convene an extraordinary general meeting
in the same manner.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to make proposals or
move resolutions at the general meetings under the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a
resolution may, however, convene a general meeting in accordance
with the preceding paragraph.

Procedures for shareholders to put enquires to the
Board

Shareholders must prove to the Board that they really own the equity
interests of the Company (e.g. by providing shareholding documents
etc.). The Company suggests shareholders should submit their
enquiries in writing (including by email, facsimile and mail) and provide
sufficient contact details so that the Company can process their
enquiries in a proper and timely manner.

Shareholders may contact the Company via the following means:

Address: 6/F, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: barry.cheung@waichi.com

Tel No.: (852) 3760 2805

Fax No.: (852) 2341 8144
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

e  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Constitutional documents

Rights of the shareholders are also provided under the articles
of association of the Company. The articles of association of the
Company which was adopted on 27 October 2014 was drafted in line
with provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which came
into effect on 3 March 2014, the Listing Rules and current corporate
practices. There was no change in the articles of association of the
Company in FY 2021. An up-to-date consolidated version of the
articles of association of the Company is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BR dEREIHE

64

OVERVIEW

Over the years, Wai Chi Holdings has committed to adhering to
the philosophy of environment-friendly management, caring for
the needs of staff, enhancing the product quality and performing
social responsibilities. This environmental, social and governance
report will give an overview of each of the Group members
in Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Huizhou and Yichang for the year
ended 31 December 2021 through various aspects including
environmental management, working environment, supply
chain management, product responsibility and community
engagement.

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

Commitment to environment friendly operations is one of the
Group’s core philosophies. The Group’s internal operational
guidelines firmly comply with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
international standards to facilitate environmental protection,
pollution prevention and efficiency of resource use.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that understanding the views of its
stakeholders lays a solid foundation for the long-term growth
and success of the Group. It develops multiple channels to
a broad spectrum of stakeholders in order to provide them
with the opportunity to express their views on its sustainability
performance and future strategies. To reinforce mutual trust
and respect, the Group is committed to maintaining enduring
communication channels, both formally and informally, with
stakeholders, to better shape its business strategies that
respond to the needs and expectations of stakeholders,
anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships. The Group
has identified employees, business partners, shareholders,
suppliers, government and the community at large as its key
stakeholder groups. The information collected through different
communication processes serves as an underlying basis for the
structure of this Report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholder engagement plays a core role in the sustainability
of the Group. The Group fully appreciates the need to build
both online and offline communication channels and provides
stakeholders with timely reports on strategic planning and
performance of the Group in order to establish a continuing
communication mechanism with the stakeholders. In addition,
the Group consults the stakeholders on their recommendations
and propositions to ensure its business practices can meet the
expectations of the stakeholders.

Relevant stakeholder groups include the shareholders,
government and regulatory bodies, employees, customers,
suppliers and society and the public. The Group discusses with
the stakeholders through various channels for their expectations
and relevant feedback as below:

2.

B - ERELEE

HhESH(E)
BHESREREENTBEBRT A
ERLAE - AEERPERBLRE
THEBEBOLEN W REEHD
R BRI BB R R A RS -
RS E R RACEBEE - k) -
B R B ORI R - AR
REELBEBFARHEZNE -

HEASHEBRBERERR BNLEE
e -EE TP HEBUAREER
NR-AREEBLRRBEEFNE
mE I MAARAREE - BT

Stakeholders Expectations Communication and Feedback
BaE HREE BEEEE
Shareholders e Financial results e Annual General Meeting

e Corporate transparency e Annual and interim reports

e Sound risk control e Announcements and website update
PR o HIMSEAE e BEKRE

o BEFEWE
o TEME RIS

Government and regulatory e

bodies e Relevant conferences
BT R B et o EFERER

o HEAEH

Employees e Career development platform
e Salary and benefits
e Safe working environment

e Provision of employee training and
safety awareness enhancement

il
i
[ ]

BEERTA
. HeRER
. ERHI(ER

s RHEEEEIRERLZEZER
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Compliance with laws and regulations

o FHRLFHEmE
o RERWAER

e Company’s filings and announcements
e Work conference and discussion
e HERKASE

o T{rEi R

e Staff meetings and activities
e Staff training
e Staff handbook

e BTERWAD
o EEFII
o BT
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

2. HBEEZE(E)

Stakeholders Expectations Communication and Feedback
BaE HiEE BiEEEE
Customers e Protection of customer rights and e Company visits
interests e Product exhibitions
e Customer information security
zpP o REEEPRER KEZ o NEIREH
e BFEELR o EmRTR
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e Company visits
e Business ethics and credibility e Regular evaluation on suppliers
HER o WMEEE o REIKE
e BEBENMEE o TEHRRT(LHELIER
Society and the public e Environmental protection e QOperation handbook and guidance
e Social welfare e Charity and voluntary services
e Provide job opportunities e Company’s website
HERAR o IRIBRE o BR{EFMANERE
o HEEF o EEREIMRY
o RUETIEKE e NAEIHE

We engaged our management and employees who are usually
in communication with our stakeholders to identify material
ESG issues. Through this approach, we identified areas for
improvement in our daily operations to achieve environmental
and social goals. During the Year, no material ESG issues arose
from our engagement with stakeholders.

BAMEEEMEERFEENESR -
NHEEEARE e RERHE B
BEHE RMCEEATEERFTENR
EMEE NERARFELHEEER R
AEE BAKOHELENZBEREE
ERE HERERANEARE -
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3. PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group acknowledge our responsibility to protect the
environment. As such, we have integrated environmental
considerations into our business operations, including but
not limited to improving our environmental practices through
minimising pollution, utilising energy efficiently and reducing
waste in our daily operations. In particular, the Group keeps
minimizing the environmental impacts and reducing pollution
from its operations with the following methods:

3.1 Reduce Energy Consumption

e Maintaining room temperature at above 25.5°C;

e Adopting timers or plug load controllers to turn the
lights on and off before and after office hours;

e Switching off electronic products and office equipment
when idle;

e  Constantly upgrading the facilities and equipment to
increase energy efficiency, and prioritizing the use of
green technologies in business operations;

° Procuring energy efficient electrical appliances with
energy efficiency labels to reduce indirect GHG
emission whenever practical;

o Placing “Green Message” reminders on office
equipment and workplace to further enhance

employees’ environmental awareness; and

e  Establishing energy targets and indicators, as well as
the implementation plans.
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT
(continued)

3.2 Reduce Paper Consumption

o Promoting paperless office by using own internal
administration system to reduce the use of paper in all
levels of our management;

e Encouraging use of electronic means of
communication such as email, intranet, WeChat and
Zoom, to manage daily process; and

e  Using duplex printing and reuse single-side printed
papers.

3.3 Use of Resources

We are working to optimize and reduce the overall amount
of natural resources consumed. We have implemented
various initiatives throughout our operations such as
deploying energy-efficient devices, minimizing the use of
paper, reducing water consumption and encouraging the
use of public transportation. Through actively monitoring
and managing the use of resources, we aim to reduce our
carbon footprints as well as our operating cost.

Environmental Performance

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, our
environmental performance of “Energy and Resources Use”
during the Year are tabulated below.

Energy and Resources Use

Unit
Bf
Electricity kWh
EW) T ELBF
Unleaded Petrol L
8 30 UM N
Diesel L
geom ANF
Water m3
X SR
Paper KG
AR T

3. RERIE ()

3.2 jH D MoRiH#E

o HEEMK(CHD BRZEAR
P RERE IR R4 - AR 3K
FMEREEBHNRRER

o HEFRETEMH  NEHE -
= FlZoom&E E T A R
EEHBRE &

e FEREEITHMESEEMRER
FTENAR -

33 BREH

RS DB RA D B B AR
RiaE - BFAREEEERRG "
525 B 45 35 + 17 40 PR D AR f
B E WD RE AR R R B
RAARRBE FRERERRER
AR - B ROR D BB
BAEERA -

RARKRE

BEBERE HeRERBSHES -
BFIRAFEEERERRERHMA]
MEIRRR IR DX INRER

BEE R &R (&

2020

—E-EF

19,787 18,581
17,868 17,189
30,972 44,400
127,704 175,094
3,655 3,222

During the Year, there were no non-compliance cases
reported in relation to use of resources within the Group.

RAREE AEEALEREHE
RERBRNT ARG
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE 4, TFRIBERETHERE
DEVELOPMENT

4.1 Human Capital and Vocational Training

41 NHEBEARRBEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a total of
2,887 employees, the majority of which are between
20 and 40 years old. The Group strictly complies with
relevant laws and regulations to prevent child labour and
forced labour. The Group encourages its employees to
improve their motivation, concentration and innovation.
Due to the epidemic situation, we mainly provided online
training totaling more than 700 hours, with a total of
more than 9,000 participants and successfully improved
our employees’ professionalism and proficiency in every
aspect. Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending training courses or reading
relevant material relating to corporate governance and
regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Group endeavors to attract and cultivate highly
skilled technical personnel with various benefits and
packages. Both Shenzhen Wai Chi and Huizhou Wai Chi
Electronics Company Limited have been accredited by
local governments as high-tech enterprises and enjoyed
corresponding tax concessions.

The Group adopts a monthly performance appraisal system
to evaluate employees’ performance with scientific and
comprehensive indicators, the results of which are used
as important references for employees’ salary adjustment,
promotion and annual bonus rating. We encourage
employees to explore their own strengths. Without being
limited by their positions and profession, we respect
employees’ personal career planning, and support them
in trying and taking up challenges in different areas. The
Group opens up horizontal and vertical career paths, and
always puts the talented and competent people as the first
priority.

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the
performance of employees with reference to the market
condition. The Remuneration Committee was established
to ensure formal and transparent procedures for setting
policies on the remuneration for the Directors.
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE

70

DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.1 Human Capital and Vocational Training

(continued)

Staff Composition
Employees’ Age and Gender Distribution

4. THRIERETHR (F)

4.1 ANBEFXRREEEE (F])

STHMK
1B 8 F e R L5720

2020
—E-THF
Age Group FHeME R =g d
0-15 0-15 0%
16-20 16-20 10%
21-30 21-30 37%
31-40 31-40 28%
41-50 41-50 20%
51-60 51-60 5%
=61/>61 =61/>61 0%
Total BET 100%
2020

—E-F
By Gender BHERIE S btk
Male B 46% 49%
Female Z % 54% 51%

4.2 Workplace Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe
and healthy working environment, abiding by the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Rights and Interests
of Workers, and other applicable laws and regulations.
The Group conducts strict and effective management with
respect to personnel, machinery, objects and operating
methods in the production sites, carries out Safety Month
activities on a regular basis and announces the inspection
and evaluation results to all employees.

42 BIEREE

SEENARETRHLE2RERD
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.2 Workplace Safety (continued)

All new employees will be given a Staff Manual to ensure
that they are informed in a timely manner of the Company’s
general information, regulations and corporate culture
etc. We regularly review and update the contents of the
Staff Manual to keep up with the Company’s strategy and
development plan, and announce such contents timely
on the Group’s internal websites immediately after any
changes are made. In addition to making timely payments
for the pension and insurance on a pro-rata basis as
required by law, the Group also regularly purchases
commercial accident insurance for its employees.

There was no official record of any fatal accident, major
work-related fatalities and work injuries, lost working days
due to work injury in the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the data of
the Group’s work-related injuries and fatalities are listed as
below:

B - ERELEE

4. THRIERETHR (F)

4.2

sz Z ()
MABBTIHZRBTFM  BR
EETRHERAR—RER &
BREREEX(LS - I WA
FHETIFMASR AEZRAAF
ERRERAL  TRHEREAR
BEUDT - REK R E TIHRAE
BEAER AR IREZER
RIS BTHABTIHENEE
SMRER -

RMEPRAT EBETNERAILS
TERRATEmMBERTIERS -

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
EE -AEERRIETHEIELR
LUl

2021 2020 2019
g —F —ETHF —E-NF
Number of work-related AT EMILT A A
fatalities A %= 0 0 0
Lost days due to work injury & 4% i 18 2k 8 TE R £X 0 0 0
4.3 Care for Our Employees 43 ETRATE

Each subsidiary of the Group sets up a labor union. Funds
are appropriated to such unions on a regular basis for
labor union activities, collection and resolution of staff’'s
suggestions and requests in order to protect interests
of individual employees. Collective birthday celebration
activities are organized regularly for the employees,
featuring delicious meals, entertainment programs and
birthday presents. A special fund for caring donations is
set up by the Group and accrued monthly to help staff in
need, making them feel cared for and developing a sense
of belonging.
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.4 Employee Health and Safety

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (Covid-19)
has become the biggest challenge for the health authorities
in Hong Kong and Mainland China in the past year, the
Group has devised several policies to protect its staff:

—  The Group issued a series of internal rules covering
every aspect of anti-epidemic measures, including the
managing of workshops and dorms, departmental
responsibilities, and procedures to handle health-
related crisis;

—  All public areas and the factory would be disinfected
on a weekly basis;

- Providing masks, hand sanitiser, 75% alcohol
disinfectant, and protective gloves to all staffs on a
daily basis;

— Requesting all staffs returning to work from other
regions to present mandatory Health Code and
monitor their health conditions;

— Requesting each staff to report their health status
everyday;

— Requesting each department head to monitor the
health status of their staff on a timely basis;

— Actively cooperating with community organizations,
and arranging special vehicles with the community to
transport employees to receive COVID-19 vaccination;

—  Cooperating with the nucleic acid testing carried
out by the community, and isolate employees who
have been to areas where the epidemic occurred
according to the government’s epidemic prevention
requirements;

72
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4. WORKING ENVIRONMENT AND EMPLOYEE 4, THRIREBERBEIERE(E)
DEVELOPMENT (continued)

4.4 Employee Health and Safety (continued) 4.4 ETREHEZE (8)

- Posting relevant knowledge on epidemic prevention — RAREAINEEEREN R
in prominent areas inside and outside the company’s R BE B & B R AN - FE AR (A
factory area, and promoting the latest epidemic BEITEEMNMHEEZER: &
prevention requirements to employees; and

- Assigning special epidemic prevention management — RANIREEZMMNBEE
staff. BIEAER-

FRLAERBEEMNT 2AFX
MBRRHEREN -

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the year.

5 HEEEE
5.1 HIEFER

5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
5.1 Supplier Relationships

The Group adheres great importance to the collaboration
with suppliers and believes deeply that establishment of
a cooperation relationship with suppliers would enhance
the continuous improvement on the Group’s workflow
and product quality. The Group conducts comprehensive
evaluations of suppliers on a regular basis. In addition
to reviewing factors such as brand and product quality,
suppliers’ environmental and social responsibility
performance is one of our primary considerations when
establishing strategic relationships. In considering building
partnership, we will give priority to companies holding
ISO14001 environmental management system certification.

All information of the suppliers are maintained in the
ERP system. A supplier assessment mechanism is in
place to perform a strict selection of suppliers in respect
of qualification, material quality, intellectual property
qualification and price in order to ensure the suppliers meet
the production standards in terms of raw material quality,
price and production capacity.

5.2 Price Management Mechanism

A reasonable and effective price management mechanism
is set up. A quotation team reviews material prices,
compares and monitors the prices of each kind of materials
and submits timely reminders and a periodic summary, so
as to make the procurement fair and transparent and to
maintain healthy competition.
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6. EmEE
6.1 BRI E

6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

6.1 Qualification Certificates

We have been granted several qualification certificates,
including 1ISO 9001:2008, ISO 14001:2004 of Quality and
Environment Management System Certificates, and ISO/
TS 16949:2009 of Quality Control System Certificates. By
stringent and careful implementation of the management
and control systems, the Group maintains an excellent
standard in the industry for the quality and reliability of its
product.

EMEERBRBRREERIREE
B X HRFEISO 9001:2008 ~ ISO
14001:2004 » %% ISO/TS 16949:2009
RERHERSGREELERE B
BEFEENERSHETE £15
BMEMNEZMSHEREN
FRARLE -

6.2 Product R&D 6.2 Emifd
In response to the rapid technological advancement in the B A7 B ALEDE Y & LED R B
LED backlight and LED lighting industries, the Group has TERMSRICENFE  —BR
been maintaining strong R&D capabilities, upgrading the AR IRALERRE
skills required in the production processes and actively R fBe/ K - BB R EETE o
improving the production technologies. The Group’s R&D EENHEROLEZENEBEZORE
centre has core competitiveness in the industry, and its FhHOMBEEFRBEEXEMRET BE
professional and dedicated R&D team has developed on its METHELEDE X RBBEESR
own more than 1,000 LED backlight and lighting products, I B A B K B S B 20978 (2020
which have obtained 209 (2020: 185) patents in China F :18510) BRlHE - HEMEE
and Hong Kong. Some products have been recognised by AYTRHEITEMEELCZESR
the Science, Industry, Trade and Information Technology Al AFRINTMBLBIFER -
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality as “Independent and
Creative Products of Shenzhen”.

6.3 Quality Control 6.3 mEEE

The Group has fully adopted quality management system,
and every employee involved is responsible for the
product quality. We strive to achieve flawless and smooth
procedures from understanding customers’ needs to
providing after-sales services. The Group has purchased
a series of advanced production and testing equipment
with professional technical engineers, committing to
improving production technology and enhancing output
efficiency and product passing rate. There are strict quality
control processes from procurement, design, production
to storage. Such processes include incoming materials
management, sample reliability testing, quality inspection
during the process, ultimate quality control and quality
assessment experiment for the final products.

Through the quality assessment experiment, the yield rate
was improved and the product return rate was maintained
at a low level of 1.32% in 2021 (2020: 1.39%).

SE2ERAEEERERE &8
MUMBTHRHEREGEASE -
EREFHBREERRS - &M
WRZEERG AKEEBE— X
SRR AEERRBIRE  EEE
ERMIRM  BMORBELEET
ERSELBERERERE - #
RBROFABERT  LEERW
RE- HEBRBNMmESERE -
BREANEEERE HRAUELA
A EREERS RREEED
RERmmEFEER -

BARETEER  BAKRE
BEIRERN021 FEHEHE1.32%
(20204 : 1.39%) KKK F »
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6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

6.4 After-sales Service and Information

Maintenance

We undertake the responsibility for each product and
provide customers with warranty and replacement services.
After the expiry of warranty period, we can continue
to provide maintenance services and only charge for
necessary costs. We have been well-received for providing
excellent products and services to our customers. There
are no substantial complaints, returns or reworks arising
from product quality problems during the year.

We strive to protect customer information. All customer
information is maintained in ERP system. Different
management and operation permissions are assigned
to each process and position. The system information is
updated in a timely manner, with layered audit and offsite
backup to ensure the information of every customer can
be properly kept and maintained. The Group is committed
to protecting customers’ data and privacy. Unless the
customer’s consent is obtained, the collected customer
information will not be used for promotional purposes.

7. ANTI-CORRUPTION

7.1 Inspection Mechanism

The Group pursues business ethics and is committed
to operating with integrity. Any form of bribery, fraud,
extortion, corruption and money laundering is strictly
prohibited. The Group has established an inspection
mechanism to regularly scrutinise the implementation of
regulations in each department, and is devoted to reducing
adverse effects on the day-to-day business activities
caused by improper operation and supervision.

Additionally, the Group has implemented an effective
Internal Manual on inside information or price sensitive
information and provided separate channels for the
reporting of any suspected business irregularities, frauds
and corruptions. During the Year, no incident of corruption
was reported within the Group. There was no non-
compliance in relation to corruption or money laundering
related laws and regulations during the Year.
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7.

76

ANTI-CORRUPTION (continued)
7.2 Internal Audit

The Group has established an internal audit department
which is directly accountable to the Independent Audit
Committee and monitors and improves all procedures of
each member company in the Group, to keep the operation
system and procedures of the Company consistent with
its operational development and changes. The Group has
established a reporting and complaint mechanism and
opened internal and external channels for whistle-blowing
in order to maintain fairness, equity and high standards of
the operational mechanism.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

We are committed to social responsibility and the contributions
to environmental protection through the development of new
LED energy-saving products. We actively participated in the
government’s street lamps replacement project and popularized
the positive effects on saving resources by replacing the
traditional lamps with LED lamps.

During the year 2021, our Group joined a charity donation to buy
basic goods for two charity organizations: Sik Sik Yuen Ho Chui
District Community Centre for Senior Citizens (5 3 [& 7] 25 & &
#f & 7 0 ) and Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Tsz Wan Shan Day
Care Centre for the Elderly (BB E AR EE | L RH HE#EES
1IL).

SUMMARY

The Group adheres to the corporate culture of “bring light into
life”, and has been persistent in making contribution to the
development of global lighting industry with superb technology,
reasonable prices and quality services. We strive for excellence
and continuous innovation, aim to create more environmentally
friendly products, commit to the practice of environmental
protection, promote energy conservation and bring about
benefits to customers, shareholders, employees and the whole
society.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WAI CHI HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wai Chi
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
84 to 202, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on page 116.

The key audit matter
FARERSE

A E & B
FARBEZEREARMNEXZHEHRSE X
RSN EREANERIFTRRSERN
FH-ZFFERBMERENDEAVBR
RARBTEKEBERLNES TERE MR
AT REEFFRERBILER

FEM&E
s Fﬁé%?éﬁﬁm&ﬂﬁ&m ME116E &5
BUR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMREBELRNARERRER

As at 31 December 2021,
inventories of HK$312,029,000.

the Group maintained

We have identified the valuation of inventories as a
key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the involvement
of significant management judgement and estimation in
identifying inventories with net realisable values that are
lower than their carrying values, and obsolescence, with
reference to the selling prices and condition of inventories.
M2021 5124310 - E5E7F & 775 312,029,000 %
I o

HRFELHEHNGAVBERREBEE  R2EFEW
1B RN 38 51 A] 3R % B (KD \,\EEE%E’JTT&K%E
ERE - S REREEEHE K AE - BRI S EER
RRARERSFE -
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Our audit procedures were designed to assess management
estimations and judgements on the assessment of net
realisable value of inventories and identification of obsolete
items based on their subsequent usage and selling prices
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and current
market conditions.

We have assessed the net realisable value and utilisation of
inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting period
and discussed with the management in respect of the
adequacy of the allowance made by the management based
on subsequent usage and sales, ageing analysis and current
market conditions. We have challenged the assumptions and
critical judgements used by the management by assessing the
reliability of the management’s past estimates.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 121 to 126.

The key audit matter
AREZSEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ERE

FAREZEE ()
PR AR A5 {E

F2HEAMBRRME2RF 1212126
BEREBR-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMREBELRNARERREE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade receivables
of HK$672,316,000, representing 38% of the Group’s total
current assets.

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on
lifetime expected credit losses model, which is estimated
by taking into account the credit loss experience and
forward-looking information including both current and
forecast general economic conditions.

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the impairment assessment of trade
receivables involved a significant degree of management
estimation and may be subject to management bias.

R2021F 12 31 H » EHEE A EKERFA672,316,000
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Qur audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s expected credit
losses model on impairment assessment of trade receivables.

We have assessed the reasonableness of management’s
estimates for impairment allowance by examining the
information used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default data and
evaluating whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information.

We have also inspected cash received from debtors
subsequent to the end of the reporting period relating to trade
receivables balance as at 31 December 2021 on a sample
basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

82

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Chui Yiu Cheong.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chui Yiu Cheong

Practising Certificate Number: P07219

Hong Kong
27 April 2022

2021 Annual Report | F 3§

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ERE

1% BY BT 5k B 4% AR S B A SRR KB
HEE (8

BREBZZEQETER ARAH (AP
B BN EASERNETHURERS
ZER BRERMAEEZTERNTIMNEX
M BPEZFRERFE o

BAMTRAEZZESRIEH  KRALMS
NEeBEBLEMHBERBRENR Y&
HEREARESEMKARETERMBEL
P EBEMEMERRRIEREE MK
MeTTE SRR M E e (HEm)

CHEBEZZEQETABNFERT  RMAE
EHAMGEMBRENELZTIIERRER
MER TRAKBZEETRESBREXS
R RMPELBMBEPRAZFER K
ERSER I AHFRRABEEZFER - 3
RIEmFREBERAT  WEEBARERSETE
BRERENNARRRBEEELNAR
Mt AIRPPRETEERETBBZER -

HERBIZBMBENEZREERAR
A KL -

BXPN(ER) EHMERHAERAE
HEEIAT

#IEE

HEZZ5HE - PO7219

BB
2022 4 B 27 H

83



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
(P Ti&xT FET
Revenue L 7 1,922,595 1,395,888
Cost of sales $HE AR (1,640,398) (1,197,471)
Gross profit EF 282,197 198,417
Other income H At Ug A 7 23,239 20,707
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HMAX (36,437) (25,356)
Administrative expenses THR X (98,748) (84,934)
Other (losses) and gains Hi (518 ks 9 (8,303) 4,939
Research and development expenses e (65,100) (54,978)
Finance costs B TS R 10 (44,975) (28,094)
Profit before tax R %52 B0 7 i 51,873 30,701
Income tax credit FristiE o 11 69 329
Profit for the year FEMNR 12 51,942 31,030
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AL REEFDE
— Owners of the Company —ARNFHEAA 51,469 30,958
- Non-controlling interest — IR R A 473 72
51,942 31,030
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings per share SRETR
Basic and diluted BEARRE#E 15 0.24 0.14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEiRaRAMZEmia®R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ti&xT FHIT
Profit for the year FEFNE 51,942 31,030
Other comprehensive (expense) income that HEBTFEEHL/EFIELS
will not be reclassified subsequently to B HE {2 (F3) Y ss :
profit or loss:
Fair value (loss) gain on investment in equity EEZRAREF AREMEE I
instrument designated at fair value through other ~ A T AR ENARE
comprehensive income (E18) = (8) 448
Other comprehensive income that may be HETREHFSEZRSH
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: Htt 2 mEYRaS -
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBIINEBEHBRREED
financial statements of foreign operations PE X Z%R 16,249 42,688
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHME2EKE 16,241 43,136
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EWALEE 68,183 74,166
Total comprehensive income for the year UWTATEGEFEZERYA
attributable to: FEEE
— Owners of the Company —KRRAIHEEA 68,626 73,996
- Non-controlling interest —JEIERRAE (443) 170
68,183 74,166
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBIk

As at 31 December 2021 72021412 A31H

2021 2020
2021 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(P Ti&xT FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B & 16 351,357 248,072
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 54,562 62,304
Investment property wREYE 18 26,300 -
Financial assets at fair value through RAREFABR 2SR
profit or loss BE 19 7,478 3,510
Financial asset at fair value through BAREEAEMETR
other comprehensive income Wz e REE 20 10,367 3,683
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, BEWE  BENEE
plant and equipment BEfN%ES 6,115 52,898
Deposits with bank RITER 24 183,464 178,223
Deferred taxation IEERIIR 28 8,052 8,312
647,695 557,002
Current assets MENEE
Inventories e 21 312,029 220,710
Trade receivables JE U BR 5K 22 672,316 566,740
Bills receivables JE W R 15 22 265,827 157,675
Prepayments, deposits and other AR FIE - me RE
receivables ftb FE Y TR IE 23 79,443 151,101
Pledged bank deposits BHEFIRITER 24 342,017 277,267
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NI S 24 112,312 101,520
1,783,944 1,475,013
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables FETER X 25 400,649 295,154
Bills payables NS 25 763,867 545,268
Other payables and accruals HEtpEAHERERER 25 58,418 35,967
Contract liabilities AHEE 26 22,499 6,210
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R E At &K 27 325,429 346,569
Income tax payables FERPTEH 3,497 5,912
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 5,928 8,974
1,580,287 1,044,054
Net current assets MAEEZRE 203,657 230,959
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERSE 851,352 787,961
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReEMBRAER

As at 31 December 2021 42021512 A31H

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ff 5% Ti&xT FET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred taxation RIEDTE 28 368 381
Corporate bond NEESH 29 1,936 1,896
Government grants BT 8 30 18,793 18,398
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 10,205 15,419
31,302 36,094
Net assets EERE 820,050 751,867
Capital and reserves BARKG#E
Share capital N 31 2,168 2,168
Reserves fFE 816,313 747,687
Equity attributable to owners of the RARIHE ANEGER
Company 818,481 749,855
Non-controlling interests FEEARE 1,569 2,012
Total equity MRS 820,050 751,867
The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 202 were FBAE202 B MR A M BT B R 2022F 4
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 RAoTEEESHEREETE - WH T3
April 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: REKEE
Mr. Chen Chung Po Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu
PREBFE S EWmEZL
Director Director
Ex EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeHRERR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 831 H I FfE

Attributable to owners of the Company
AARREAEL
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Translation Revaluation Merger  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity

Bx  ROEE  ERGE  ERRE  EERE  AHEE  REWR At FERED LU
HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Tién Ti#n Tién Tin Tién TR Tién Tin Tién Tién

(Note a) (Note b)
(Hta) (kD)
At1 January 2021 R01%E1 A1 2,168 332,147 61,938 (9,759) 448 34,561 328,352 749,855 2,012 751,867
Proft for the year EERE - - - - - - 51,469 51,469 413 51,942
Ottercompretensie R AB2ANE
income for the year
-~ fair value loss on -BEARRA

investment n equity Bt AEH
instument designated 2 AWEZ

at far value through BHEIER
other comprehensive BIRR
income Bt s S e S @® - g (8 c )

-echngediforences  ~BEBINER
arising on ransiafion HhhRE
of fnancial statements  EAIER
of foreign aperations ] = = = 17,165 - - - 17,165 (¢16) 16,49

Total comprehensive income & 2EAA
forthe year g = - - 17,165 ® - 51,469 68,626 (443) 68,183

Transfer g - - 3775 - - - (3,775) - - -

At 31 December 2021 R0
12R31H 2,168 332,147 65,713 7,406 440 34,561 376,046 818,481 1,569 820,050
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HFeHEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

LONG2pN
Non-
Share Share Sttutory ~ Translation  Revaluation Merger Retained controling Total
capital premium resenve resene resenve resene profits Total interest equity
ke RGRE  AERE  ERRR  EMEE  SMEE  REWE At HERER s
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
Tin TATL T TAT T TAT THETL TAT TATL Tin
(Note &) (Note b)
(Mita) (KistD)
At1 January 2020 R200%E1 1R 2,168 331917 61,589 (62,349) - 34,561 297,743 675,689 - 675,689
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - - - - 30958 30958 7 31,080
Other comprehensive EEEMZALG
income for the year
~fairvalue gain on —ERARAA
investment in equity EFAZE
insiument designated ~~ 2EREZ
at fair value through EsIi
other comprehensive 1A
income ArEkE - - - - 448 - - 48 - 48
-echngediferences  ~BEEINEH
arising on tranglation EpE
of financial tatement EEHES
of foreign operations Ef = S = 42590 = = = 42,590 % 42,688
Total comprehensive income EE2E4A
for the year a% = = - 42590 448 - 30958 739% 170 74,166
Capita inection by FRRER TR
non-controling inerests  (H&E38)
(Note 38) = = = = = = = = 1,33 1,336
Transaction with EERRERES
non-controling interests #1253 - 170 - - - - - 170 506 676
Transfer ki - - 349 - - - (349) - - -
At 31 December 2020 R2020%
12A318 2,168 332,147 61,938 (9,759 448 34,9561 328,362 749,855 2,012 751,867
Notes: FiEE
(@)  As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the (@ T % i\ R #\ AE ([ E ) AR R E A DA E/\\ B
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC are required to ﬁk 3K % 38 ) i B /D* al 33 i E B A
appropriate 10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) as &/é METE %\ % = B'%fﬁ A (E’:\ﬁ 85 E n FE
determined in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC, BE1818)10% RIAE MM - BEMHEERERR
to statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered 8 ETEHﬂ B 20% c BEE I REHAR DK
capital of the relevant subsidiaries. The transfer to this reserve must be made BB THem e ARIEL -
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.
(b)  Merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal value of the b) aEHfFEEHEEREEESHRENHBARNE

issued capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation over
the consideration paid for acquiring these subsidiaries.

In 20183, as part of the pre-listing reorganisation, the Company issued 135
ordinary shares of HK$1,000,000 each which, through its subsidiaries, were
used to subscribe for new shares issued and allotted by Wai Chi Group
(HK) Limited and became the holding company of the Group. The difference
between the proceeds from the issuance of shares and the then share capital
and capital reserve subscribed was recognised in the merger reserve.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeRKRiER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Government grants
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) in
respect of trade and other receivables
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net
Loss on write-off of property, plant and
equipment
Reversal of provision of inventories
Provision of inventories
Loss from changes in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in bills receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Increase in trade payables

Increase in bills payables

Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities

Increase (decrease) in other payables and
accruals

Cash generated from operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

90

BEEY

BR A A A

RAEUTEE:
BURY I
SRITA BHA
WE - BELRETE
EREEENE
B B
391 P B K e A P MR

R (EE) RERE

HEME BB R&EKE

ek

REOFERE

FEEE

RAREFABRREZER
BEZARAERZYER

EEEEHA
BELLRE

B () R

JE AR BRI

VeSSl

BNFR - He M EMER
TR

FE A BRBE A

ANESE Sl

AaRaEEm i)

Hi s R Bie & g
(RA)

REMELERS
ENFPBEERMAEH

REFHMELRS
FH

2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
51,873 30,701
44,975 28,904
(9,298) (3,605)
48,274 45,261
10,186 7,710
(5,442) (11,707
B
10,455 (5,814)
(58) -
18
702 123
(9,364) (1,920)
6,483 1,625
729 1,170
149,515 91,638
(82,093) 738
(99,623) (80,363)
(101,969) (56,484)
71,345 118,959
96,684 39,322
199,601 218,102
16,171 2,571)
o
7,832 (19,964)
257,463 309,377
(2,047) 2,377)
255,416 307,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeEReiER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE FTi#&x FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Interest received BUFIE 2,592 1,912
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through B E3& A BT AIBz5 2
profit or loss TREE (4,697) (4,680)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value through EEZ AR EFAEMBEE
other comprehensive income Wz emEE (6,692) (3,235)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE - BE K&
equipment FniS k1A 238 5,267
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELEE (25,359) (37,709)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary Y& — &1 KT B 2 7159
fﬁ SRLFE 39 (79,749) -
Decrease (increase) in deposits with bank TEFOR D (&) - (168,668)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits TEHX BEIRRITIE R 519,317 47,624
Placements of pledged bank deposits FABEBEITFR (575,250) (132,096)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and KB « BiE MR ED T
equipment e - (44,500)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZENFTARE B (169,600) (336,085)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Interest paid BERAFE (44,894) (27,359)
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITREAMBER (757,810) (591,965)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREARE (9,962) (5,829)
New bank and other borrowings raised HIgIR1T R H AR {5 5K 729,686 635,878
Government grants received B WK 6 B 5,296 11,671
Capital injection received from non-controling  JEIERR =T E
interests = 1,336
Transaction with non-controlling interests BIFERERETNR 5 = 506

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING  RiEEEI(FTR)FELEERE
ACTIVITIES FE (77,684) 24,138

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND R&RIR&ZEWIEMGREL)

CASH EQUIVALENTS B 8,132 (4,947)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MB1ENRERRELEED

AT 1 JANUARY 101,520 101,816
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEFHNFE 2,660 4,651

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATTHE MW 12A31HE&RBNEZR
END OF 31 DECEMBER, represented by REEEY » BRERTER
bank balances and cash EkRE 112,312 101,520
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

92

GENERAL

Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands on 16 August 2013 and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 November 2014. Its
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Yiu Chi To, who passed away
on 28 January 2022. The address of the registered office of
the Company is Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Limited,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal place of business
of the Company is 6th Floor, Liven House, 63 King Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 38.

The functional currency of the Company and the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) while
that of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are Renminbi
(“BRMB”). For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) adopted HK$
as its presentation currency.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2021:

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)”) 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

—iR&H

FEEERERAR (A7) H—HER
2013 F8 A 16 HRIBEFEH S R AEKE
FREHEAMKIMNEREZBRAA
i H AR D R 20145611 A18 AL BB
ERGAARAT ([BZA]) Etk -
HE&ER A AkEB % E (R 2022 F
1 H28 B Et) - KRG ERD
#b 4k & Offshore Incorporations (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands * M4 2 &=
BEEME AT B NEBRERETGIR
FlERE6RE -

ARRTENEREZER - LB T
B EEEBENMIEESS

RRRRREBTMA LM E QR
WeeEBRAET ((Bx]))  MRFEX
YHMBEARNDEEESARE (A
R¥)) M2 HEAPBHREMS A
REREMBAR (TXaEA%EM])
RNBTREZINEE -

FEFAFE] & B KRS ER
(TEBMKHELED]) REE
HE

AEE AEBERERATHESS
o ((EBEAMAE) BHENE
BB REER ([ EBMEHREERD
BN BAEER2021F181HH
3R B B B TS A AR

ERUHRELBE16%  ECOVID-19
(1B3TA) HENEE
BR
EEMEREERFEY - FREE

BRETER((FREF HE-
BRI FE39%  BERYE  F2RR
RERAETH BB
HHRELR B4R R
BERMBREEAF 165
CHEN)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021 which clarified
the costs an entity should include as “estimated costs necessary
to make the sale” when determining the net realisable value of
inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform - phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting
for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows
of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (i) discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (‘IBOR
reform”).

The amendments did not have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group, as the Group does not
have contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest rates
which are subject to the IBOR reform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendment to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments®
Reference to Conceptual Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021°

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and the related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transactions®

Property, plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 cycle?

& #T5] & 8 R 15 3R 25 2 R
(IERMBEHEEA]) REE
HENE))
EEMEERKRENNMITEEMR
B|EEANREEETE
REBVWEEFEAUTEEMERR
EREFRI BB MR E LR R EAERT
7N

BAMBHREED RRAOR

FT5 RAET
BEMBHREED  HSEREMR
EREACHEN)

BEMBREER REFAABENFIAE
F10RREEE DEZRAMEEHER

SERIZSE  TE
CHES)

ERPHHEEDN 202156308 %H
F165% (IB3TAR)  COVID-1948E R
HeER
| BaEIERRDAELHE
EHEN) RBEE REBRESR
5(2020) S A MK K 2
N-ERAHEHREX
BEKZNTHERNS
BOEBEERS

BEAGEAE1S SHBRRES

REAMBRE
EHEBRES
25% (B3] )
BRGHERFCH EFthitaTER®
(B31A)
BEGEAF12 HE-RHELNEERA
pACHES) ERANELER A
BEGTENFEI6 VE BERRE: HER
pACHES) EAIR SR’
BREHRAEY BEESHN-EIAHMN
pACHES) A2
EERBREED 2018FF2020FBHES
CHES; MHREERNFRRE?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods on or after 1 April 2021.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference to HKFRS 3 so that it
refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”)
instead of Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2010 issued in October 2010). They also
add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a
result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope
of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to
a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.
Finally, the amendments add an explicit statement that an
acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a
business combination.

The amendments are effective for business combinations for
which the date of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early
application is permitted if an entity also applies all other updated
references (published together with the updated Conceptual
Framework) at the same time or earlier.

2021 Annual Report | F 3§

FER#MET & B FHEER
((ERMBHEE ] REE
BT A (48)

C M8 5 48 i R £ S B # 5] &8
BHEEIREBTR (E)

MN2021F4 A1 A HiE R B8 FE HME

AR o

2 M2022F 1 A1 B H BB FEHM
R o

8 R2028F1 A1HSEERBENFEHME
AR o

“ RIFERHSERARNFERMEY -

ARABERTEE B TIXdEN &
FE 3 5] B8 M 1S R R EAEET
i H & WA KB EE MM BARRE
ERTHMEE -

EBIKHEEREIR (ETAR)
B2ERREM

ZEBI R T EAMBHREENES
5% (F H IR al A 20184 6 A 2845 2 2018
FUBRERSER ((BRER]) -
JERE R 20 IS M RAELR (R 2010
FI0 A EMH 2010 F B 3 & 2 4E
BER) - ZF B EEAYBmEER
FIRFPIBA—BRE IR EBSE
FERNEFTHREEANELMS - WES
JEREBCEAEI7H  UEBEETRIK
BHHRARBTEIMEERBERS -
HRELS (BERYEREZEEEZES) -
REEIFHERGEANNBE - WEH
ERES (BERYBREZREZES) -
REFNR UEEBRINEHREARE
METEHREERKREBRARRLE - &
% ZEEEIEA—ERABEER - B
BHATERREEBREHRUEAIA

ZEER B AN Y BB 52022F1 A
1HHZRABMNEEFERBRGZ
B ZBRHEBEH R —(EEER
Rl R AIC EAMMAEMEE ARl
(REEHHOER—EEM) - AF
REEM -

95



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments to HKAS 1 affect only the presentation of
liabilities as current or non-current in the statement of financial
position and not the amount or timing of recognition of any
asset, liability, income or expenses, or the information disclosed
about those items.

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification
is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability, explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the
end of the reporting period, and introduce a definition of
‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer
to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or
services.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a consequence of
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current to align the corresponding wordings with no change
in conclusion.

The amendments are applied retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2021, the application of the amendments will not result in
change in the classification of the Group’s liabilities.

FE R # 5] & & B 15 3k & A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in HKAS 1 with
regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments
replace all instances of the term “significant accounting policies”
with “material accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in HKAS 1 are also amended
to clarify that accounting policy information that relates to
immaterial transactions, other events or conditions is immaterial
and need not be disclosed. Accounting policy information may
be material because of the nature of the related transactions,
other events or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating to
material transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.

Guidance and examples were provided to explain and
demonstrate the application of the “four-step materiality process”
described in HKFRS Practice Statement 2. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group but may affect the
disclosures of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s
future consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments to HKAS 8 introduce the definition of
“accounting estimates”. The amendments clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that
occur on or after the start of that period, with earlier application
permitted.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group currently applies
HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant assets and liabilities as
a whole. Temporary differences relating to relevant assets and
liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related

to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities which are subject to the amendments
amounted to HK$54,562,000 and HK$16,133,000 respectively.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early application
permitted. The Group is still in the process of assessing the full
impact of the application of the amendments.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain property and financial
instruments, that are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially all
of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.

Assets acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Business combinations

Businesses combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs incurred to effect a business combination are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the business
combination are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

e assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or the replacement
of the acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with
the share-based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

° Lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments as if the
acquired lease was a new lease at the acquisition date,
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within
12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of

goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e The Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created and
enhanced; or

e  The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes discounts and sales related
taxes.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods including
(i) Light-Emitting Diode (“LED”) backlight; (i) LED lighting; and (iii)
sourcing business.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered to location specified by the customers and accepted
by the customers, which is the point of time the customer
has the ability to direct the use of the products and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good or service provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts
as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a significant event
or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using revised discount rate.

e the lease payments change due to changes in an
index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

e A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are depreciated
over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-
use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term upon exercising purchase
options, the carrying amount of the relevant right-of-use asset is
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Lease modlification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect
to some of its investment properties. Leases for which the
Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging on operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease modification

For operating lease

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Sales and leaseback transactions

The Group acts as a séller — lessee

The Group applies the requirement of HKFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitute a sale by
the Group as a seller-lessee. For a transfer that does not satisfy
the requirements as a sale, the Group accounts for the transfer
proceeds as borrowings within the scope of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs (continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to stage-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment property that is measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amount of such property is presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. The directors of the Company reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that none of the Group’s investment property is held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in investment property over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have determined that the “sale” presumption set out
in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment property as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the investment
property on disposal.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress
as described below are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
(continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Owned investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the property is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value of inventories represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") and FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses (“ECL”), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (continueaq)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting
periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item (Note 7).

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation
at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (continued)

Dividends from investments in equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
“Other income” lien item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as
at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition.

o Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost
criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part
of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other losses
and gains” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).

This category contains investment in a life insurance policy. The
Group accounts for the investment at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS9

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised costs. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS9 (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate
to the Group’s operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS9 (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if () the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and (i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment grade’
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating
of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there are no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS9 (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor;
or

° information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the debtor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having

granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS9 (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

e it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this
is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS9 (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an
investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected
on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised
cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or
(i) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised
cost (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generation units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s leasing
transactions, net realisable value of inventories and value in
use of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
for the purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occurs between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgement, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in trading of high-tech electronic
components and products. The Group assessed whether the
Group should recognise revenue on gross basis based on the
requirements in HKFRS 15. The Group concluded that the
Group acts as the principal for such transactions as it controls
the specified good before it is transferred to the customer after
taking into consideration indicators such as that the Group
is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the goods. The Group has inventory risk and discretion in
establishing selling prices of the goods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price for
inventories, less all the estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sales. The management reviews
the inventory ageing listing on a periodic basis for those aged
inventories. This involves comparison of carrying value of the
aged inventory items with the respective net realisable value.
The purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is required
to be made in the consolidated financial statements for any
obsolete and slow moving items. Although the Group carried
periodic review on the net realisable value of inventory, the
actual realisable value of inventory is not known until the
sale was concluded. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amount of inventories of the Group was HK$312,029,000
(2020: HK$220,710,000) (net of impairment provision of
HK$74,002,000 (2020: HK$74,737,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment provisions of trade receivables are based on
assumptions about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional impairment charge to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 December
2021, the carrying amount of trade receivables of the Group
was HK$672,316,000 (2020: HK$566,740,000) (net of
impairment losses of trade receivables of HK$32,563,000 (2020:
HK$25,442,000)).

Estimated useful life of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the directors of the
Company review the estimated useful life of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets with finite useful life.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets with finite useful life as at 31 December
2021 are HK$351,357,000 and HK$54,562,000 respectively
(31 December 2020: HK$248,072,000 and HK$62,304,000
respectively).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were
HK$351,357,000 and HK$54,562,000 respectively (2020:
HK$248,072,000 and HK$62,304,000 respectively). Details of
the impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are disclosed in Notes 16 and Note 17 respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain deductible
temporary differences. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying values
of deferred tax assets of the Group were HK$8,052,000 (2020:
HK$8,312,000), further details of which are disclosed in Note
28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value of investment property

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment property
amounted to HK$26,300,000 (2020: HK$NIl). They are stated
at estimated fair value, determined by directors, based on an
independent external appraisal. The valuation of the Group’s
investment property is inherently subjective due to a number
of factors including the individual nature of each property, its
location, expectation of future rentals and the discount yield
applied to those cash flows.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consist of net debt, (which
includes bank and other borrowings disclosed in note 27,
corporate bond disclosed in note 29, net of pledged bank
deposits, deposits with bank and bank balances and cash) and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new shares issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debit.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. EMITAH

Categories of financial instruments

EHMEE
B SRR

Financial assets

Amortised cost (including bank balances and
cash)

Financial assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

THMaHE
ZE S RN

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

(BRERITEBKNEAD)
BAnEHARMEEERREZ

BAREFABGZZEMEE

T AENER
2021 2020
2021 5 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
1,633,291 1,354,552
10,367 3,683
7,478 3,510
1,651,136 1,361,745
1,544,512 1,217,075

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL and FVTOCI, trade receivables, bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
deposits with bank, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
bills payables, other payables and accruals, bank and other
borrowings and corporate bond. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 31% (2020: approximately 29%) of the
Group’s sales is denominated in United States dollars (‘US$”)
other than the functional currency of the group entity making
the sale, while approximate 48% (2020: approximately 37 %)
of costs is denominated in US$ which are different from the
functional currencies of the entities carrying out the transactions.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Also, certain trade, bills and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade, bills and other payables and bank borrowings
are denominated in RMB, US$, HK$ and other currencies which
are currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RMB AR
uss$ ETT
HK$ BT

6.

&R T H (%)
B 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

% E kg (%)
B (#)
BESN - E T REUER R - AR IR R HoAl

FEM IR~ RITESHRRIRE - BARRF
J& A SRR S B Al B A SRR IA S RTT (8 3K
MAR® X -BLThEHEEEER
DRI EMERIE AKE
RBEMRUINEFENEREERE

BEENREERT
Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2021
202145
HK$°000
TET

319
39,124
235

2020 2021 2020
20204 2021 £ 20204
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T8 FET

633 - =
151,793 197,727 188,011
141 2,737 768

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to RMB and HK$.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for US$ as the financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ are mainly held by
the subsidiaries with HK$ as the function currency and HK$ is
pegged to USS.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2020: 5%) increase or decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies other than US$. 5% (2020: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for
a 5% (2020: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
(negative) number below indicates an increase (a decrease)
in post-tax profit where the respective functional currencies
strengthen by 5% (2020: 5%) against the relevant currency.
For a 5% (2020: 5%) weakening of HK$ against the relevant
foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit and other equity and the balances below would be

&R T H (%)
B 35 L B E I B R R BUR (4])

hi% E ks (48)

B (&)

BRRE DT (88)
TRAVAEEBFBBETHETAINIG
HERAONE EF T #5% (2020 4F : 5%)
R ERE ° 5% (20204F : 5% ) AN EB[A)
FEEIE A B RS IMNE R FTE B A&
R E  RERBEEEBYINEIERSIER
REEEFNTG  RELSNEREN A
BEIRWLASNETMEREREIER - WHLE
REFH5% (20204F : 5%) M EH R &R E
HRMBREERFAZE - TXAIMIE(8)
HAERME B SR X AEINEHE
5% (2020 4F : 5%) R BR L 1& FIEE A0 Ok
) o Wi T K AR B N B2 (B 5% (2020
F:5%) BHEABEREMEZERE
LLHENERFE MU TEREEEH -

negative.

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x FAT

Impact on profit for the year HERNFENZE
RMB AR 0) (13) (25)
HK$ ETT (i) 106 25

(i)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure to bank balances
and cash and trade and bills receivables denominated in
RMB at the end of the reporting period.

(i)  This is mainly attributable to exposure to bank balances
and cash, trade and bills receivables and trade and bills
payables denominated in HK$ at the end of the reporting
period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and deposits with bank
(see Note 24) and fixed-rate bank and other borrowings (see
Note 27). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank
balances (see Note 24) and variable-rate bank borrowings
(see Note 27). It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)/
London Interbank Borrowing Rate (“LIBOR”) arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated borrowings and the
fluctuation of Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point (2020: 50 basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 would decrease/increase by HK$1,531,000 (2020: post-
tax profit decrease/increase by HK$126,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from bank balances,
pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank, trade receivables,
bills receivables and deposits and other receivables. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent our Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the ECL collectively by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss
experience, as well as the general economic conditions of
the industry in which the debtors operate. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

For bills receivables and deposits and other receivables, the
Group has assessed whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss
allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance as at 31
December 2021, HK$178,967,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$214,824,000), representing 27% (31 December 2020: 38%)
of the total trade receivables, is due from the Group’s largest
customer. There are no other customers who represent more
than 5% of the total trade receivable balance as at the end of
the reporting periods. The concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

The Group's exposure to credit risk

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked a team
to develop and maintain the Group’s credit risk gradings to
categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default.
The credit rating information is supplied by independent rating
agencies where available and, if not available, the operation
management committee uses other publicly available financial
information and the Group’s own trading records to rate its major
customers and other debtors. The Group’s exposure and the
credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credlit risk (continued)
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the

R THE (&)
B 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

EEREM (&)

A& [E E i < 1= B R ()
AEEBNZERER

T R AE R B A

following categories: T#aRl
Basis for recognising
Category Description ECL
ERIEHEERHE
Fl| ik op=%: 3
Performing For financial assets where there has been low risk of default or 12-month ECL
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
B %Y REARBREE SN VIAERAREER R MEEEIE MR 2EAEEEEEE
TREREERENEREE BE KR
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase Lifetime ECL — not credit-
in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit- impaired
impaired (refer to as Stage 2)
2+ AR BERARGERRBREEMEYBEREEREN FEHPEHEEFE
TREE(BEZRR) —EBREERE
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit-impaired when one or Lifetime ECL — credit-
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated impaired
future cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as
Stage 3)
=) BERLSHZEAEMAARAKREASREEXN TN EN—H HFENRBEEESE
ZREN AIeREESRTIER/LREERE (FBE=EKR) —HREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
s BRBERE %“AB%A?EE’J%‘“I%&H$EITW%Elfé WEEBERE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to crediit risk (continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial
assets, as well as the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
by credit risk rating grades.

Gross
Internal credit 12-month or carrying
Notes ~ rating lifetime ECL amount
12BAS%ES
i ABEEIR RHERER REAE
HK$'000
Fién
Trade receivables 22 (Note) Lifetime ECL (simplified
approach) 704,879
EYER (Rizt) FERRAEEER
(%)
Bills receivables 22 Performing 12-month ECL 265,821
LLES ) 12ERESEEBR
Deposits and other 23 Performing 12-month ECL
receivables 64,282
e REMENGE Bf) PRERRSBEEER

6. €M T H (%)
B 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

S8R (8)
AEEE G ZEm R (&
TRAMREERRTEE D ZAEE
CREEZEEEEUNAEEERZ
RAEERR

31/12/2021 3112/2020
20215128 318 2020124318
Net Gross Net
Loss carrying carrying Loss carrying
allowance amount amount allowance amount
BREAR  REFE EEETE R )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#én Ti#gn Fin T TR
(32,563) 672,316 592,182 (25,442) 566,740
- 265,827 157,675 - 157,675
(6,927) 57,355 75,779 (2,652) 13121
(39,490) (28,094)

Note: For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the ECL on trade receivables collectively by using a
provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience
and the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to
reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.
Note 22 includes further details on the loss allowance for these assets.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL as
disclosed in note 19 best represents their respective maximum
exposure to credit risk. The Group holds no collateral over any
of these balances.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The

management monitors the utilisation of bank and other
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
available unutilised trade financing and bank loan facilities of
HK$472,601,000 (2020: HK$230,221,000), details of which are
set out in Note 27(e).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank and other borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks or financial
institution choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates
for other non-derivatives financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. T A (48)
Financial risk management objectives and BEEREREEERBR (E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REVE 2K (&)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To TRERMNEERATCESTRE - HHA
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted MEFHAE BRI ESEUNSRE
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of each HIKRE R R 4RETE o

reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021

R2021512A31H
More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5years cash flows amount
BEEX BiB1F HiB2F RER
H1FR BLR2F BLR5FE  RERAHE IREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT TExT TExT Tl THT
Trade payables JERTBRRR 400,649 - - 400,649 400,649
Bills payables BNEE 763,867 - - 763,867 763,867
Other payables and accruals ~ E B ZIEK
BIREBA 52,631 - - 52,631 52,631
Bank and other borrowings RITREMIER
(Note) (Pif3x) 325,429 - - 325,429 325,429
Corporate bond NEfER 160 160 1,960 2,280 1,936
1,542,736 160 1,960 1,544,856 1,544,512
Lease liabilities HEBE 6,656 4,101 6,926 17,683 16,133
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£MIA (&)
B 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

RENE £ ER ()

As at 31 December 2020
72020412 A 31 H

Liquidity risk (continued)

More than More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
or within less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
FEEK wiR1F B2 F R
F1ER BAR2EF BLREE HERMEHE RHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TR THT THT
Trade payables JERTBRRR 295,154 - - 295,154 295,154
Bills payables APES 545,268 - - 545,268 545,268
Other payables and accruals ~ E b B ZIE K
EiRER 28,188 - - 28,188 28,188
Bank and other borrowings RITREAME R
(Note) (FizE) 346,569 - - 346,569 346,569
Corporate bond NEfER 160 160 2,120 2,440 1,896
1,215,339 160 2,120 1,217,619 1,217,075
Lease liabilities MEBE 10,085 6,356 10,537 26,958 24,393
Note: Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause s REEREREEGRIOBITRAMER

are included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$325,429,000 (2020: HK$346,569,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks and financial institution
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors of the Company believe that these bank and other
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to HK$357,127,000
(2020: HK$352,713,000).

RERBHBA DM ATEESRKS1FR]
R RAR - R2021 12 A31H © #%
SRTREMERORBBERSBEA
325,429,0007% 7T (2020 4F : 346,569,000
HBIL)  KEBAEENT BEMRIE -
ARREEWTRAEIT RS B E A
BERITEHBMERZRAKEER - AQ
REZEERBRSBITREMERER
BERERWENBTERBEEE -
B A RFIBES R L AEGET
357,127,000 7T (2020 4F : 352,713,000
EIT) ©

37 B M) K 2 B A B 45 Bk MR A
BRI ERIEFTESBEBLD
FETASERARE -

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each
reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. FETE (48)
Financial risk management objectives and BERMEE BERBE(E)
policies (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SR TENDAETE
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments THREENESHREHKRIZAAEITEN
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting SR TESH  WREARE IA?#EQ%
period, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to HERAABEINEBRZIEESEAE —
which the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s = o

accounting policy.

31/12/2021
2021%12H 318

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F— -t 1 E=R @t

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET T Tl TET
Financial assets at FVTPL 1§ﬁﬁﬁ*li§§2§?ﬂ§§

Investments in a life insurance policy SRMERE s 7,478 = 7,478
Financial asset at FVTOCI # L\;L.{E.?l‘/\ﬁﬁi’.ﬁﬁllﬂﬁz

SMEE
Unlisted equity investment FEMEREE - - 10,367 10,367
Total st - 7,478 10,367 17,845
31/12/2020
2020% 128318

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£ g4 E=4 B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THx FExT FET TET
Financial asset at FVTPL BRAOREFAREZEREE

Investment in a life insurance policy ~ ASRBREHRE = 3,510 = 3,510
Financial asset at FVTOCI BRAREFARMZEKREZ

SHEE
Unlisted equity investment EEMEREE - - 3,683 3,683
Total st - 3,510 3,683 7,193
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value
measurements of each financial instruments on a recurring basis

are set out below:

Financial instruments

$RIR

Investments in a ffe insurance
poliey

AERRERE

Unisted equity investment

FETERIRE

6. €M T H (%)
B 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

EMTANDAENE (B)

EeMIERAR

Bt EMERNGEET

ERBARE GREFHEEE) HIIIT -

Valuation Significant Relationship of key inputs
Fair value techniques and unobservable and significant unobservable
hierarchy Fair value as at key inputs inputs inputs to fair values
{EERER EXRT IZHAHBREATTRE
MREER IEBANE LN ¢ HABBELAENBE
RTAPIPIVAN  31/12/2020
piak: N0%F
124310 EERVERILE
HK$’00_0 HKS'000
Tin TEL
Level2 1418 3510 Quoted price by the NA NA
220 nsurance company A NER
REAIRE
Level 3 10,367 3683 Market approach Mean Enterprise Value-to-sale rafio The mean of EV/S is postively correlated
=8 (ks (‘EV/S") mutiples of 1.04 (2020: Ni) fothe fair valug measurement of the

CEERRHELX([EVIS]) B2
BI04 (20007 : &)

Mean Price-to-book ratio (‘P/B") multiples
0f 1.282020: 0.90)

mEERAELE (HRE]) &2
P8 1,28 (2000 : 090%)

Mean Enterprise Value-to-Eaming Before
Interest and Taxes ratio (‘EV/EBIT')
muttiples of 15.37 (2020: Ni)

PEEEREREHARALE
([E/EBIT ) B &en 15,3715
(005 : 8)

Mean Price-to-Eaming ratio (‘P/E')
muttiples of 15,62 (2020: Ni)
TRERHLE(HBE)RY
815,621 (20205 : &)

Marketabilty iscount rate of 20%
- (2020: 20%)
i BEE 0% (20205 : 20%)

Mean Price-to-Sales ratio (‘P/S") muttiples
0f 2020: 0.54 (2021: Nil

MOETEREEL 2 (HEE)) By
RALE - 054f5 (2021 : B)

unlisted equity investment

EVISH S Bk FRERREN
DMEHEZIER

The mean of P/B is posttively correlated
o the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity investment

mREMAIHEE FERREN
MEEZIER

The mean of EV/EBIT is posiively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity investment

EVEBIT RS ES FEERENAL
e e

The mean of P/B is postiively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equty investment

mREEES TERREN
AMEFEZTER

The discount rate is negatively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity investment

REEE HERRENAARNEZ
fiiE

The mean of P/S s posively correlated!
to the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity investment

mREEES TERREN
MEBHEZTHE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

During the reporting periods, there were no transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy.

For recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy, if the marketability discount rate to
the valuation model were 5% higher/lower while all the other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of the unlisted
equity securities would decrease/increase by HK$878,000
(2020:HK$230,000).

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets on recurring basis:

6.

£MIA (&)
B 35 L B 3 B R R BUR (4R)

EMTANDAENE (B)

R|EPIR AREBR2 SREYL
mHY

TEERANBEERE=-HNEEER
REFEME  WEEEXOTERR
WERLEFH TFHE5% MAEEMBES
MERE ABEETRABENETE
HR 1 149 878,00058 7T (2020 4F :
230,000/ 7T) °

CRMEEF=HRLAME

il
&
il

=0

Unlisted equity

investment

ELEHRRRE

HK$’000

T

Purchases BE 3,235
Total gains in other comprehensive income H 2 s B W e 48 BE 448
At 31 December 2020 7R 2020412 A31 H 3,683
Purchases #E 6,692
Total losses in other comprehensive income HE2EK=ERESELRS 8
At 31 December 2021 72021412 A31 H 10,367

For the year ended 31 December 2021, included in the above
total gains or losses is an amount of HK$8,000 losses (2020:
HK$448,000 gains) relating to unlisted equity investment
designated at FVTOCI held at the end of the year.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WESREMIEA
Revenue represented revenue arising on sales of goods for WREFANHEEEmEEN KRR A&
the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as BEFAMKEI>TET

follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$000 HK$'000
Fign TAT

Revenue from contracts with customers EBHERELEBE155EEE

within the scope of HKFRS 15 AREEFEF AL
Disaggregated by major products BREIEERESHNBRHE
Sales of goods HEEm
LED backlight LED & 3 1,454,015 988,091
LED lighting LED & AH 149,435 74,360
Sourcing business BT 319,145 333,437

1,922,595 1,395,888

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$000 HK$'000
Figx THET

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts ZEZEEEI P KEEFEFAN
with customers by timing of recognition ~ BJURZSEA4H

Timing of revenue recognition Uit 2 FE SR R ]
At a point in time TE S (A 2 1,922,595 1,395,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

7. WaERkHEMURA ()
REBERNNEMBBEAITOT -

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s other income for the year is as

follows:
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Other income Hiig A
Bank interest income SRITH BUA 9,298 3,605
Government grants (Note) BT f B (B 7E) 5,442 11,707
Sales of scrapped materials 5 55 BE 1,510 13
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BE &
equipment Bl 58 -
Rental income He A 2,768 1,481
Sundry income HMIEU A 4,163 3,901
23,239 20,707
Note: Included in the amount, there are government grants immediately M : ZXEBRERHE2021F12A318 1k

recognised as other income during the year ended 31 December
2021 of HK$5,296,000 (2020: HK$10,436,000) which were received
from the PRC government in respect of certain research projects and
salaries subsidies.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$1,135,000 (2021: HKS$NIl) in respect of
COVID-19 related subsidies, which was related to Employment
Support Scheme provided by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.

There are no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies attached to
the receipts of those subsidies.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, amount of HK$146,000
(2020: HK$136,000) were government grants recognised as deferred
income utilised during the year (see Note 30).
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F 5 B B W R A HL A UK A O TS 4 B
5,296,000 7t (20204 : 10,436,000
L) WARRETHEEARIEMAA
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HZE2020F12A31BILFEE A& H
i 32 81 COVID-19 #8 8 45 Bh &Y B AT 47 BY
1,135,000 /7T (2021 4F : &) - BEBE
AITHEBRFREHZENEESRER
R ETEEHA -

SEERZ 55 1 B A A R R (R 1R R EL A
HRER

HZE2021F12 A31 BILFE - BUF#B
146,000 7% 7T (2020 4F : 136,000 7T.)
RAEFENBBAELTERA (RKFES0) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM”) for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. In addition, for both LED
backlight and LED lighting operations and sourcing business of
high-tech electronic components and products, the information
reported to the CODM is further categorised into different types
of products and application of products. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. LED backlight — Manufacture and trading of LED
backlight products in different sizes
and applications

2. LED lighting — Manufacture and trading of LED
lighting products for public and
commercial use

3. Sourcing business — Provision of high-tech electronic
components and memory chips
related products sourcing business
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FEMEH (&)
Segment revenues and results SIS R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results AEEZRAZHREEDBEDHEE R
by reportable and operating segments. EESNWT -

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE20215FE 12831 HILEE

LED LED Sourcing

backlight lighting business Total

LED & 3 LED B& B REEK Bt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T8 TR TFExT T

REVENUE Y25
External sales SNERSEE 1,454,015 149,435 319,145 1,922,595
Segment profit pak= ¥l 151,360 4,542 2,547 158,449
Unallocated income ROBLBA 16,287
Unallocated expenses RO (79,060)
Unallocated finance costs RO B (43,803)
Profit before tax B B4 B 1B 51,873
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E2020F12A31BILFE
LED LED Sourcing

backlight lighting business Total

LED & ¥ LED fRAH RAE TS HBET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET

REVENUE Y25

External sales HNEB S 988,091 74,360 333,437 1,395,888
Segment profit 7 BB A 92,500 6,048 17,432 115,980

Unallocated income RO BLUA 9,041
Unallocated expenses RO (67,467)
Unallocated finance costs H 9 B B RS R AR (26,853)

Profit before tax B %51 B A1 E 30,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, bank interest income, net foreign exchange losses,
sundry income, certain unallocated finance costs and certain
unallocated other losses and gains. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segments:

Segment assets

SEER ()
BB ERES (]

EED MBS FTH R AN FEITM A S
B BE W oA BEIE DR
BEAE TEEFRITHRER EF
B RITFBUWA - E K EIBFE
HMEBWA BETRDBHBKNARSET
fli o B B Ath B 18 R IR & 9 95 B o it Th W)

EEERARAMBREERERSRER
%iﬁuﬁaﬂ BRI

FMEERAR

NEBZAIZREBEDBENNEER
BEITWT :

LED backlight LED & ¥t

LED lighting LED fR EH
Sourcing business BT
Total segment assets DEEEHRE
Unallocated assets ROWMEE
Consolidated total assets HEEERE

DEEE
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
1,328,788 1,106,382
162,896 94,399
151,506 178,317
1,643,190 1,379,098
788,449 652,917
2,431,639 2,032,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEEHF (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued) DEEEREE (E)
Segment liabilities AHEaE

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
LED backlight LED & 3¢ 1,102,066 806,715
LED lighting LED #8845 137,370 63,843
Sourcing business I T 39,133 53,327
Total segment liabilities DEPEEBE 1,278,569 923,885
Unallocated liabilities KoL aE 333,020 356,263
Consolidated total liabilities meAaBEes 1,611,589 1,280,148

RERDMRARDED HEERME

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

—  all assets are allocated to operating segments other than — FEBEENRZLEENE  BEEWH
deferred tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI, BEE BAABEFABRIRERA

pledged bank deposits, deposits with bank, bank balances
and cash, investment property and certain unallocated
other receivables. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues
earned by individual reportable segments; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than income tax payables, bank and other borrowings,
corporate bond, deferred tax liabilities, certain unallocated
lease liabilities and certain unallocated other payable,
accruals. Liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly
liable are allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by
individual reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021%F12 A31H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FEMEH (&)
Other segment information HinnHER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZEZ2021F12A31HILEE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business Unallocated Total
LEDE % LED & #A REBRT RAE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TEx TER TRx a7

Amounts included in the FASBERG S HEE

measure of segment profitor S EM£%E

loss or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets’ KRB IERENBE! 66,877 8,367 - 324 75,568
Depreciation of property, plant nE - BERSERE

and equipment 43,579 4,324 359 12 48,274
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & FREEENE 8,715 1,471 = = 10,186
Gain on disposal of property, HENE - BERRE

plant and equipment, net Wz g 50 8 = = 58
Loss on write-off of property, MENE  BEREE

plant and equipment B 702 S = = 702
Impairment losses (reversed) ot T B 0 e L At FE

recognised in respect of FIB () R E

trade and other receivables B (778) 11,773 (540) = 10,455
(Reversal of) provision of (BE)FERE

inventories (8,049) 5,168 = = (2,881)

Amounts regularly providedto FEHRTESEREA
the CODM but not included REEFHAZEH
in the measure of segment BRGANEE
profit or loss or segment ENSE:
assets:
Bank interest income HITHBUA - = = 9,298 9,298
Finance costs BBAA 1,07 99 = 43,805 44,975
# Non-current assets excluded investment property, deferred tax assets, 5 ERBEETREREYE  BEFHIEE
deposits with bank and financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL. B BOFERRRALBEFAEMEZEK

BRBEAREFABRGZZ ERAE °
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

8. DEPEH (&)
HihaEEH (4F)
HZE2020512H31BILLEE

LED LED Sourcing
backlight lighting business  Unallocated Total
LED& % LEDRRHA REXHK AOE AEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FHEL THL THT TEL
Amounts included in the FARHERSSNEE
measure of segment profitor S EMNEHE
loss or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets’  RE JEHEBEE 53,376 1,204 43,368 - 98,038
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BELSENE
and equipment 43,129 2,125 7 - 45,261
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ AEE EIE 6,655 1,055 = = 7,710
Loss on write-off of property, MENE - BER
plant and equipment REEE 116 7 - = 123
Impairment losses (reversed) ot T B 0 e L A fE
recognised in respect of IR (B E) BeRAE
trade and other receivables BB (5,211) (779 176 = (5,814)
(Reversal of) provision of (BE)FERE
inventories (461) 166 - - (295)
Amounts regularly providedto THIRTEZEREKEA
the CODM but notincluded ~ E#ER AL
in the measure of segment BRGANEE
profit or loss or segment FENSE:
assets:
Bank interest income H|ATH SHA - - - 3,605 3,605
Finance costs BB 1,139 102 - 26,853 28,094

#

Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets, deposits with bank

and financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEEHF (&)

Revenue from major products

Analysis by type of products

REFEEMBOWES
REMBERE NI

2021 2020
2021 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FAT
LED backlight LED & ¢
— Small dimension —/NRST 346,056 307,942
— Medium dimension —F R 1,043,604 618,492
— Large dimension — KR~ 64,355 61,657
Sub-total Nt 1,454,015 088,091
LED lighting LED & B
— Indoor lighting —= A RA 143,334 71,801
— Outdoor lighting — = HMNER A 6,101 2,559
Sub-total Nt 149,435 74,360
Sourcing business RBER
— High-tech electronic components and - RHEEFE I &
products sourcing EmiEE - 88,987
— Memory chips related products sourcing —FRESFBBEEBEE 319,145 244,450
Sub-total INET 319,145 333,437
Total ot 1,922,595 1,395,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Revenue from major products (continued)

Analysis by application of products

ZEEH (B)
REFTEEmMWKES ()
RERERBS NN

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
LED backlight LED Bt
- Automobile displays — B HERR 1,158,602 706,600
— Equipment displays — RN 229,685 220,580
— Televisions —ERHE 65,728 60,911
Sub-total NEE 1,454,015 988,091
LED lighting LED & EH
— Commercial lighting — P A RREA 143,334 71,801
— Public lighting — AR 6,101 2,559
Sub-total /NET 149,435 74,360
Sourcing business R T
— High-tech electronic components and - SREETFEBHR
products sourcing EmEE - 88,987
— Memory chips related products sourcing —GREAEEEREE 319,145 244,450
Sub-total /NEE 319,145 333,437
Total axt 1,922,595 1,395,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021%F12 A31H It FE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. SERER (4
Geographical information M & A
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. AEEMEEEBMNREBRFEH - K
The Group’s customers are mainly located in Hong Kong and SENEFPFEURBEERPHE -
the PRC.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers is REEZEFPHMBUEEI D REAIBE
presented based on the location of customers as below: PRz T -
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Ti&xT FHET
The PRC a2 1,389,381 1,032,167
Hong Kong &G 87,499 234,972
g gt 203,603 49,925
Others i) 152,112 78,824
1,922,595 1,395,888
The Group’s information about its non-current assets is AEBEKEEMEMBE HWIIERBE
presented based on geographical location of the assets as EERAT :
below:
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT
The PRC s 407,141 361,802
Hong Kong BB 4,893 1,472
412,034 363,274
Non-current assets excluded investment property, deferred tax IERBEETBRBEREYE  BLERHIE
assets, deposits with bank and financial assets at FVTOCI and BE BOFAREAAESTAHEMSE
FVTPL. HAREREAAEFABRZISREE -
Information about major customers FEEFREH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing HEFERPBEEAEBBN NG
over total revenue of the Group are as follows: SR
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FHT
Customer A' BEREA 658,407 475,927
! Revenue from LED backlight. 1 R ELED & Yt Hy Uk S o
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9. OTHER (LOSSES) AND GAINS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

9. Hith(EER)RKz=

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
T8 FET
Provision of inventories (Note a) GFERE(Wita) (6,483) (1,625)
Reversal of provision of inventories (Note b) BEfFERE (M) 9,364 1,920
Impairment losses recognised (reversed) St JE U5 AR 5 T L i R AU R TE T
in respect of trade and other receivables RBEE)REESE (10,455) 5,814
Loss from changes in fair value of financial BARBHAEBER I EREE
assets at FVTPL MARBEEEISR (729) (1,170)
(8,303) 4,939
Notes: ek -
(@ During the year ended 31 December 2021, a provision of @ HBEZE2021F12A31HIEFE MO

HK$6,483,000 (2020: HK$1,625,000) was made for write-down of
obsolete inventories that are no longer suitable for use in production or

saleable in the market.

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, a reversal of provision of (b)
HK$9,364,000 (2020: HK$1,920,000) was made due to the sellout of

inventories written off in previous years.

10. FINANCE COSTS

BIL)

BERAREERETSHEENREFTER
1R % % 6,483,0007% 7T (2020 FF : 1,625,000

HBZE2021F12831BLFE  BREE
TRAFEMENGTE  RIELBERD

9,364,000 7% 7T (2020 4F : 1,920,000 7T) °

Interest on:

— Bank and other borrowings
— Corporate bond

— Lease liabilities

— Bills payables

10. B F R A

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$000
THET FHET

AT IEH A S
—RIT R H A EFK 17,441 15,473
—RAEH 200 200
—REaE 1,181 1,241
—ENER 26,153 11,180
44,975 28,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FiSHRIE%
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4
HK$°000 HK$’000
T8 FET

Current income tax EHIFBH
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EATSH
— Current year —ARFEE 1,486 259
— Overprovision in prior years —BEFERERE (2,036) (1,616)

(550) (1,357)
Deferred taxation (Note 28) EEFIIE (T 3E28) 481 1,028
Total income tax credit for the year FEMBHRERREE (69) (329)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 25%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries, Wai Chi Opto Technology (Shenzhen)
Limited* (B X & ORI B R A &) and Huizhou Wai Chi
Electronics Company Limited* (/& £ & F B R 2 Al), were
accredited as high-tech enterprises which will be expired in
2024 and 2023 respectively. They are entitled to the preferential
tax rate of 15% for both years.

* The English name is for identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

Pursuant to circular issued by Ministry of Finance and National
Tax Bureau on 17 January 2019, the small-scaled minimal profit
enterprise with an annual taxable income below RMB1,000,000
(RMB1,000,000 included) is entitled to a preferential tax
treatment of 75% exemption of taxable income and application
of income tax rate as 20% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2022. Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

1. SRR ()

RIEFBEEERHBEBHR2019F1 A
17 BB R R - F AT TS REER
AR #1,000,0007T (5 A R% 1,000,000
TL) K/ NV (B B R 20194 1 A 1
HZE2022F 1231 B ZHEEHRT75%E
W FR TS %Eélﬁﬁ‘m‘%%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁzo%mﬁﬁ
SBEHBEX -AEENETHREMBEA

RELE 20214 KX 2020412 A 31 H Jt¢
ERFEERE-

FESRIE % 4R

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit EEBRFITERH

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as

RIFBE R

follows:
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Profit before tax R 54 AT ) 51,873 30,701
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% RE R FTS T X 25% 5t B &Y
(2020: 25%) FR1E (2020 F : 25%) 12,968 7,675
Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC FEERHENTZE (4,410) (2,862)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries Htpa AR & ENHE AT
operating in other jurisdictions TEMENTZE (1,299) 82)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 1~ A] 081 5 5% B9 5 75 57 28
purposes 201 1,318
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBRA BTG &
purposes (1,492) (863)
Additional tax deduction for research and 2 > BB AN TERL %
development expenses (6,385) (4,416)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIBBEMNHE S E 2,573 2,170
Tax effect of utilised of temporary difference ~ B LRI A ERN LR L= R
previously not recognised EokiThS == (1,248) (1,631)
Tax effect of other temporary differences not  RERE L T B = E AT
recognised e 4,769 17
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BAATRERNBIEER
recognised (3,710) =
Overprovision in respect of prior years BETEBERE (2,036) (1,616)
Income tax on concessionary rate BEBENEH = (39)
Income tax credit for the year FEMSHER (69) (329)
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 28. BREERIENF BRI E28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. FEFIE

2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Profit for the year has been arrived at after

FEMNBRIOER T SHEK

charging: EW
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(a)) Ex50 e (FsE13() 5,628 6,082
Salaries and allowances (excluding directors) & M 2B (T BRIEESE) 253,248 183,402
Retirement benefits schemes contributions RIREFET B

(excluding directors) (TBIEES) 20,132 11,625
Total staff costs 8 T AN4a%E 279,008 201,109
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI 357 B 1,097 1,045
Net foreign exchange losses b X B85 926 505
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AM X BI1F S5k A&

(included in cost of sales) (Note a) GTASHENRA) (Hita) 1,463,786 1,197,471
Research and development costs recognised #3274 51 3% B A1 35 Ak A

as an expense 65,100 45,978
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% = L EHITE 48,274 45,261
Depreciation of right-of-use-assets FERAREENE 10,186 7,710

Loss on write-off of property, plant and

equipment R EE R

Lease expenses for short-term leases

702 123

HHEENHEERX 4,415 3,521

Note:

(@
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Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and staff costs of HK$35,609,000 (2020:
HK$41,515,000) and HK$200,410,000 (2020: HK$127,037,000)
respectively. The amounts were also included in the respective
amounts disclosed above.

FsE

@ ®ERERIOTFERADBNBEDE-
[ 5 R 3% 8 37 & LA & B T pK < 35,609,000
7 7T (20204 : 41,515,000 7T) &
200,410,000/ 7t (20204 : 127,037,000
BIL) cZELENCHTALNTEEN
HEIS S -
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2020:
eight) directors and the CEO of the Company during the

year were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2021

(Note)

Mr. Yiu
ChiTo
(Chairman)
(M)
hER%E
(£E)
HK$000
Tin

REARES (TS

Emoluments paid or receivable in

Mr. Chen
Chung Po
(CEO)

it
(i)
HK§'000
TEn

Executive directors
BrES
Ms. Yiu
Kwan Yu
(Sales and
marketing
manager)
hEmnt
(HERTA
EREE)
HK$000
TiExn

Mr. Chen
Wei Wu
(Financial
controller)

REREE
(MHEE)
HK$'000
Tién

13.EE FETHAERESMH

Ky 72

(@) EERFETHAEHNE

FANHENKEMNARRENE
(2020% : N2 EE RITHRARK
T

BE2021512A31HILLEE

Independent non-executive directors
BUFHGES

Ms. Yong

Jian Hui

(Deputy

general

manager)

Mr.
Au Yeung
Ting Wah

Mr. Chen
Kwok
Wang

Mr. Ho
Chi Wai

i) 1
(BEE)
HK$'000
Tin

BRxE
Rk
HK§000
TEn

REZEE
HK$000
T#n

fEmEE
HK$'000
Tién

it
HK$'000
Tin

respect of aperson's senices  RADAHEHE

asadrector, wheherofthe  AANEE) R

Company and fts suosiclaries RS A3 B

undertakings: BB -
Fess ik - - - - - 260 14 14 528
Emoluments paic orrecehable  SLE AN ARAN

nrespectof diectorsoher ~ BAANERRE

senvices in connection with EpEZRERR

the management of the affairs (L EUAIIE -

of the Company and its

subsidiaries undertakings:
Salaries and other benefts o RAMER 2,562 1,200 20 326 17 - - - 4,985
Refiement benefts schemes IV FIFT 8131

contributions 18 18 18 30 3 - - - 115
Total emoluments HelgE 2,580 1,218 738 356 208 240 144 144 5,628

Note: Mr. Yiu Chi To passed away on 28 January 2022. ek : BB 20224 1 A 28 HEHE -

2021 Annual Report | £

165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

166

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. B - FETHAEBRESH

€ ("
(a) EERFETHRASME ()

HZE202056 128531 HILEE

Executive directors Independent non-gxecuive directors
§Es Bunnes
Ms. Yiu Ms. Yong
(Note) KwanYu  Mr.Chen Jian Hui
MrYio MrChen  (Salesand Wei Wu (Deputy M. Mr.Chen
ChiTo  ChungPo  marketng  (Financial generel  Au'Yeung Kiwok Mr. Ho
(Chairman) (CEO)  manager)  controler)  manager)  TingWah Wang Chi Wai Total
(Ki) fERLL
hEEEE RELIRE (BERWS REREE ERERr  EBRE
(3R (hpes) RESR) (MEEE) (H888) it REREE FIAKE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tén  Tén  Thn  TEr TEn  TEn TEr TEn TEn
Emoluments paid or recevablein - 3iEA(EBEE (T
respect of aperson's senices  RADATENE
asadrector, wheherofthe  AANES) R
Company and fts Suosidiares B aiEN
undertakings: BB
Fess e - - - - - 240 144 144 528
Emoluments paid or receiable ~ SHEBARFAREN
nrespectof drectors other ~ BATHSHRM
senicesincomectionwih A EZREAR
the management of the affairs. [ EUAIS -
of the Company and its
subsiolaries undertakings:
Sdares and other benefis B8 REAMAER 2,040 1275 765 300 162 - - - 5,442
Retiement benefts schemes R KB Az /4
contributions 18 18 18 30 28 = = = 12
Total emoluments Mg 2,98 1,293 783 30 190 240 144 144 6,082

Note: Mr. Yiu Chi To passed away on 28 January 2022.

FisE : kS B e AR 2022 4F 1 A 28 HBHE: ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. EE - FETHABRESH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (48

(a) EERFETHRASME ()

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(b)

(continued)

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments paid by the Group during both years.

Mr. Chen Chung Po is also the CEO of the Company and
the emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO of the Company.

There were no performance related incentive payments to
the directors and CEO of the Company during both years.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2020: three) were directors and CEO
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The emoluments of these directors are included in the
disclosures in Note 13(a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2020: two) individuals for the year ended 31
December 2021 were as follows:

RMEFE BEEEREXRE
MEEAME -

BREBRE L E TN AARRAITTHAE
EXEEOMEERBBRETE
NETHRAEFRHRBOME -

RAEFE UEAOARAESER
TTIRAH T ERRRHBES

(b) EEME

REE2021F12 A31 B IEFE
rEBREEaMe AT =45
H (2020 : =R) BARARIEER
THEBE ZEEENHEER L
XK EE13(a) B - KRB E 2021 F
12A31BIEFE - A TWA (2020
FREB) ALHBESHT

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Ti#&x FHET

Salaries and other benefits e RAMET 1,653 1,682
Retirement benefits schemes contributions 3R K& Fl 5+ 2 3 36 36
1,689 1,718

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

ZEATHBMENFTIIEE :

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 4F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE8H EE#E
Not more than HK$1,000,000 % 11,000,00078 7T 2 2
2021 Annual Report | 1 67



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. 2% - FETHAEBRESM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (48
(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEM< (8)
There were no performance related incentive payments PR 4F [E - b ST ) ER 3R IR 8
during both years. B S o
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest RREFEE  AEBELERAL K
paid individuals and any of the directors and CEO of the S ATARARAGEMES RIT
Company as an incentive payment to join or upon joining BB M  EAMAREE
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during SN &R B Iy 1) 2B ok B Bk v 1 o
both years.
14. DIVIDEND 14. g 2
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of 2021 FREE M AR A E @R R IR =k
the Company during 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed BBERNRE  BWEHRETEEZS
since the end of the reporting period (2020: Nil). AR AR S (2020 4F : f&) ©
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. IR 2 F

2021 2020
2021 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 FHET

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted ~ {Est E &R EAN K #E R F

earnings per share REa &R 51,469 30,958
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of ~ {E&t & & J& E 7N [ 58 2 7
basic and diluted earnings per share AT mike s 216,825,000 216,825,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share FRERNKEERF
(HK$ per share) (BB T) 0.24 0.14
The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings AR MEFEANLED T AEBEES
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares MEMLTBR  WEREERTEGR
outstanding during both years. AERABFMER -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

16. W% - MERR

Plant and Motor Office Leasehold Construction
machinery vehicles  equipment  improvements Buildings in progress Total
BERHR RE HOERG  EENEEE K fRIR &3
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ThL Thr Thr Thr T T ThrL
cosT A&
A1 January 2020 #2020F1 A1 378,195 7017 21,841 39,062 119545 19,086 584,746
Additions E 30453 - 389 1,085 - 5782 37,709
Transfer gz 5265 - - - - (5,265 -
Disposals/write-off HE/# (6,237) (222) (164) - - - (6,623
Exchange realignment EiHE 26,454 259 12397 2528 7690 1257 39,578
At 31 December 2020 and 200512831 AR
At1 January 2021 Ro01E1 A 1H 434,130 7047 23,463 42,675 127,235 20,860 655,410
Additions e 36,265 739 1,936 24,237 - 10,010 73,187
Transfer gz 8344 = = = = (8,344) =
Disposals/iurite-off e /# (6,099) (379) (575) = - - (7,059)
Exchange reaignment ERAE 13,637 128 701 1602 374 639 20,448
Acauired on acquisiton of subsidiary N AEHE A B ES
(note 39) (s 30) - - 978 - 70981 - 74,309
At 31 December 2021 RA1E12A31R 486,277 7,535 25,003 68,514 201,907 23,165 813,301
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZiHFERMERHE
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSS
A1 January 2020 #200F1 1R 264,595 6,111 18,262 16,640 20914 12,704 339,26
Provided for the year MR 37,038 166 1,164 4457 2436 - 45,061
Eiminated on disposalsiwrte-off (1 EFF 5188 /58 (867) (1) (155) = = = (1,239
Exchange realignment A% 19,087 205 1,214 1,278 1,483 817 24,084
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F12 831 AR
At 1 January 2021 R2021 51 A1 319,853 6,271 20,485 2375 24,833 13,521 407,338
Provided for the year ERHHR 40,086 183 70 4,685 2610 - 48,74
Eiminated on disposalsiwrte-off (1 EFF 5188 /58 (5.298) (339) (537) - - - (6,171)
Exchange reaignment ERaE 10,008 ® 590 645 770 398 12,503
At 31 December 2021 20215124318 364,649 6,210 21,248 21,705 28,213 13,919 461,044
CARRYING VALUES KEE
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318 121,628 1,325 4,655 40,809 173,694 9,246 351,357
At31 December 2020 R200F12A31 R 14217 776 2078 20,300 102,402 7339 248,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Plant and machinery 10% - 25%

Motor vehicles 10% — 33%

Office equipment 10% - 20%

Leasehold improvements 5% - 50%

Buildings Over the shorter of term of the

lease or 2.5%

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying values of plant and
machinery of HK$121,628,000 (2020: HK$114,277,000)
includes an amount of HK$13,617,000 (2020: HK$19,782,000
which have been pledged to secure banking facilities and other
borrowings granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, buildings with carrying values of
HK$173,694,000 (2020: HK$102,402,000) have been pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

170

16. Y% - BER®RE ()

tax  BEMRKBEB AERER
THFERFHENE -

5 K 2s 10% — 25%

TE 10% — 33%

PRERME 10% — 20%

HEMHEEE 5% -50%

1gF LB 2.5%
(ABFEE A %)

PN2021F 128310 MELKEERN
BRI (B A 121,628,000%8 JT (2020 £ -
114,277,00078 70) * BEE FAEKEH
13,617,0007%8 7T (2020 £F : 19,782,000
) EARTASERITHEREM
BRI o

M2021%F 128318 EEEA
173,694,000 7T (2020 % : 102,402,000
BIL)MEFE TUER EAR TS
BERITELE AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

(i) Right-of-use assets

17. EHEEERHBEEAR

Land 1
Buildings BgF
Plant and machinery R 55 K 3

(i) EHEEE

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

35,680 35,575

14,014 21,128

4,868 5,601

54,562 62,304

Right-of-use assets of HK$35,680,000 (2020:
HK$35,575,000) represents land use rights located in the
PRC.

The Group has lease arrangements for factory premises
and offices and plant and machinery. The lease terms are
generally ranged from 2 to 6 years (2020: 2 to 6 years).

Extension options are included in the lease of buildings.
Certain periods covered by extension options were
included in these lease terms as the Group was reasonably
certain to exercise the option.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to HK$2,381,000 (2020:
HK$15,889,000), due to new leases of buildings and plant

1 F # & 7 35,680,00078 7T (2020
4 : 35,575,000,8 70) FEAL A A
THb R A RE o

AEBREIMMERBRIEAR
R E B - HEHIR
—MNF2E6F (20205 : 2% 6
F) -

BFHETESEREEZ - AN
AEBEEEBRETEZERE K
EREERBENE THREAA

SEHER -

HE2021F12A31HIEFE &
P& B L AN 2,381,000 7T (2020
£ : 15,880,000/ 7T) * TIHRIEF

and machinery. RE RS -
(ii) Lease liabilities (i) HEAE

2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#&x FAT
Non-current ERB 10,205 15,419
Current Vi) 5,928 8,974
16,133 24,393
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

17. EREEERBEESRE (B)

(i) HESE(H)

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
Amounts payable under lease liabilities RIEHHE & FENHKIE T FHET
Within one year —FR 5,928 8,974
After one year but within two years —FIRERFA 3,626 5,668
After two years but within five years MFBRERFA 6,579 9,751
After five years hF & - -
16,133 24,393
Less: Amount due for settlement W R 1218 A A R Ef
within 12 months (shown under HEEHZE (RRE
current liabilities) BEETNIR) (5,928) (8,974)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1 12 1& A 14 EE IR 10,205 15,419

As at 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities in respect
of leased machineries under hire purchase agreements
amounted to HK$875,000 (2020: HK$2,702,000) with
purchase option at consideration of HK$1,000 was
secured by the title of the lessor, who is a related party of
the Company, to the leased assets. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group entered into a number of
new lease agreements in respect of renting buildings and
plant and machinery and recognised lease liabilities of
HK$2,609,000 (2020: HK$15,889,000).

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

R2021412 A31H ' RIEAE
EHEKEMNMEE R EAS875000
7 5T (20204 : 2,702,000/ 7T) -
BEEEREARE1,0008 T HE
BA(BEATINEEAL) WAEE
BEMBELKT - NEZE20215F12
A31BLEE AEBEpHESEF
UEBE R KSR ZBHAER
#W B MR E | E2,609,0008
7T (20204 : 15,889,000/ 7T) ©

(iii) PR HEREAIFNIA

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T T

Depreciation of right-of-use assets — Land RS ETE — L 927 895

Depreciation of right-of-use assets — ERAEEENE-—EF

Buildings 8,527 6,083
Depreciation of right-of-use assets — Plant £ R#EEEHTE —FE &

and machinery 125 732 732

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABEMNERX 1,181 1,241

Expense relating to short-term leases ERHAERY 4,415 3,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

(iv) Others

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the total cash
outflow for leases amounted to HK$15,558,000 (2020:
HK$10,591,000).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 31 December 2021, lease liabilities of HK$16,133,000
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$54,562,000 (2020: lease liabilities of HK$24,393,000
and related right-of-use assets of HK$62,304,000). The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

17. EREEERBEESRE (B)

(iv) EHith
REBE2021F12A31HIEFE -
HE IR LR 2% 515,558,000
77T, (2020 4F 1 10,591,000 7T) °

FHE RIPRFI=H 224
MR2021F12A31H HERHEHESE
f& 16,133,000 7% st 3& [ 48 B8 {5 A #
& 54,562,000 7T (20204F : #
& B &24,393,00078 7T & [ A2 B (&
FA 7 & E 62,304,000 7T) ° B
BARBEHREEEFEREMERIN -
HEWHRE TS TR BRLER -
HEEETBREEIER -

18. IREME

HK$°000
FiER

COST DN
At 1 January 2021 7®2021F1A1H
Acquired on the acquisition of a subsidiary RUEE I B A B &S
(note 39) (MF5E39)
CARRYING VALUES BRTAIE
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31 H

26,300

26,300

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31
December 2021 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on acquisition date by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group. Peak Vision Appraisals Limited are
members of the Institute of Valuers. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the similar locations and conditions and is
categorised as level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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NEBREYWEN2021F12 31 HH
PNAETIRIE AR EE Y R BB
BERBEEGEMSETHEER AR
WERHETHHEST - 2T HAE
RARAEEMBSKE - HEHLE
O RIEHEEUMEZRHERZ
MEEEMER  Y2BAAABER
FEM o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021%F12 A31H It FE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 18. IR EME ()

Details of the valuation techniques and assumptions are HEFTEMBEERZFBIREOT -
discussed below.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best REFTEZ RAAE H% MEZERER
use of the property is their current use. ®EAZRABAIAS

An analysis of the Group’s investment property that is measured AEBRVBERBIEAALETENR
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into fair BEMENIT BREANBENEH AH
value hierarchy Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the ENABREEREAAAEE A2
inputs to fair value measurements is observable is as follows: F=M T

Fair value

as at

Level 3 31/12/2021
2021 5

12A31HK

E— ER E=HR ARE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T8 Ti#&x Ti#&xT T#&xT

Investment property wEYE = 26,300 = 26,300
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
during the year.

The following table gives information about how the fair value
of the investment property as at 31 December 2021 are

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

18. R E M= (48)
RAFEN BRAREERZ 285 -

TRIZMH A B A ## F 2021412 A 31
BREVEAARENER (LERFER

determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs BB A R ABIR) ¢
used):
Relationship
of key inputs
Fair value as at Significant and significant
Fair value 31 December Valuation technique and  unobservable unobservable
hierarchy 2021 key inputs inputs Range inputs to fair value
TERMABER
72021 BATAIHE
12A31HK MERER BATAIEE ) A\ U5 B
AAEER  ARE T ER[ AR B A BUR &[] NIRENBIE
Level 2 HK$26,300,000 Market Comparison N/A N/A N/A
& 26,300,000 75 approach — by reference 1~ i F TER T E A

to recent sales price of
comparable properties
on a price per square feet
basis using market data
which is publicly available

ML EE— K2 ERE
FHERAOEBTED
AELBYEZERE
B ERAARERNZ
M5 BIRETE

As at 31 December 2021, all of the Group’s investment property
amounted to HK$26,300,000 (2020: HK$Nil) have been pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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R2021F 128318 - AEBRERE
) 3 48 %8 26,300,000 T (20204 : &
BIT) B TR - EAR TARSERTT
BhE AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

19. BEAREFARSZEHNEE

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 FHEIT

Investments in a life insurance policy AESRBERE

7,478 3,510

In September 2021, the Group’s subsidiary, Wai Chi Opto
Technology Limited (“Wai Chi Opto”), entered into a life
insurance policy with an insurance company to insure Mr. Chen
Chung Po, a director of the Company. Under the policy, the
beneficiary and the policy holder is Wai Chi Opto and the total
insured sum is approximately US$1,750,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$13,650,000). The Company was required to
pay an one-off premium payment of approximately US$602,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,696,000). The Company can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value of the policy at the date of withdrawal (“Cash
Value”), which is determined by the premium payment plus
accumulated interest earned minus the accumulated insurance
charges and a specified amount of surrender charge if the
withdrawal is made before the specified policy year.

In February 2020, Wai Chi Opto, entered into a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, a
director of the Company. Under the policy, the beneficiary and
the policy holder was Wai Chi Opto and the total insured sum
was approximately US$3,492,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,238,000). The Group was required to pay an one-off
premium payment of approximately US$600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,680,000). The Group can terminate the
policy at any time and receive cash back based on the cash
value of the policy at the date of withdrawal (“Cash Value”),
which is determined by the premium payment plus accumulated
interest earned minus the accumulated insurance charges and a
specified amount of surrender charge if the withdrawal is made
before the specified policy year.
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MR2021F 98  NEEMH B R RE
EXEBERAR ([BEXE) BH—FH
REB AR VZASREE  LLAKR T
BEEMELEERFR - BERE %
ARREFSBEABESHE MER
RE 5 A#1,750,000€ 7T (HERLD
13,650,000 7T) c R ARG BA X — X
MR B 4602,0003 T (EER G
4,696,000 7T) ° AN A &) A] BT A B (R
WILRE TERERABRENES
EE(HRLEE) KDRe FHEHE
BEDZRENTNEAERZAFE -
BREFREEEMETSBORRKRF
BE(MABETREFEMNRR)ET -

M2020F2H - EEAEH -—HRREA
CIEINT: 3 3 BV W=V.N/N=15- =8
ERZLTHRR -BRERE  ZmARR
BREEANBEEZAE MERRLEAL
#98,492,000 3 7T (1 % 1 #27,238,000
BL) cAEBATN—AEREBNR
#9600,000 % 7T (48 % 7 %Y 4,680,000 7
T0) o ANEE R I EHRAR ILRE - I
ARERRANRENE2EE(R2E
E)KERE  BHESEENIRRE
NEINEFMBEREZTAE B AR
REAABTETCHEMNERRFESE (MR
HEREFEARR)ERT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

2&?&%EJAEMQEW§Z

Unlisted equity investment ELmERRE

2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FETT
10,367 3,683

The unlisted equity investment is issued by a private entity
incorporated in Taiwan.

The investment in equity instrument is not held for trading.
Instead, it is held for medium to long-term strategic purposes.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company elected to designate
the investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognising short-term fluctuations in this investment’s fair
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the Group’s
strategy of holding this investments for long-term purposes and
realising their performance potential in the long run.

21. INVENTORIES

FLmERIEERT S ETMA T 25
ANEBEIT

ZHEAIEREVIHFFHIEEERE - 18
R HETDGERPRAKKEOMETH
RE-HAt ARREFEEHZER
THAREBEERBRAANBHAEMEZE
Wa ARRERR RERERZIKR
BZARBEEHRBEATEREE R
EE%‘xﬁ{’EEHﬂFH BURRESFRAK
IRE 2 BRE o

21. 78

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Raw materials R A1 % 42,968 20,621
Work-in-progress TE& 100,952 84,148
Finished goods BIRY G 168,109 115,941
312,029 220,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 BRI R ER

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT TABTT

Receivables at amortised cost comprise:

BIE
Trade receivables FEURBR 3k
Less: allowance for impairment of trade B MR FUR B R
receivables
Bills receivables R E &

Total trade and bills receivables

FEUW AR TR I R IR R

TR IR AN ET B R IR IR

704,879 592,182

(32,563) (25,442)
672,316 566,740
265,827 157,675
938,143 724,415

As at 1 January 2020, the gross amount of trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to HK$484,539,000.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross amount of trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$704,879,000 (2020: HK$592,182,000).

The Group allows an average credit period of 15 to 180 days
(2020: 15 to 180 days) to its trade customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables) presented based
on the invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue
recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period.

7R2020 F1A1H RERBFAELHME
1y BR FX 42 %8 & 484,539,000 7% 7T °

MN2021F12831H  KAEFAHHW
JfE Uk BR 2 4B 58 & 704,879,000 78 7T (2020
£F 1 592,182,000 7T) °

AEEMEESREFEFRTFISE180K
(20204 : 152 180K) = EH] o

MTIRRBEMREHRAL (A
Wt iR B HIARE) 256 U AR (4
BRI W AR BOR B B 1) Y BR e 0 AT ©

0 to 90 days 0ZE 90K

91 to 180 days 91 £180K
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K
Over 365 days 365 KA £

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
633,131 554,649
33,276 8,369
2,058 3,722
3,851 -
672,316 566,740

HK$39,185,000 (2020: HK$12,091,000) has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default due to the good
repayment records for those customers, continuous business
with the Group and/or other reasonable and supportable
information.
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39,185,000 7 (2020 4F : 12,091,000 78
T0) EBMHBORKIA L HRZERP
RERGCE R - BARBAFERH
B/SHEMER R FIEER SR
WARBEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& M HRIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(continued)

All the bills receivables are aged within 365 days.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s
current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customers
segments, the allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

The following table provides information which are assessed
based on provision matrix.

22 EURERM R & ()

B EWRIENRERS B365 KA

AEBZRBAERNFENBEREEBEN
SR ERYCR RN E R ERE - B
OB EEBERERBEERBMES
WLEBBANBREROLCEREBA
BRI BB D AT IRIBEN RS B
BEHEARENRE BEHALERET
FE ) —RFEAR A K B 7T R IERIAA R
T RARFHEEL R -

HRREARENELEEBERLR
TRADEFEHBREBRRNBENRE
BEZR FANAERBBEAMMNE
HEERRE— TSRO TRNE PR -

RABERA - B TDERAEHNE
RBRRIW JmB LR -

TRIBURE B EERTEOER -

Weighted
average Gross
expected loss carrying
rate amount Allowance
hn#ET35
JEEAEs R = REAE BiE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
As at 31 December 2021 ®2021%12831H % T#xT Fi#x
Collectively assessed ST
0 to 90 days 0Z 90K 0.16% 634,156 1,025
91 to 180 days 912 180K 0.17% 33,334 58
181 to 365 days 181 2 365K 1.34% 2,086 28
Over 365 days 365K A 89.09% 35,303 31,452
704,879 32,563
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 BWERA KR EiR (48)
(continued)
Weighted
average Gross
expected loss carrying
rate amount Allowance
hn#EEH
TEH S B % IREBE B
% HK$'000 HK$’'000
As at 31 December 2020 R 2020612 A 31 H FHET THETT
Collectively assessed SR
0 to 90 days 0ZE 90K 0.23% 555,912 1,263
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 0.66% 8,425 56
181 to 365 days 181 £365 K 1.33% 3,772 50
Over 365 days 365K 100% 24,073 24,073
592,182 05,442
Generally, trade receivables are written-off when there is —BmE EEHBAREEARERBKE
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial B 75 R B R A R Bl AT AE - RIS R
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. The WHRFK - REE W mIFHEMEFmIE
Group does not hold any collateral as security. R o
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade FEUEE R R EREZERHINNT

receivables is set out below:

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FHT

At 1 January ®1A1H 25,442 30,260

Impairment losses recognised on trade L FE IR R R A

receivables REEE 6,914 =
Impairment losses reversed on trade FEPE W AR S B AR B S 1R

receivables (611) (6,193)

Exchange realignment M W R 818 1,375

At 31 December M®12HA31H 32,563 25,442
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22, EWERM KR R (&)
(continued)
The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts JEREREEBENATERESHBI
of trade receivables contributed to the increase in the loss 2021 F 5B A EE N -

allowance during 2021:

—  increase in loss allowance of HK$7,379,000 resulted from — B HAIGE5 K LA A A R IE DB B S
increase in the past due balance of days over 365 days BB IEIN7,379,000 % 7T
23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23, JATFIE - R R H UK
RECEIVABLES b= |
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T
Deposits and other receivables e K& E b IE 64,282 75,779
Less: allowance for impairment of other B B MR IR R B B
receivables (6,927) (2,652)
57,355 73,127
Value added tax receivables FEYEE L 10,876 3,831
Prepayments A RIE 11,212 74,143
79,443 151,101
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the BEEZ=2021F &2020F 12 A31H 1t
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set out in Note 6. F R HE At PR UGRIB R E AT A A RTIB
RHIEEG ©
The movement in the allowance of impairment of other HE W IR R EREZESHIOT

receivables is set out below:

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 F

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

At 1 January ®m1A1H 2,652 2,184
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 6,100 379
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE (1,948) =
Exchange realignment [ 5 2 123 89
At 31 December M12A318 6,927 2,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

24. DEPOSITS WITH BANK/PLEDGED BANK 24, SRITER BIRFRITER

DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Deposits with bank

The deposits with banks carry interest rates at 3.3% per annum
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, with an original maturity of 3
years from 2020.

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
HK$342,017,000 (2020: HK$277,267,000) as at 31 December
2021 have been pledged to secure bank borrowings and bills
payables due within one year and are therefore classified as
current assets.

The pledged deposits carry interest rates ranging from 0.3%
to 0.38% (2020: 0.3% to 0.38%) per annum at 31 December
2021.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The bank balances at 31 December 2021 carry
interest at the prevailing market rate ranging from 0.01% to
0.38% (2020: 0.01% to 0.38%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$106,915,000 (2020: HK$110,712,000) at 31
December 2021. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

182

RITHEBRRIRE
RITEFER
R 20214F K 2020F12 A31H » R 177%

MIE33% 2 FHERFFE P REHAS
2020 F B3 o

EEPRITEM

EERMBTEREER FRITEART
REBEFRITRENER - R2021F12
A31H - B&#1F5342,017,000/%& 7T
(20204 : 277,267,000 %) @ fEA—
FREIERRITE R REMNZHRIEE
Ei DB AR EE -

M2021F12 A31H 2 EBFHIL
N F0.3% £ 0.38% (20204 : 0.3% &
0.38%) FFERET B o

RITEBRERE

BITEHREBESEEAEEFENRS
NEBEA A =8 A sk AR EHR 1T
T RN2021FE12 AT HHRTHE %
BROIMBFMNEFTE - M F001%=E
0.38% (2020 4F : 0.01% £ 0.38%) °

R2021F 12318  AEBUARE
FHERIRITHE R MIRE A 106,915,000 7
7C (20204 : 110,712,000 7T) - AR
& 5 MR AR NI 78 38 ST R B YN B (D
MEEE - SEMEEERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

25. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 TR - BRI R E{tFE
AND ACCRUALS FTRIEURFERER
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TFExT FHT
Trade payables (Note a) JE T BR 3k (i 3k @) 400,649 295,154
Bills payables (Note a) FE =45 (FisEa) 763,867 545,268
1,164,516 840,422
Other payables S OB
— Consideration payable on acquisition of —lE— B AFR
a subsidiary (note 39) FERTR(E (Fi7E39) 11,000 -
- Others —HAty 16,971 6,848
27,971 6,848
Accrued expenses TEIRFI 25,863 21,906
Value added tax payables FET IS E R 4,584 7,213
58,418 35,967
1,222,934 876,389
Note: B aE -
(@)  The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on @ REEHR RBEEAH2IHEMER
the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HBRER DT -
2021 2020
2021 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FHET
0 to 90 days 0E 90K 319,546 264,392
91 to 180 days 91 E 180K 72,788 22,850
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 1,415 1,500
Over 365 days 365K £ 6,900 6,412
400,649 295,154

The average credit period on purchase of goods is from 30 days to
90 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to KEESNTEHEEHRAIORENXK - K
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. S E B E SRR B EER - LARRA
BREMEFTEIREEHRANLEE
All the bills payables are aged within 365 days.
Fi A B R BRI AR IR /3 365 R 1A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Advances received to deliver goods

26. A8 E
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti&xT FHET
22,499 6,210

BN E R B

As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to

HK$8,518,000.

In general, the Group receives certain percentage of the contract
sum as advance payment from the customers upon signing of

the sales contracts.

The change in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the
increase in purchases order from customers in late 2021.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 31 December
2020 was HK$6,210,000 (2020: HK$8,518,000). There was
no revenue recognised in the current year that related to
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

184

R2020%F1 A1H  4481& 48,518,000
I e

—RTE  AEEREEHEAS N
EERM—TED LA NS EIELTE
30 -

2021 FE X BEMNEETHE E H K 2021
FREFHREFTEEMATE -

R2020F 12 A1 AME N B EBIER
E2021F12 A3 H I FEERHUZE
6,210,000 JT (20204 : 8,518,000 %
TL) cBMEBERAFERREBEFTER
MBHE TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 27. RIT R EAMEFK
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti&xT FHET
Secured: BEM
Trust receipts loans (Note a) SRR E R (Kika) 42,885 80,052
Other bank loans (Note b) HmRITER (MsEb) 199,619 182,924
Other loans (Note ¢) HEMER (i) 55,405 12,304
297,909 275,280
Unsecured: IR
Other bank loans (Note b) HEMIRTER(MEb) 27,520 71,289
325,429 346,569
Carrying amount repayable (based on JEEEREEE (RESHNER
scheduled repayment dates set out WEmEEEXRAH)
in loan agreements):
Within one year R—FR 277,363 335,707
More than one year but not exceeding BB —FETBERE
two years 31,065 5,634
More than two years but not exceeding HBEMFETBARF
five years 17,001 5,228
325,429 346,569
Less: Carrying amount of bank and other B ERBBEBRE—FA
borrowings that are not repayable within EEEESKRERER
one year from the end of the reporting R A ER1T R A A fE X
period but contain a repayment on REE(RRBEaE
demand clause (shown under current IET5I)7R)
liabilities) (48,066) (10,862)
Less: Carrying amount repayable withinone 8 : R —FREBERBEIE
year and contain a repayment on ERER G REE
demand clause (277,363) (335,707)
Amount shown under current liabilities RIREAEE TIIRHFKIR (325,429) (346,569)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities RIEME) B EIR T3 RHI K8 = -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes:

(@  Asat 31 December 2021, trust receipts loans with carrying amounts of
HK$42,885,000 (2020: HK$80,052,000) carry floating rate of interest
of 1-month HIBOR/LIBOR plus 2.5% (2020: 1-month HIBOR/LIBOR
plus 2.5%) per annum and was due within 3 months (2020: within 3
months).

(b)  As at 31 December 2021, the other bank loans of HK$162,060,000
and HK$65,079,000 carry interest at fixed rates and floating rates
respectively (2020: HK$47,526,000 and HK$206,687,000 respectively).
The range of effective interest rates per annum on the Group’s other
bank loans are as follows:

Fixed rates other bank loans EF R EAMRITE K

BRETEERERE
RBERTREFRTE

Floating rates other bank loans % 8 #1| % H #3817 & 3%

LPR plus 0.90% to 3.75%

27. RITREMER (&

fia -

@ M20214F12 A31 B - BR H{E 42,885,000
7 7T (2020 4 : 80,052,000 7T) M= 5t 4
BEFE-—MAABERTRERENE
WBERITRI R EFEIN2.5% (2020 4F -
—ERABRBRITEERSFE MHBERTT
[R5 37 BRI R 01 2.5%) K Z BY F FI| R 5T B, -
WA =@ AREIHE (20204 : Z@AR) °

() 72021 %F12H31H  HMERTER
162,060,000 7% 7T . 65,079,000 7 7T 7 Bl A
E e A R RFEF R B (2020F - 5 5l
747,526,000 7T & 206,687,000 JT) °
REBEMBITEROEREFN KRG E

T
2021 2020
20214 2020 F
4.76-6.5% 5.66-7.60%

HIBOR/LIBOR plus
2.50%-3.00%

HIBOR/LIBOR plus
2.50%-3.00%
EBRITREFRBEF X
MBERITRI R B F %
12.50% = 3.00%

LPR plus 0.64% to 1.90%

f12.50% Z 3.00%

BEEERFEMN0.90% E3.75% ZEREZFIEIN0.64%ZE 1.90%

(c) As at 31 December 2021, the other loans of HK$55,405,000 (2020:
HK$12,304,000) carried interest at 4.98% (2020: 4.98%). In 2019,
Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics Company Limited* (‘Huizhou Wai Chi”), a
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sales and leaseback agreement
for financing with an amount of HK$24,560,000. Pursuant to which,
Huizhou Wai Chi sold certain plant and machineries to a financial
institution (the “lessor”), which shall then be leased back for use by
Huizhou Wai Chi, with the lease period of 2 years from the date of
inception. Upon expiry of the lease term, Huizhou Wai Chi has the right
to repurchase the leased assets in accordance with the agreed terms
and with a consideration of a nominal amount of RMB1,000.

186

) M20214 12831 H 55,405,000 7T
(20204 : 12,304,000 7T ) #) H fth & 7%
4.98% 52 (2020 £ : 4.98%) R 20194 -
AEEHBAREMNEEETARAR ([E
MEERDFTVHERLOAGZE  RESE
£24,560,000/8 7T o IR It - BMEEHE
FTHRERKBHET Memis ((HHE
A HEESBEHAREENESER A
HEMBBR2FE - REHERE B
MNEEEREHEBRIANEGERBEARE
1,000 cERIBEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) As at 31 December 2021, secured other bank loans of
HK$199,619,000 (2020: HK$182,924,000) were secured by:

i The pledge of certain property, plant and equipment and
investment property of the Group with carrying value of
HK$187,311,000 and HK$26,300,000 respectively (2020:
HK$122,184,000 and HK$NIl respectively) as at 31 December
2021 as set out in Note 16 and Note 18;

ii. The pledge of certain right-of-use assets with carrying value of
HK$35,680,000 (2020: HK$35,575,000) as set out in Notes 17;

iii. The pledge of bank deposits as set out in Note 24;
(e) As at 31 December 2021, the Group has undrawn available trade

financing and bank loan facilities of HK$472,601,000 (2020:
HK$230,221,000).

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes.

27. RITR EMER ()

MsE : (48)

d M2021%F12 A31H 199,619,000 # 7T
(20204F : 182,924,000/ 7t) M E KM H
HERTTE T AT B 5 AR -

BN R 16 R KT R 18 FT H 0 K IF
R2021F12 AT BEEES A A
187,311,000 7T & 26,300,000 % 7T
(20204 : 9 Bl & 122,184,0007% 7T
MEBT)Z2AEEBETHE  BE
RBREAREDE

i BT E  RIFREE
/35,680,000 jT (2020 F -
35,575,000 7T) BVE TEAEEAE

il. MM EE24 FE - HEBRITER
) M2021F12A31H AEBEBRRERE

S A RRITE FE & 472,601,000 7T
(20204 : 230,221,00078 7T) °

28. IEIEFIIE
AT AEMBRE R M EEHBES
DI -

Deferred tax assets EIERIAE B
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEAE

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FH&T
8,052 8,312
(368) (381)
7,684 7,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 & M358 RO

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021%F12 A31H It FE
28. EIEFIE (48)

REEMBEFEMEINTEELH
HEE(RE) REZFHOT -

28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereof during the current and prior

years:

Difference
between
depreciation
allowance
and related

depreciation
TERER
HEATE
=8
HK$’000
FHTT

Impairment
and
allowances

mERBRE
HK$’000
TAT

A
[=N-]

HK$’'000

T T

At 1 January 2020 720201 A1 8 56 8,399 8,455
Charged to profit or loss (Note 11) R 1EzEFK (FFEE11) (437) (591) (1,028)
Exchange realignment bE 5 B - 504 504
At 31 December 2020 and M2020%F 12 A31 H &

1 January 2021 20211 A1H (381) 8,312 7,931
Charged (credited) to profit or loss P850 (5t A)

(Note 11) (fF3E11) 13 (494) (481)
Exchange realignment bE 3 - 234 234
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31 H (368) 8,052 7,684

As the end of the reporting period, certain subsidiaries of the
Group had aggregate unused tax losses of HK$53,060,000
(2020: HK$60,665,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of these unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit stream of these subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2021,
tax losses of HK$7,251,000 (2020: HK$3,839,000) will be
expired within 5 years from 2017. With effective from 1 January
2018, the tax losses incurred by “High and New Technology
Enterprise” (‘HNTE”) of HK$34,382,000 (2020: HK$22,912,000)
will expired in ten years from the year in which the loss originated
in 2015. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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RIFEBRKR AEEETHBE QR A H
R RFEO RS PAHRIBEEIBRARE S
53,060,000 % 7T, (2020 4F : 60,665,000
J0) ° AR EEATERIZ S M B A Al A R K
FER MEERZERADEHAEE
HRIEET I8 & ZE - 70202112 A 31
B - B8 E 187,251,000 7T (2020 £F :
3,839,000/ 7T) # 82017 F #£5F A F
Hi o 5201841 A1 B - [ & 1
¥ ((SHENeE]) EEHEREE
34,382,000% 7T (2020 4F : 22,912,000%
T B EEBRELEFEE2015FRTER
JE o o fth E51E 7] MR PR B 4k uE o
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

As the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of HK$116,281,000 (2020:
HK$107,204,000). A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to HK$51,438,000 (2020: HK$53,218,000) of
such temporary differences. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to the remaining HK$64,843,000 (2020:
HK$53,986,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards (the “Post-2008 Earnings”). Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary difference attributable to the
“Post-2008 Earnings” amounting to HK$566,489,000 (2020:
HK$535,621,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

CORPORATE BOND

In 2017, the Group issued a 7.5 year corporate bond with
principal amount of HK$2,000,000 to an independent third
party, net of direct expenses of HK$300,000, which will be due
in September 2023. The corporate bond carries interest at a
fixed rate of 8% per annum with interest payable annually in
arrears. The corporate bond is unsecured. The effective interest
rate of the corporate bond is approximately 11.05% per annum.

28.

29.

IRIEFIE (48)

PR E B R - AL B AR E R
=7 A116,281,0007% 5t (20204
107,204,000 7)) E R ZEEH
4 2 %5 FR 51,438,000 7T (2020 4F
53,218,000 7T) R IELE R A E E °
PR A FE RR A 1B 8 AT AR 1K 8 P R
BEMEEZREMA T A M ERGT
64,843,000 7T (2020 4F : 53,986,000 /&
TL) ERIBEETIBEE o

RIBCZEMEH L 820081 H1H
e - A BB A B L EL AT BREFE (12008
FrOEN]) NREAHZIENR - A
A7 £ 1B A 422 ) 488 (o] B B 1 = AV B R
MBBEREERIETENITERD
PR - AN R AR A B SRR A
BI2008F £ MEF | TR EEE
566,489,000 7T (2020 £ : 535,621,000
PETT) BRI R A ME B o

DEEH

R2017F  AEBERABILE= FETA
% 82,000,000 LM 7.5F A RIES -
1B & # B 5 300,000 7T+ #§ 72023
FOAEH - REEHIRETEFEEE%
AR (BFHAIZIMNFE) - RRIESH
WHEKE - REEFNERTFNENA
11.05% °

HK$’'000

T

At 1 January 2020 R 2020F1 A1 H 1,856
Effective interest expenses (Note 10) ERF SR (ME10) 200
Interest paid during the year FAERFE (160)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R2020F 12 A31 B % 202141 A1H 1,896
Effective interest expenses (Note 10) ERFMEMAZ (HEE10) 200
Interest paid during the year FABNHFE (160)
At 31 December 2021 7R 202112 431 H 1,936
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

30. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 30. B AT #BY

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1 H 17,420
Government grants utilised during the year (Note 7) FAEABUTEE (HFE7) (136)
Exchange realignment ME W S 1,114
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020912 A31 B X 202141 A1H 18,398
Government grants utilised during the year (Note 7) FANE BB B (FIFE7) (146)
Exchange realignment ME W S 541
At 31 December 2021 72021412 A31 H 18,793
2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 %

HK$’000 HK$'000

T8 T

Analysis for reporting purposes as: RmEREINR -

Non-current liabilities FERBAG 18,793 18,398

As at 31 December 2021, the government grants of
HK$18,793,000 (2020: HK$18,398,000) which were designated
for certain research projects, export incentives, technical
innovation, localisation incentives and fiscal refund were granted
by the PRC municipal government. The government grants of
HK$18,793,000 (2020: HK$18,398,000) is stated as non-current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position as
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that certain
conditions in respect of these grants will not be fulfilled within

the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

190

R2021 512 A31H - EBEERARE TH
FIEE - HOHRE - FRITAIHE - #h5 8E
B B B RGR 5089 BRURT 48 B 18,793,000 7
7C (20204 : 18,398,000/ J£) Jh B
BHBART BRARAIESRER
TEREREHRERKI2MEAANE
MZEMBINAE THRME  WERF
18,793,000 7T (2020 4F : 18,398,000
T0) RERE I EIRR RIBR RIERBIALE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g
The share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and AR A FR2021 F X 2020F 12 A31 B 1Y
2020 is as follows: AT -
Number of shares Share capital
ighE g g7

2021 2020

20214 2020F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each Fix0.01ETHEBE
Authorised ETE
At 1 January and 31 December R1A1BR12A31H 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid BEIRER
At 1 January and 31 December R1A1BR12A31H 216,825,000 216,825,000 2,168 2,168
32. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION R2.FTEHFRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered REZE2021F 12831 HIEFE &
into a lease arrangement in respect of acquisition of right-of-use SERREHERKRBEELELRER
assets with a total capital value at the inception of the lease of 2,381,000 7T (20204 : 15,889,000 /&
HK$2,381,000 (2020: HK$15,889,000). TT)RERAEEE L —EHERHE -
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 33. EAREKIE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$000 HK$'000
Figxn THET

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition 2 5] 4718 5 K R 4R & B A3k R
of property, plant and equipment contracted ~ NEHERE 2 GRIUE = -

for but not provided in the consolidated WEREE 2 EARAS

financial statements = 32,108
Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Group acquired the R2020F 12 A31 8% AEELAR
equipments for own use for an aggregate consideration of 845,869,000/ T AN B A&E - 715
HK$45,869,000. Details refer to the announcement dated 18 B2 BHR2020F 12 A18AZAE »
December 2020.

2021 Annual Report | 1 91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group has entered
into the following significant transactions with related parties
during the year.

(a)

(b)

192

Compensation of key management
personnel

Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and
employees of the Group as set out in Note 13, who are
considered as the key management personnel of the
Group, the Group did not have any other significant
compensations to key management personnel.

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and key
management personnel of the Group is determined by the
board of directors of the Company having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Banking facilities and bank and other
borrowings

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain banking
facilities and other borrowings of the Group were
guaranteed by Mr. Yiu Chi To, the ultimate controlling
party and the director of the Company, and Ms. Luk Fong,
spouse of Mr. Yiu Chi To, to the following extent:

4. FAEANLTRZ RESR
BRARAMBEREEMEHHFINRS

Ko 4

o AEBECDRFRNEBEAL

RIMATERRS -

(a)

(b)

FEEEBASHNHE

BRME1SMEX N T AREES
LkEE (RERESAEEETEE
BAB)OMFMIN  AEEILERA
TREEABXNEMEMEAR

fg e

ARREFRAKEETEZEEAE
MFMBEALFREZTSLEEREA
REALMEBHBET -

RITMEBEURRITREAM
BE

R 20214 £ 2020912 A31H » i
BIRER T RARREBKEE %
& Rk Bl 5T A 2 BB by A
REOAEBRE THRITRE R EME
R

Ms. Luk Fong P75 2+
Mr. Yiu Chi To (passed away on o SN IR
28 January 2022)

(PA20224 1 A 28 H B ith)

2021 2020
2021 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFExT TET
428,082 285,158
1,484,834 439,618
1,912,916 724,776

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 certain banking facilities
of the Group were secured by a charge over a property
owned by a related company. Details of the guarantees are
set out in Note 27.

R 2021 4F K 2020F 12 A31H » K
SEETHRITHMERBEL KR
R Y SRR - BRFBIHR
MaE27 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions

Name of company

DAEE

4. HEALR B K& ()

(c) ERAZEALRS

Maxtone Electronics Limited (“Maxtone”)
EERETERAR(ESE))

2021 2020

2021 £ 20204

Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000

RXEMHE T FHET
Lease and interest payment

HE RA AR 1,182 1,182

A director of the Group, Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, has beneficial
interest in Maxtone. The above transaction has determined
and agreed by the Group and the relevant party.

In 2019, the Group entered into a two-year lease in respect
of office premises from Maxtone. The amount of rent
payable by the Group under the lease is HK$98,500 per
month. In 2021, the Group has renewed this two-year
lease upon expiry. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$2,256,000 were recognised at the commencement

of the lease.

On 11 November 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Ms. Yiu Kwan Yu, and her connected persons of
the Group, at a consideration of HK$91,000,000 for the
acquisition of Maxtone (note 39). The acquisition has been

completed on 30 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of such
lease liabilities is HK$Nil (2020: HK$293,000) after the
completion of acquisition of Maxtone as at 30 December
2021. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
,182,000 to

Group has made lease payment of HK$1
Maxtone (2020: HK$1,182,000).
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AEE-REEUERLLHEAE
EENEDED - LA FHEAE
B AR A L EE R E

R2019%F « AKXERESTENNA
METLAFMFEFHHEE - A&EH
RIEHEREMNNESAS A 98,500
BT o FA2021F - AEBEREW
NEEzAIMFNEE - REE
FERNECRRAECAREERTEES
& 2,256,000 7T °

MN2021 11 B11 B KREER#E
2EMBAFTEAKERM T LERER
EEBBATIZEE RS UK
& 91,000,000 7% 7t Uk i & = /@ (F
F£39) - WIEEIEE M 2021 F 12 A
30 B5ERK °

MR2021F12A31H ZSEHEE
BER2021F12 308 T W iHE S
ERENEREAEBEAZT ST (2020F :
293,000/ JT) ° K& £ 20214 12
ABLEE AEBERNESHE
S 7 E R IE 1,182,000 7 7T (2020
£ 11,182,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. BIREFIETE

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees. The contributions from
each of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary established in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

The Group made contributions to the retirement benefits
schemes of HK$20,247,000 (2020: HK$11,737,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

194

AEERBEEMECEREEZERE
Tt & (MRS ) -FENEER
EREAEGSNESS  BAKENEE
DA o AERBERMERK A 5% [
BEL R W AEBERRE HXK -
BEREESANHKERSEA 1,500
BT

ARBHEPERINMBRARNEERS
P AR BT 2 B O B R B T AR R AR AT
EWRE - FEMBRARAKFEHNE
TEDHERRAKERNF R ABE
MIREES - AEBEFERRENGTEH
ME— R AR RIRET S (F R E RIS -

NEE2021F12A31HIEFE - K
SEMERBAMNGTEELOHRAE
20,247,000 7T, (2020 4F : 11,737,000
JL) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING B.AMETHELEZ2EGZYHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TR AEEREZTHEE L AEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B aEReRIFReEH HRBE2
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for REREMELTY METDHELECZA
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BEEPHRECLIBEDEREFERER
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from ERNREMEIARKBESRE o

financing activities.

Non-cash changes

kL 4]

Finance New Government Foreign
Financing costs leases grants  exchange

1/1/2021  cash flows incurred arrangement  recognised movements  31/12/2021
0215  MERE BEE B 021%
1B1B hE  HBHZ FEERE  BEER  SHER®  12A%A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fign Fign Fign Fign Fign Fign Fign

Bank and other borrowings BIREME

(Note 27) (Fsxor) 346,569 (45,565) 17,441 - - 6,984 325,429
Corporate bond (Note 29) NS (HE20) 1,896 (160) 200 S S S 1,936
Government grants (Note 30 BFT# ) (3£ 30) 18,308 - - - (146) 541 18,793
Lease liabilties (Note 17) BEEEMWEE7) 24,393 (11,143) 1,181 1,179 = 523 16,133

391,256 (56,868) 18,822 1,179 (146) 8,048 362,291

Non-cash changes

HREEY
Finance New  Govemment Foreign
Financing costs leases grants exchange
1/1/2020  cash flows incured  arrangement  recognised  movements  31/12/2020
00F  @EAE BEES EHR 020%

1718 RE  MENA  MEEZR  RERY  SERE  12A%A
HK§000 ~ HKBO0OO  HK$000  HKE000  HKSO00O  HKS000  HKS'000
TAT TATL TR AL AL TR TAT

Bank and other borrowings 34T REM{ER

(Note 27) (Fzxr) 288,171 28,440 15,473 - - 14,485 346,569
Corporate bond (Note 29) NEER (H29) 1,856 (160) 200 - - - 1,896
Government grants (Note 30) B #i8H (Fi£30) 17,420 - - - (136) 1114 18,398
Lease liabilties (Note 17) BEBE (17 14,882 (7,070) 1241 15,889 - (549) 24,393

322,329 21,210 16,914 15,889 (136) 15,050 391,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. AR B BRI R
THE COMPANY

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% FExT FHETT
Non-current asset FEREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERB AR ZKE 135,000 135,000
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other ENRIE - me &
receivables E fth pE W k08 1,590 1,590
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE U B BB 2 B 5 IE (@) 193,622 193,783
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RS 1,352 1,352
196,564 196,725
Current liability nEAaE
Other payables and accruals H b eI N IBIRE A 586 576
Net current assets RENBEFE 195,978 196,149
Total assets less current liabilities BEEF KB A E 330,978 331,149
Non-current liability EREIEE
Corporate bond NAEMEH 1,936 1,896
Net assets BEERE 329,042 329,253
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital % X 2,168 2,168
Reserves e (b) 326,874 327,085
Total equity ERES 329,042 329,253
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #£20214F 12831 HItFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. AR B B AR &R (4R)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Notes: PR 5E -
(@) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, carry prevailing (a) MEWRKIBARREAELEEKE - ERITMS
market interest rate and are repayable on demand. FMEFEURBRERER -
(b)  Movements in reserves b) FEEED
Share Accumulated
premium losses
BipiEE RitEE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHIT T
As at 1 January 2020 MR2020F1 A1 H 331,977 (8,878) 328,099
Loss and total comprehensive expense 4 18 & & HFH ST 4458
for the year - (1,014) (1,014)
As at 31 December 2020 and R2020F 12 531 H X
1 January 2021 2021F1A1H 331,977 (4,892) 327,085
Loss and total comprehensive expense & E 18 & 2 R S @5
for the year 5 (211) (211)
As at 31 December 2021 MW2021F 12 A31H 331,977 (5,103) 326,874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

38. SUBSIDIARIES 38. [t B 2 F
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: KATRIMBARIMEFEAT :
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Kind of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
iRL/ BETRERR
WEARARE RUME EEMH A/iMER  EARRED ARIEERE RREAL IEER
Direct Indirect
E% 3
2000 BREAAE 2020
2000% WAMES 20204
Windrider Technology Company ~ The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited 100% - - Investment holding
Limited RBRAEE AR US§100 bty REZK
EBRI0ZT  ARAA
Techwide Management Company  The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited - 100%  100% Investment holding
Limited iBRuEE AR US§100 bty REZK
EBRI0ZT  ARAA
Wai Chi Electronic Technology ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Management Company Limted &% 3 HK$100000  liabilty RERHR
EaR100000ET  ARAA
Ecosquare Energy Company The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Limited iBRARE B USS100  liabiity REER
ERRI00XT  ARAT
Wai Chi Energy Senices Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
Company Limited & (5 HK$100000  liabiity REER
EER1000008T  ARAA
Alled Solution Gompany Limited ~ The BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
ABRAEE AR US$100  liabifty REER
LaRI00£T  ARAF
Wai Chi Group (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares ~ Gompany with imited - 100%  100%  Investmentholding
(2 B HK$135,100,000 liabity REZRK
13510000087 BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

38. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. [ff B 2 =] (#&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Kind of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
AL/ BRTRMER
WEARZHE RE EEREY 5/MER  EARRER ARFIRIERE RREES IEH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
2021 2020 2021 2020
AR 2020 AV 20204
Wai Chi Opto Technology Limited  The PRC The PRC Ordlinary shares ~ Company with imited - - 100%  100% Tracing of LED
EEAEARAA HE hE HK$62,380,000  liabilty backight and
tak  AR2A lighting products
62,380,000 T and semiconductor
memory chips
BELDEL:
RAERRTE
RRETR
Wai Chi Opto Technology The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Limited” Noteg) R ER i RMB97,128000 bty of LED backight
BEXE(RINERAA HER  BRAE and lighting
(Kzta) ARH97,1280007T products and
sourcing business
BEREELEDA .
REBBER kT
BX%
Sanxia Wai Chi Opto Technology ~ The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Yichang) Limited Notel) R ER i RMB30000000 bty of LED lihting
RESHE(ER)BRAA ifiEx  BRAA products and
(Ht3kp) AR 300000007 provision of LED
light installation
Service
HERHELEDRE
EmRRELEDR
Rz &R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MEGRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

38. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. [ff B 2 =] (#&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Kind of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
R/ BRTRMER
WEARAR RUME EENE A/iMEr  EARRER ARIEERE RREAL IERH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
VAN 2000 BRI 2020
AR 2020 AV 20204
Shenzhen Wai Chi Lighting The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
Company Limited” Noteb) ~ # # RWMBS5,000,000 liability of LED lighting
ATETRBERLE HfEx  BRLF products
(Fsto) ARH5,00000070 HERHEELED
RAED
Huizhou Wai Chi Electronics The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with fimited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
Company Limitea® (Noteb) % RMB144,113,349 libiltty of LED backiight
BNBEETARAR (With) iMEx  ARRA and lighting
ARE144,113 34970 products
BEREELEDE .
REHER
Wai Chi Jingmi Hardware The PRC The PRC Registered capital ~ Company with fimited S - 100%  100% Inactive
(Huizhou) Company Limited* hE US$3,720000  labilty Imex
(Note ) HEx  BRLF
EERZRL 2B (ZN) 3720000%7T
BRAR (M)
ENEERERSERAA ThePRC The PRC Registered captal ~ Company with imited - - 100%  100%  Manufacture and sale
(Note b) (P 3£b) hE hE RMB4,838290  labilty of LED backlight
AR BRAA products
ARH#48382907T SERHELED
EXEm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021F12 531 H IFF[E

38. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. [ff B 2 =] (#&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity
incorporation/  Place of paid share capital/ interest/voting power
Name of subsidiaries establishment  operation registered capital  Kind of legal entity attributable to the Company Principal activities
R/ BRTRMER
WEARAR RUME EENE A/iMEr  EARRER ARIEERE RREAL IERH
Direct Indirect
B 3
VAN 2000 BRI 2020
AR 2020 AV 20204
ENES+ERRRAR The PRC The PRC Registered captal ~ Company vith Imited - - % 7%  Manfactuing
(Noteband¢) (FibRke) — FE hEl RMB5,000000 bty and tracing of
AR BRAA semiconductor
ARH5,000,0007 memory chips
BEREEYEER
R
Maxtone Electronics Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares  Company with limited S NA - 100% N/A" Property holding
(Note d) B Bk HK$100 ity TER NER  NERE
BERETERAA (M) LEk  ARRA
10087

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

BEN B AR RN MEFERETERNE

end of both years. BEHE o
Notes: P EE
(8)  The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. @ ZEBAENPBIKZMIIEGEERZE-

(b)  These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

© =EINEEFEEEER QG s incorporated in 7 September 2020, in ©
which the Group and an independent third party acquired 77% and
23% of its issued share capital respectively at a consideration of

approximately RMB3,850,000 and RMB1,150,000.

(d) On 30 December 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of (d)
Maxtone. Details are disclosed in Note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements.

* The English name is for identification purpose only
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b)) BEERASNTEKIZIMNERAT -

BINEEF

BREAR A AINR2020F9 A7
Aty REBRBIE=FH5 5
4 A R # 3,850,000 7T & A R # 1,150,000

TR BREED BITRAT77% K% 23% °

o RXEBERBR

M2021 412 308 * AEE TR KIE S
B8 FBERGE VIS MRM AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

MR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 £ ZE20215F12 A31H IFFE

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 30 December 2021, the Group acquired 100% issued
share capital of Maxtone for consideration of HK$91,000,000.
The principal activity of Maxtone is property holding, and its
identifiable assets are mainly investment property and property,
plant and equipment. The Group elected to apply the optional
concentration test in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. This acquisition has been accounted for as
an acquisition of assets rather than a business combination,
given that substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a group of similar identifiable assets
(investment property and property, plant and equipment). The
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition

39. UK BBt B 2 B
M2021F 12 8308 » A& E K
91,000,000 8 THHREBEWEEE=BEN
100% EBITIRA - EFBENETEXEBLA
WMERE HOENEEZTZERKREY
XURWE BELZH ANEEEE
BIEEBMBIREENEIFEBLS O
JEREEMHE TR - SN EEEE
EMLETHRERARBEHYERE—HEL
AR EE REMEARYE - BE
MEEE) o AR IR E EWE M IE
EBAHFAR RKEHRNEBELARE B
BREENMAENEBERIE

of subsidiary comprise the following:

HK$’000
Fi#gn

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition:

REERREINEERAE

Property, plant and equipment M - WE KK 71,309
Investment property WEYE 26,300
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables AR RIE - ke R E M B EIE 73
Bank balances and cash RITEB LS 251
Other payables and accruals EMENAFIBENRIERER (505)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries AN S = NGIE (6,380)
Income tax payables FERT TSR (48)
91,000
Consideration of the acquisition: WHEHRA(E -
Cash consideration ReRE 91,000
Less: consideration paid upon acquisition B RER AR E (80,000)
Consideration payable (included in other payables) EARE GTAEMEMFRIE) 11,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Maxtone WEEESENRERLEHE HK$’000
TExT
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 80,000
Less: bank balances and cash acquired B BWERITERKERS (251)
79,749
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

MR E

Percentage
interest of
Property the Group Floor Area Usage as at 31 December 2021
AEBEILFES
/ES 2B & R2021F12A31BZ2AR
(sq.ft)
(FHR)
An Industrial complex located in Sanxu 100% 1,807,709  Occupied by the Group for industrial
Village and Meihua Village, Luoyang use
Town, Boluo County, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
— (BRI B ER & BN TS &G ERS R REBEREIXERR
RN RGN 2 TEE
A Land Parcel located in Yanjiahe Village, 100% 595,595  Planning for construction of office
Xiaoita, Yiling District, Yichang, Hubei and warehouse for leasing purpose
Province, the PRC
— B RAFRBLAILE BEE T RERE VRS rElEEpAEREBEELEAR
BRFOR Y 2 3R
An industrial premises located at Unit A, 100% 8,500  Occupied by the Group for use of
6/F., Liven House, 61-63 King Yip Street, warehouse and office
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
— (BRI E R BRI E T 61-635% REBEREREERPAE
Tl KECIEAZTN T EEAT
An industrial premises located at Unit B, 100% 6,299 Leased to an independent third party
6/F., Liven House, 61-63 King Yip Street, for use as warehouse
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
— (BRI E B BRI KT 61-635% MTE=ALRERE
FliE KECHEBEN T REAT
An industrial premises located at Factory 100% 5,340  Currently vacant and planning for

Unit C on 2/F., King Yip Factory Building,
No. 59 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

— AR E B RSB EAT 595
METERNE2ECEN T XK

use as showroom of the Group’s
products

BAI=E Y ERERTAEE
7 i Y R 51 =
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MG

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEx AT AT FTET
Revenue BEE 1,922,595 1,395,888 2,214,974 2,249,786 1,677,966
Cost of sales HERR (1,640,398) (1,197,471) (1,986,007) (2,002,523) (1,459,129)
Gross profit E ] 282,197 198,417 228,967 247,263 218,837
Operating expenses BERR (230,324) (167,716) (188,798) (197,738) (190,505)
Profit before tax ER TR 51,873 30,701 40,169 49,525 28,332
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHEL/(BX) 69 329 (3,021) 4,418 (6,002)
Profit for the year FEFE 51,942 31,030 37,148 45107 22,330
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted (HK$) HEAREE(BT) 0.24 0.14 017 0.21 0.10
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE 647,695 557,002 310,333 368,103 289,489
Current assets BEEE 1,783,944 1,475,013 1,299,379 1,199,444 1,494,996
Current liabilities mEEE (1,580,287) (1,244,054) (904,404) (887,048) (1,116,804)
Total assets less current HEERTBAE
liabilities 851,352 787,961 705,308 680,499 667,681
Non-current liabilities FnBEE (31,302) (36,004) (29,619) (20,978) (21,673)
Net assets BEEE 820,050 751,867 675,689 659,521 646,008
Capital and reserves BARMGE
Share capital BB 2,168 2,168 2,168 2,168 2,168
Reserves e 816,313 747,687 673,521 657,353 643,840
Equity attributable to owners of AL T)HH AEIEER
the Company 818,481 749,855 675,689 659,521 646,008
Non-controlling interests RS 1,569 2,012 - - -
Total equity s 820,050 751,867 675,689 659,521 646,008
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